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Haier Electronics Group Co., Ltd.

SHEEBEMERA A

Corporate Profile
EEBN

Haier Electronics Group Co., Ltd. (Stock code: 01169) (the
“Company”), a subsidiary of Haier Group, is listed on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The
Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are principally
engaged in the research, development, manufacture and sale of
washing machines and water heaters in the PRC under the brand
name of “Haier”. In addition to manufacturing and sales of home
appliances under the brand name of Haier, the Group is engaged
in the integrated channel services business under the brand name
of Goodaymart for home appliances and other household products
of diversified brands. Integrated channel services business
optimizes the competitive advantages of virtual network, sales
network, logistics network and service network by integrating
virtual and physical networks, to provide superior customer
interaction experience and one-stop logistic services for domestic
customers.

Founded in 1984, Haier Group is headquartered in Qingdao,
Shandong Province, the PRC and is one of the world’s leading
white goods home appliance manufacturers engaging in the
research, development, production and sale of a wide variety of
household appliances (including the white goods) and consumer
electronic goods in the PRC today. The products of Haier Group

are now sold in over 100 countries.
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Haier Electronics Group Co., Ltd.

SHEEBEMERA A

Corporate Information
AAEIEHR

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Director

Mr. ZHOU Yun Jie (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. LIANG Hai Shan

Ms. TAN Li Xia

Ms. Janine Junyuan FENG
Dr. WANG Han Hua

Mr. ZHANG Yong

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. YU Hon To, David
Mrs. Eva CHENG LI Kam Fun
Ms. TSOU Kai-Lien, Rose

Alternate Director

Mr. GUI Zhaoyu (alternate to Ms. Janine Junyuan FENG)
Mr. LI Hua Gang (alternate to Mr. LIANG Hai Shan)

PRINCIPAL BOARD COMMITTEES
Audit Committee

Mr. YU Hon To, David (Committee Chairman)
Ms. TAN Li Xia
Mrs. Eva CHENG LI Kam Fun

Remuneration Committee

Mrs. Eva CHENG LI Kam Fun (Committee Chairman)
Mr. YU Hon To, David

Mr. ZHOU Yun Jie

Dr. WANG Han Hua (Observer)
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Nomination Committee

Mr. YU Hon To, David (Committee Chairman)
Mrs. Eva CHENG LI Kam Fun
Mr. ZHOU Yun Jie

Strategic Committee

Mr. ZHOU Yun Jie (Committee Chairman)

Ms. Janine Junyuan FENG and Mr. GUI Zhaoyu
(alternate to Ms. Janine Junyuan FENG)

Mr. ZHANG Yong

Ms. TSOU Kai-Lien, Rose

Dr. WANG Han Hua (Observer)

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. NG Chi Yin

LEGAL ADVISORS
As to Hong Kong Law

DLA Piper Hong Kong

As to Bermuda Law

Conyers Dill & Pearman

PRINCIPAL BANKER IN HONG KONG

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited

PRINCIPAL BANKER IN THE PRC

China Construction Bank Corporation
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Haier Electronics Group Co., Ltd.
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Corporate Information (continued)
ARER (&)

AUDITORS
Ernst & Young

FINANCIAL CALENDAR

30 June
31 December

Six-month interim period end

Financial year end

REGISTERED OFFICE

Clarendon House
2 Church Street
Hamilton HM 11
Bermuda

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN
HONG KONG

Unit 3513

35/F., The Center

99 Queen’s Road Central
Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN THE PRC

Haier Industrial Park
No. 1, Haier Road
Qingdao, the PRC

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER
OFFICE

Codan Services Limited

Clarendon House
2 Church Street
Hamilton HM 11
Bermuda
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2 Church Street
Hamilton HM 11
Bermuda
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BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE

IN HONG KONG

Tricor Tengis Limited
Level 22 Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East
Hong Kong

TELEPHONE NUMBER

+852 2169 0000

FAX NUMBER
+852 2169 0880

STOCK CODE

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited:
01169

WEBSITE

www.haier-elec.com.hk

INVESTOR RELATIONS CONTACT

Porda Havas International Finance Communications Group
Units 2009-2018, 20/F, Shui On Centre

6-8 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong

(852) 3150 6788

(852) 3150 6728

haier-elec@pordahavas.com

Telephone Number
Fax Number
E-mail Address
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Haier Electronics Group Co., Ltd.

SHEEBEMERA A

Chairman’s Letter
FRERH

During 2014, the overall home appliance market was weak in
China amid slowing macro economy growth and the downturn in
the property market. Yet with the impact of popularization of
internet, manufacturing and marketing of home appliances and the
channel business have evolved accordingly. Haier Electronics has
achieved performance which was above the industry under the
environment full of challenges and changes. Facing the internet +
era, the Group has proactively invested in new business with high
growth potential, laying the foundation for our future growth.

1. SOLID PERFORMANCE

The Group achieved a new record high revenue of
RMB67.134 billion in 2014, representing an increase of 7.8%
as compared to last year. Net profit increased by 20.1% to
RMB2.447 billion. Diluted earnings per share reached 89.76
cents, up by 14.9% year-on-year. Net operating cash flow
was RMB2.903 billion, up 31.4% year-on-year. The Group
made great progress in white goods business and integrated
channel services business. Gross profit margin and operating
profit of each business segment have also been enhanced

significantly.

2. HIGHLIGHTS IN OPERATION AND THE DIRECTION
OF REFORM
1.  White goods business

The positioning of our white good business will take a
dual track: for the family, we will pursue a “smart home”
total solution; for the manufacturing base, we will
“network our factories”, moving from large scale

production to customized production.
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Chairman'’s Letter (continued)
FERM (4E)

2. HIGHLIGHTS IN OPERATION AND THE DIRECTION . RESSEERTE(F)
OF REFORM (continued)
1.  White goods business (continued) 1. BHBREEL: (&)

(1) BRSPS AEAFREEE
BE - SERNRERAERE

(1) Incorporate electronic appliance to internet
appliance, creating the best life experience for

the users. We are committed to incorporating the
“home appliance” to “internet of appliance”, so
that home appliance and the internet can be
connected, delivering and distributing a number
of services within and outside home, and to
attract more and more fans to connect with our
devices. At present, the proportionate sales of
washing machine and water heater with customer
interaction features has been rising rapidly. These
two types of products have been developing an
open and self-optimizing ecosystem leveraging
on the U+ smart home platform (Developed by
Haier Group, U+ platform is the world’s leading
open smart-home platform that enables seamless
connection between different smart devices and
home appliances from different brands. At
present, over one hundred partners, such as

Microsoft, Samsung and Huawei have established

connection with U+ platform.).
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Haier Electronics Group Co., Ltd.

SHEEBEMERA A

Chairman’s Letter (continued)
FER M ()

2. HIGHLIGHTS IN OPERATION AND THE DIRECTION . RESSEERTE(F)
OF REFORM (continued)
1.  White goods business (continued) 1. BHBREEL: (&)

(2) Build smart factory to address personalized (2) EREHIBHEAFEMELCE

demand of users. Early on, the Group has paid
close attention to the industrial 4.0 concept. For
example, we have built our Qingdao electric water
heater factory and Foshan front-loading washing
machine factory into smart lights-out factories,
where manual labors are replaced by automated
equipment and robots, and users’ feedback is
incorporated during the entire production
process. Our production efficiency has
significantly enhanced and labor costs has been
reduced, we can also provide users with
“visualized” experience during the entire process,

satisfying users’ personalized demand.

With the overall industry growth moderating,
the group will put more emphasis on mid/high
end products. The Group has upgraded its
product structure and kept a fast growth, thanks
to the Group’s leading products developed on its
global R&D network, such as our exclusive
“clean-free” washing machine launched in 2014.
The “clean-free” washing machine was ranked at
top in the high-end top-loading washing machine
segment soon after it was launched. The
European style Casarte Ella washing machine
quickly became top selling product in high-end

front loading washing machine segment after its

entering into the market.
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2.

HIGHLIGHTS IN OPERATION AND THE DIRECTION
OF REFORM (continued)

2.

Integrated Channel Services Business

The Integrated Channel Services Business of Haier

Electronic is positioned as “Household-centric

Ecosystem that links Users and Services”, which mainly

includes logistics, e-commerce and distribution

business segments.

(1)

Capture the digital innovation trend, transform
vast franchisee network to 020 service
platform. With the accelerating digital adoption,
the Group motivates its franchisees to change its
strategic focus from goods-selling to user-
experience generation, in order to enhance
competitiveness of the retail stores in the internet
era. Our goal here is to help more and more
franchisee stores going online and reduce store
inventory, convert our franchisee stores into 020
service platform, as well as a user attraction and
retention platform that integrates physical
distribution network with internet technologies. As
at the end of 2014, the number of online and
offline active users on Group’s 020 platform

amounted to 15.7 million approximately.
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Haier Electronics Group Co., Ltd.
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Chairman’s Letter (continued)
FER M ()

2. HIGHLIGHTS IN OPERATION AND THE DIRECTION T RESHEEBRGE(E)
OF REFORM (continued)
2. Integrated Channel Services Business (continued) 2. REZEGREBER: (&
(2 FAKTHERENAREZ R

(2) Take advantage of competitive edge of offline

franchisee network to rapidly develop the rural
e-commerce. The e-commerce platforms and
transportation companies have not been widely
penetrated in rural areas in China due to the
remote geographical locations and the
underdeveloped customer segment. Facing up
with the huge potential of rural e-commerce, the
Group will leverage on its network advantage to
rapidly expand rural e-commerce as the new
growth driver in 2015. We will establish
e-commerce services platform in counties and
e-commerce services stations in villages, which
deal with sales, investment attraction, logistics,
life service and finance, aiming to sell online

stores’ products to rural markets, and sell rural

market products to cities.
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2.

HIGHLIGHTS IN OPERATION AND THE DIRECTION
OF REFORM (continued)

2.

Integrated Channel Services Business (continued)

3)

Develop smart logistics, and expand third-
party platform business rapidly. Capturing the
opportunities in the e-commerce, Goodaymart
Logistics innovates the logistics services and
establishes the logistics platform that delivers
best user experience. Total logistics revenue
increased by over 45% year-on-year in 2014 while
revenue from third-party business grew over
150% as compared to prior year, amongst which,
e-commerce logistics business grew rapidly.
Goodaymart became the primary logistics service
provider for merchants selling large home
appliances on Tmall.com, provided competitive
one-stop logistic solutions and “bundling of
delivery and installation” services on a nationwide
basis.

Through opening our transportation capacity,
Goodaymart Logistics platform has attracted tens
of thousands of track drivers joining our capacity
platform, and developed to be the only domestic
logistic service network for large-format products
which achieves “delivery to villages and rural
families” and “bundling of delivery and
installation”. On our unique logistic platform,
drivers receive orders via mobile APP while the
users can rate the driver’s delivery services on-
site. The platform will automatically optimize the
allocation of the vehicle resources/jobs pursuant
to the user’s feedback, and in return, the user

appraisal system continuously enhances

customer experience.

2.
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Chairman’s Letter (continued)
FER M ()

2. HIGHLIGHTS IN OPERATION AND THE DIRECTION . RESSEERTE(F)
OF REFORM (continued)
2. Integrated Channel Services Business (continued) 2. REZEGREBER: (&

(4) Continuously broaden logistics services (4) #RREBEAXREINLE YEARE

category, from home appliance, furniture to
cold chain. By leaping on our significant
development on home appliance and
e-commerce logistics business in 2014, the
Group will further promote the e-commerce
logistics business of other large-format products
including furniture and bathroom fixture in the
future, aiming to become No. 1 home appliance
and home furnishing logistics service provider in
terms of domestic market share and word of
mouth reputation among the customers. With the
aim to expand into cold chain logistics industry,
the Group strategically invested 34% stakes of
Shanghai Grand Logistics, a leading cold chain
logistics services provider, in January 2015.

Migrate from wholesale mode to service mode.
Local Goodaymart joint ventures that engage in
third-party home appliance distribution have
optimized its revenue mix and improved their
profitability through entering into direct distribution
in rural town areas in 2014. Local joint venture
companies and the franchise stores have joined
the Group’s newly developed B2B trading
platform, conducting the online trading and

settlement.
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INNOVATIONS EMBRACING THE NEW ERA

Organizational innovation

The R&D and innovation management of large
organizations was highly centralized in the past, while a
new innovational model is emerging in the internet era.
The Group is transforming from a traditional centralized
organization to a platform that cultivates innovation and
entrepreneurship, enabling our employees to act like
entrepreneurs, namely “makers”, a change from
focusing on execution efficiency to proactively creating
value for customers. Outsiders who intend to participate
in our internal start up can become “makers” on our

platform as sponsors in the common site of makers.

Then core of Haier’s digital transformation is to establish
an open entrepreneurial ecosystem for innovation,
providing platform for the “makers” all over the world,
and more strategically focus on cultivating “makers”
rather than manufacturing products. At present, the
innovations in Haier’'s “maker ecosystem” mainly focus
in the following three aspects: (1) adopting the micro
business unit model for new business; (2) providing
resources for makers on the open platform; and (3) to
increasing the chance of success through introducing

new incentive mechanism.
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Chairman’s Letter (continued)

FRERMY (E)
3. INNOVATIONS EMBRACING THE NEW ERA = BARAKHAEIZHE)
(continued)
2. Innovation adapting to trends: 2. BEAIFEE:

“Internet +” represents the new normal industrial [GEiE+] BRIEEROIRE

development. “Internet +” will be a new generation of R [EHN] BHEDUEFTE -

innovation on information technology, modern MEEA - REBAREZNFT—RER

manufacturing and logistics services, with the symbolic RTHEBARER MIRRBEED

application of cloud computing, internet of things and BealH e —E—RHF AKEEZR

big data. In 2015, the Group will establish an open BIEBE+ ] EEARNERMEERE

internet ecosystem through “Internet +”, promoting the R HEBERE IR RBE Y

innovation in branding, factory, channel, logistics and MELHHEMAIR - BB RERMEE

other aspects, so as to achieve faster development. & -

(1) Internet + brand: to establish a well-recognized (1) EEA+ZE: TERAALH
internet brand. In 2014, Goodaymart was named EH@EmRE - —T—MF  HH
one of the most valuable brands in China with a ELAAREE 142.86 (BT K IR (E
brand value of RMB14.286 billion. In 2015, the BABRHEREEEmBELE
Group will add new elements of the new era into B —T-—1F KEKARE
the brand name, through the introduction of AR TR BB E A
internet thinking, exploration of the internet mode BHEMSIA - BBEEXHER
and pooling of resource, to form an internet brand ARERNES  2EEEIEE
name of the era and gain brand recognition from BROEEMME - WEE—m
the public. FERAA L ©
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3. INNOVATIONS EMBRACING THE NEW ERA = BABKKAIRE)
(continued)
2. Innovation adapting to trends: (continued) 2. LERIFEE : (&)

(2) Internet + factory: smart factory allows users (2) EE@+IW:  EBMIBEAF
to make interaction during entire process. The EREBSE  TEIONAER

nature of Industrial 4.0 is connecting factory. The
Group currently has built several connecting
factories with the remaining factories are in the
process of upgrading. Through its modular
production, automated and smart features, Haier
connecting factories incorporate users’ feedback
in product design, supply chain management and
marketing. The goal of Haier “connecting
factories” is to lead China’s intelligent
manufacturing, and then promote this to the
world.

Internet + channel: to be the leader of
e-commerce market in rural areas. The
increasing purchasing power from rural
consumers and their increasing proportion of
online shopping presents an enormous
opportunity to develop e-commerce in rural areas.
In 2015, the Group plans to integrate “delivery
capacity” to establish a mobile e-commerce
services network in rural areas. Such network not
only delivers the products to the county town, but
also assists in selling their special local products.
Leveraging on the advantages of the existing
networks, Goodaymart may very well become the

market leader in respect of its integration of virtual

and physical e-commerce networks in rural areas.
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Chairman’s Letter (continued)
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3.

INNOVATIONS EMBRACING THE NEW ERA
(continued)
2. Innovation adapting to trends: (continued)

(4) Internet + logistics: to become the platform for
internet of vehicles in the freight transportation
sector. In 2015, the Group will further develop the
“Last Mile Open Platform” project under
Goodaymart Logistics. We plan to attract more
parties to co-develop this business. Goodaymart
Logistics has the goal of becoming the platform
for internet of vehicles in the freight transportation
sector, establishing an open platform which
integrates delivery capacity, service orders and
users. Product owners can release orders, drivers
can grip the orders while users can comment on
services they receive. It is expected that the
proportion of third-party logistics business will

continue to grow rapidly in 2015.

CONCLUSION

It is estimated that in 2015 the growth of overall home
appliance industry will slow down. However, as more Chinese
consumers are pursuing decent quality of life, we estimate
the demand for lifestyle home appliance will continue to
increase. With the further popularization of internet in China,
e-commerce will continue to record higher growth than offline
retail sales. It is essential to strengthen the “last mile”
logistics delivery services and onsite user experience in the
3rd and 4th-tier markets. Anticipating prosperous growth
potential, we remain fully confident and are willing to
embrace the challenges. We will present new breakthroughs,
become the industry leading company and continuously

drive value for shareholders.
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Directors and Senior Management

The directors and senior management of the Group during the year

are as follows:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. ZHOU Yun Jie, aged 48, has been serving as an Executive
Director and general manager of the Company since 12 November
2009. He has been appointed as Chief Executive Officer of the
Company since 18 March 2013 and he has also been appointed
as the Chairman of the Company with effect from 25 June 2013.
He is also a member of the remuneration committee, nomination
committee and strategic committee of the Company. Mr. Zhou
graduated from the Huazhong University of Science and
Technology, the PRC with a Bachelor’'s degree in Engineering in
1988. He has a Master’'s degree in corporate management from
the Ocean University of China, the PRC and has completed his
Doctoral courses with a diploma in Management from the Xian
Jiaotong University, the PRC. He joined the Haier Group in 1988
and has over 20 years of experience in the areas of sales
management, enterprise management and international business.
Currently, he is an Alternative President and Deputy Chairman of
the board of Haier Group, and also he is a deputy to the 12th

National People’s Congress of China.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR (continued)

Mr. Zhou is also a director of the following Group’s subsidiaries:
Chongging Hairi Logistics Co., Ltd., Chongging New Goodaymart
Electronics Sales Co., Ltd., Goodaymart (Shanghai) Investment
Co., Ltd., Haier Electronics Sales (Hefei) Co., Ltd., Hefei
Goodaymart Logistics Co., Ltd., Qingdao Goodaymart Supply
Chains Co., Ltd., Qingdao Goodaymart Logistics Co., Ltd. (formerly
known as “Qingdao Haier Logistics Co. Ltd.”) and its certain
subsidiaries, Qingdao Lejia Electric Appliance Co., Ltd., SHC
International (HK) Ltd., Ocean Vast Enterprises Limited, Haier
Group E-commerce Co., Ltd., Qingdao Goodaymart Electronics
Service Co., Ltd., Qingdao Haier Electronics Sales Service Co.,
Ltd., Qingdao Goodaymart Lejia Jiaju Trading Co., Ltd., HH Retail
Limited, Haier International Business Corporation Limited, Haier
Holdings (BVI) Ltd., Sunlit Enterprise International Limited, Crown
Smooth Limited, Partner Century Holdings Limited and Qingdao
Haier Investment and Development Holdings (BVI) Limited.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. LIANG Hai Shan, aged 48, has served as an Executive
Director of the Company since December 2001 and has been re-
designated as Non-executive Director with effect from 12
November 2009. Mr. Liang was previously mainly responsible for
strategic procurement and overall quality control of products of the
Group. He is currently responsible for identifying market
opportunities and white goods business strategies formulation of
the Company. He received a Bachelor’'s degree of Industry from
the Xian Jiaotong University, the PRC and has 26 years of
experience in the manufacture of household electrical appliances,
particularly in raw material procurement function and white goods
business. He is also an Executive Vice President of Haier Corp, the
General Manager and Chairman of Qingdao Haier Co., Ltd. (a
company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange) and a director of
the following Group’s subsidiaries: Beijing Haier Logistics Co.,
Ltd., Qingdao Economy and Technology Development Zone Haier

Water Heater Co., Ltd., Chongqging Haier Drum Washing Machine
Co., Ltd., Foshan Haier Drum Washing Machine Co., Ltd. and
Qingdao Haier New Energy Electronics Co., Ltd.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)

Ms. TAN Li Xia, aged 44, has served as an Non-executive Director
of the Company since 18 November 2013. Ms. Tan graduated from
Central University of Finance and Economics, the PRC and has a
master degree in Business Administration from the China Europe
International Business School upon completion of the EMBA
program. She is a Fellow of the Chartered Institute of Management
Accountants and has been designated as a Chartered Global
Management Accountant (CGMA). She joined Haier Group in 1992
and had held the positions as the Head of Department of Overseas
Market Development of Haier Group and Head of Department of
Financial Management of Haier Group. Currently, she is the Senior
Vice President and the Chief Financial Officer of Haier Group. Ms.
Tan also holds positions of Deputy Chairman of the Board of
directors of Qingdao Haier Co., Ltd., director of Bank of Qingdao
Co., Ltd, the PRC, and director of Fisher & Paykel Appliances
Holdings Limited. Ms. Tan was awarded titles such as Model
Worker of Shandong Province, Outstanding Entrepreneur of
Shandong Province, the China CFO of the Year and China Top Ten
Women in Economic Area. Ms. Tan is also a member of the 11th
executive committee of the All-China Women’s Federation.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)

Ms. Janine Junyuan FENG, aged 46, has been appointed as a
Non-executive Director of the Company since 24 August 2011. She
is also a member of the strategic committee of the Company. Ms.
Feng joined the Carlyle Group in 1998, she is currently a Managing
Director of the Carlyle Group. Ms. Feng has been involved in many
direct investments by the Carlyle Group in consumer, financial and
industrial companies in the PRC. Prior to joining the Carlyle Group,
Ms. Feng worked for Credit Suisse First Boston’s New York office,
engaging in investment banking business. Ms. Feng received an
MBA degree from Harvard Business School in 1996.

Dr. WANG Han Hua, aged 50, has served as an Non-executive
Director of the Company since 1 June 2013. Dr. Wang obtained his
Doctor of Philosophy degree from the University of Nebraska of the
United States in 1994. He is the China Managing Director of Sonos
Inc, a US based, world leading wireless HiFi producer since April
2014. Prior to this, he took position as the chief executive officer of
Allyes Information Technology (Shanghai) Co., Ltd., an internet
company providing full digital marketing solutions of data,
technology and product to its customers, in December 2012. Prior
to this, Dr. Wang had been the president of Amazon (China)
Holding Company Limited from May 2005 until November 2012
and was responsible for the sale, marketing, cooperation and the
construction of B2C E-commerce ecological chain of Amazon in
China. Prior to joining Amazon (China) Holding Company Limited,
Dr. Wang served a number of positions with Motorola Mobility
Technologies (China) Company Limited Beijing branch company
between 1998 and 2005 including as marketing director, director
of strategy and corporate planning, vice president of the Asia
Pacific region and general manager of the mobile telephone

operations of China.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)

Mr. ZHANG Yong, aged 43, has been appointed as a Non-
executive Director of the Company since 25 March 2014. He is
also a member of the strategic committee of the Company. Mr.
Zhang received a bachelor’s degree in finance from Shanghai
University of Finance and Economics. He is a member of the
Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Zhang is
currently a director and chief operating officer of Alibaba Group
Holding Limited, a company listed on the New York Stock

Exchange.

Before joining Alibaba Group, Mr. Zhang served as chief financial
officer of Shanda Interactive Entertainment Ltd., an online game
developer and operator listed on NASDAQ Stock Market, from
August 2005 to August 2007. From 2002 to 2005, Mr. Zhang was
senior manager of PricewaterhouseCoopers’ Audit and Business
Advisory Division in Shanghai. Prior to which he worked in the

Shanghai office of Arthur Andersen for seven years.

Mr. Zhang is a non-executive director of Alibaba Health Information
Technology Limited and Intime Retail (Group) Company Limited,
each a company listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. He
also serves on the board of directors of Weibo Corporation, a
company listed on the NASDAQ Stock Market, since May 2014.
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ALTERNATE DIRECTORS

Mr. GUI Zhaoyu, aged 43, has been appointed as the alternate
Director to Ms. Janine Junyuan Feng since 24 August 2011. Mr.
Gui is currently a Managing Director of the Carlyle Group and is
focused on Asia buyout opportunities with a particular focus on
opportunities in the PRC. Mr. Gui is primarily based in Beijing. Prior
to joining the Carlyle Group, Mr. Gui was a Vice President of the
Investment Banking Department at China International Capital
Corporation in Beijing, and a Vice President of J.P. Morgan
Securities (Asia Pacific) Limited in Hong Kong. He also has
working experience at the Special Investment Department of CIC
and two state-owned companies, and had founded his own
logistics company. Mr. Gui received his MBA degree from
Massachusetts Institute of Technology Sloan School of
Management.

Mr. LI Hua Gang, aged 45, has been appointed as the alternate
Director to Mr. Liang Hai Shan since 7 June 2014. Mr. Li has
served as a Chief Operation Officer of the Company since 12
November 2009, and has served as an Executive Director since 19
April 2010. Mr. Li has resigned as an executive director and
relinquished the senior management role of the Company with
effect from 26 March 2014. Mr. Li, graduated from the Huazhong
University of Science and Technology, the PRC in 1991 with a
Bachelor’'s degree in Economics. He joined the Haier Group in
1991 and has since held a number of senior positions in the sales

and marketing functions with his expertise in the sales

management in the 3rd and 4th-tier markets of the PRC.
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ALTERNATE DIRECTORS (continued)

Mr. Li is also a director of the following Group’s subsidiaries:
Chengdu Haixin Goodaymart Electric Appliance Co., Ltd.,
Chongqging Hairi Logistics Co., Ltd., Chongging New Goodaymart
Electronics Sales Co., Ltd., Fujian Goodaymart Electric Appliance
Co., Ltd., Goodaymart (Shanghai) Investment Co., Ltd., Haier
Electronics Sales (Hefei) Co., Ltd., Haier Electronics Sales (HK)
Co., Ltd., Hefei Goodaymart Logistics Co., Ltd., Hunan
Goodaymart Electric Appliance Co., Ltd., Qingdao Goodaymart
Logistics Co., Ltd., Shandong Goodaymart Electric Appliance Co.,
Ltd., Xuchang Goodaymart Electric Appliance Co., Ltd., Yantai
Goodaymart Electric Appliance Co., Ltd., Hefei Goodaymart
Electric Appliance Co., Ltd., Suzhou Goodaymart Electric
Appliance Co., Ltd., Liaoning Goodaymart Trading Co., Ltd.,
Jiangsu Subei Goodaymart Electric Appliance Co., Ltd., Tangshan
Goodaymart Electric Appliance Co., Ltd., Wuhan Goodaymart
Electric Appliance Co., Ltd., Shanxi Goodaymart Electric Appliance
Co., Ltd., Wenzhou Goodaymart Electric Appliance Co., Ltd.,
Qingdao Yatai Goodaymart Electric Appliance Co., Ltd., Changshu
Suchang Electric Appliance Sales Co., Ltd., HH Retail Limited,
Foreland Agents Limited, Coreland Limited, Impressive Holdings
Limited, Haier Washing Machines Holdings (BVI) Limited, 365
Goodaymart (CM) Limited and 365 Goodaymart (HK) Limited.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. YU Hon To, David, aged 67, was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company on 21 June
2007. Mr. Yu is a fellow member of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales and an associate member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He was
formerly a partner of an international accounting firm with extensive
experience in corporate finance. Mr. Yu is the Chairman of MCL
Financial Group Ltd, a Hong Kong based financial advisory and
investment firm. He serves as an independent non-executive
director of several other companies listed on the Stock Exchange,
namely Great China Holdings Limited, China Renewable Energy
Investment Limited, Media Chinese International Limited, One
Media Group Limited, Playmates Holdings Limited, Sateri Holdings
Limited, Synergis Holdings Limited, China Resources Gas Group
Limited, Keck Seng Investments (Hong Kong) Limited, and New
Century Asset Management Limited (the manager of New Century

Real Estate Investment Trust).

Mrs. Eva CHENG LI Kam Fun, aged 62, was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company on 1 June
2013. Mrs. Cheng graduated from the University of Hong Kong
with Bachelor of Arts (Hons) and Master of Business Administration
degrees. Mrs. Cheng began her career with Amway Hong Kong in
1977. In 2011, she retired from her positions as executive vice
president of Amway Corporation and executive chairman of
Amway China Co. Ltd. During her 34 years with Amway, Mrs.
Cheng’s area of responsibilities covered markets in the Greater

China and Southeast Asia regions.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)

Mrs. Cheng’s leadership was well recognized in the business
community. She was twice named the “World’s 100 Most Powerful
Women” by Forbes Magazine in 2008 and 2009. CNBC awarded
Mrs. Cheng with the “China Talent Management Award” in its 2007
China Business Leaders Awards. Mrs. Cheng is currently an
independent non-executive director of Trinity Limited, a company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, and Amcor
Limited, a company listed on the Australian Securities Exchange.
Mrs. Cheng is also a director of Nestle S.A. which is listed on the
SIX Swiss Exchange. In the areas of public and community service,
Mrs. Cheng is the founding/honorary chairman of the Amway
Charity Foundation. In Mainland China, Mrs. Cheng is a member of
the executive committee of the All-China Women’s Federation,
executive director of the Spring Sprout Special Fund under the
China Next Generation Education Foundation and member of the
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference — Guangdong
Commission. In Hong Kong, Mrs. Cheng is Executive Director of
Our Hong Kong Foundation, honorary president of the All-China
Women’s Federation Hong Kong Delegates Association, honorary
president of the Hong Kong Federation of Women, and permanent
honorary committee member of The Chinese General Chamber of
Commerce.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)

Ms. TSOU Kai-Lien, Rose, aged 49, has been appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company since 7 June
2014. Ms. Tsou currently serves as Managing Director and senior
vice president of Yahoo! Asia Pacific region, where she is
responsible for operations in Hong Kong, Taiwan, Australia, New
Zealand, India and Southeast Asia as well as facilitating joint
venture operations in Japan. She joined Yahoo! Taiwan in 2000
and held the position of Managing Director from 2001 to 2007,
during which she led the acquisition of Kimo, a portal site in
Taiwan, which made Yahoo! the largest Internet business in Taiwan
after the successful integration of the two companies. In 2007, she
led another acquisition of Wretch, a leading blog and photo site in
Taiwan, further fortifying Yahoo!'s leading position in Taiwan. In
2008, under Ms. Tsou'’s leadership, Yahoo! Kimo acquired Taiwan
e-commerce company Monday, an important strategic milestone
to enabling Yahoo! Taiwan’s full capabilities in e-commerce from
B2C shopping, C2C auction to online store solution. Ms. Tsou has
over 20 years of experience in management, marketing and mass
communication. Prior to joining Yahoo!, she was general manager
of MTV Taiwan for two years. Ms. Tsou holds a MBA degree from
J.L. Kellogg School of Business, Northwestern University and a
Master’'s degree in Mass Communication from Boston University.

Ms. Tsou is a director of Gomaji Corp. Ltd. (a company listed in

Taiwan).
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Dr. LIU Xiao Feng, aged 52, was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company on 21 June 2007. He is the
Managing Director of China Resources Capital Holdings Co., Ltd..
He has worked in various international financial institutions since
1993, including N. M. Rothschild & Sons, JP Morgan and DBS. He
has many years of experience in corporate finance. Dr. Liu has a
Ph.D and Master degrees from the Faculty of Economics,
University of Cambridge and a Bachelor’'s degree in Economics
from Sichuan Institute of Finance and Economics, China. Dr. Liu
has retired as an Independent Non-executive Director of the
Company with effect from 6 June 2014.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Mr. XIE Ju Zhi, aged 49, graduated from Shandong Economics

College in July 1989 specialised in Economics and Management.
He has held senior positions in Electrothermal Product division and
East China division of Marketing and Promotion Division of the
Haier Group, and served as the general manager of the Customer
Service Operation Company of the Haier Group since August
2002. He has over 10 years of experience in service management.
Currently, he is mainly responsible for the Group’s customer
service and channel business expansion of community stores in
the 1st and 2nd-tier markets. He also serves as the vice chairman
of the Subcommittee on Household Electric Appliances Service of
National Technical Committee on Household Electric Appliances of
Standardization Administration of China, and the vice chairman of
the presidium of the China National Household Electric Appliances
Service & Maintenance Association.

BYFHITES(HE)

ggEL 52 R _TELFAA-+—H
EZERARRBUFUTES - HREERS
BERERARZERALE - FE—NANZ=F
EEEBRNSHERSREE  BRAFEXT
ERXBNMER UHAEZFLERELR -2
BEIRARBAREERE L MALEMNHE
M)l B Bl BER L2 - B LR T
FARARNBRDRERARFBILIFNITES -

BREERE

BEEEE 495 RN \NLFLAEXERL
REEEHEAEHEEEX - CETEHEEE
RERZERN SASERRANEREXENE
SRBE B -EE_F)\ARLEEREEE
ERBEEQRARLE  AETHFRBEEL
B AXIZAEAKEBRTRENR— —AT5
HREREBEBER RARKET2ERKAERR
EERMEZE@XAERRBORMEE S
EFZE TERBERRBEEHESEZTS IR
ENCIESE




SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

Mr. HUANG Xiao Wu, aged 37, was appointed as Deputy General
Manager of the Company in November 2009. Mr. Huang holds a
Master's degree in Business Administration from the University of
Hong Kong and a Bachelor's degree in Engineering from the
University of Chong Qing. Mr. Huang is responsible for assisting
the General Manager in implementing the Group’s corporate
development strategy. Mr. Huang has 17 years of extensive
experience in banking, investment and corporate finance. Prior to
joining the Group, he had worked with a commercial bank and
several investment banking firms.

Mr. ZHAN Bo, aged 35, has been appointed as the General
Manager of the finance department of the Company since 12
November 2013. Mr. Zhan graduated from Tianjin University of
Finance and Economics, the PRC, with a Bachelor’s degree in
Economics. He joined the Haier Group in 2002, and has since held
a number of senior financial positions in Haier Group finance
department, Haier Europe trading company, Haier Group
telecommunication business and Haier Global Marketing
department. He has extensive experience in financial

management.

Mr. SHU Hai, aged 48, has served as the General Manager of
washing machine product division of the Company since June
2009. Mr. Shu has a Master’s degree in International Trade from
Ocean University of China, the PRC. He joined the Haier Group in
1995 and has since held a number of senior positions in the
washing machine business. He is currently responsible for the

sales, research and development and production management of

the washing machine business of the Group.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

Mr. SUN Jing Yan, aged 44, has served as an Executive Director
of the Company until August 2011 due to the reallocation of
appointments within the Haier Group. Mr. Sun has been the
General Manager of the Haier Group’s Electrothermal Product
Division since 2005 and is mainly responsible for the operation of
the Group’s water heater business. Mr. Sun graduated from
Shandong Institute of Light Industry, the PRC in 1993 with a
Bachelor in Engineering in Machine Design and Manufacture. He
joined the Haier Group in 1993 and has since held a number of
senior positions in the Electrothermal Appliance Department of the
Haier Group. He has over 20 years of extensive experience in
water heater business.

Mr. WANG Zheng Gang, aged 42, has served as the General
Manager of Qingdao Goodaymart Logistics Co., Ltd., since March
2003, and has currently served as the director of logistics division
of the Group. Mr. Wang graduated from Tianjin University in 1995.
He also graduated from the Xian Jiaotong University, the PRC with
a Master’s degree in Logistics Engineering in 2007. He has 19
years of experience in the manufacture of household electrical
appliances, particularly in raw material procurement function and
logistics business. He is currently responsible for developing the
logistics business of the Company and identifying related market
opportunities.
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COMPANY SECRETARY REWE

Mr. NG Chi Yin, aged 49, joined the Company on 18 March 2009 {AEB%LE @ 4955 RZTEZENF=A+NAHM
as Company Secretary. Mr. Ng graduated from the Faculty of AZXRARIMERGME - AAEEFTEESF XK
Business Administration of the Chinese University of Hong Kong ST HEEERTIHERE LS4 MARHE
with a Bachelor's degree in business administration. He is also a ARG MASEFEE BESHAASE
fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified BRERBEEBHISHFSIMAEEE - FR
Accountants, and a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified &t * MR ARME A EHEAR -+ NF 2K
Public Accountants and the Institute of Chartered Accountants in & ©

England and Wales. He has over 26 years of experience in

auditing, finance and company secretarial matters.
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In 2014, the Group continued to achieve record results, with a
high-quality growth in revenue and robust earnings growth,
meanwhile, created significant increase in shareholder value. Profit
attributable to the owners of the Company grew 20.1% year-on-
year to a new record high of RMB2,447 million. Diluted earnings
per share increased 14.9% year-on-year to RMB89.76 cents.
During the year:

° The Group’s revenue grew substantially to RMB67,134 million
from RMB62,263 million in 2013, up 7.8% year-on-year. This
was mainly attributable to a 8.1% growth in integrated
channel business service revenues to RMB62,233 million;

o Operating profit margin of the integrated channel business
service increased by 0.2 percentage points to 2.0% and
operating profit increased by 19.5% year-on-year to
RMB1,255 million;

o The Group’s cash flow continued to improve. Net cash flow
from operations was RMB2,903 million, up 31.4% year-on-
year and represented 118.7% of net profit attributable to
owners of the Company.
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INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

In 2014, growth of overall home appliances sales in China slowed
amid challenges of weak property market and slowdown in macro
economic growth. Thanks to continuous upgrade in home
appliances consumption, increasing penetration in the 3rd and
4th-tier markets and vigorous sales of emerging product
categories, industry growth has gained momentum. Exports by
Chinese home appliance enterprises continued to grow, thanks to
recovery in overseas economies and slight depreciation of
Renminbi.

Consumption upgrade trend continued over the past year, high-
end, energy-efficient and environmental-friendly home appliance
products accounted for increasing proportions of industries sales.
Consumers’ increasing demand for high-quality life boosted sales
of lifestyle home appliances, which significantly outgrew the overall
industry. For instance, sales of front-loading washing machines
have been growing with higher growth rate as compared to top-
loading washing machines, driving the market share of front-
loading washer by sales volume to 32% from 30% in 2013. As for
water heater industry, higher-end products such as instant-heat
electronic water heaters, gas water heaters and high-volume water
heaters recorded faster sales growth.

In early January 2015, seven ministries including the National
Development and Reform Commission, the Ministry of Finance and
the Ministry of Industry and Information Technology (“MIIT”), jointly
announced to implement the Scheme of Energy-Efficiency Leader
System. The scheme set out mandatory standards for energy
consuming products, high-energy-consuming industries and
public organizations. The scheme aims to provide policy support
to energy efficiency “leaders”. Inverter air conditioners,
refrigerators, front-loading washing machines, flat panel TVs have
been included in the program. It is expected that the “Leader
Scheme” may help to promote technology upgrade in the home

appliance industry.
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INDUSTRY OVERVIEW (continued)

In 2014, emerging home appliance segment grew rapidly. Sales of
purifying products, including air purifier, water purifying products
and solutions, as well as emerging lifestyle appliances, such as
home cleaning robots have been surging, capturing the
increasingly personalized and exquisite consumer requirement.
According to research by CMM, sales growth of air purifiers and
water purifiers in 2014 was over 30% and 59% respectively, far
above the overall industry growth rate.

Overall online sales in China went up 48.7% in 2014, accounting
for more than 10% of total retail sales of consumer goods for the
first time, amongst which, online sales of 3C and home appliance
products went up quickly with a year-on-year increase of 70%,
according to iResearch estimates. Though online sales were
mostly generated from 1st and 2nd-tier markets, 3rd and 4th-tier
markets are becoming the major growth driver for online shopping,
as the fast growing penetration of mobile internet has stimulated
adoption of online payment and the online shopping experience
has been enhancing. According to a report issued by China
Internet Network Information Centre, rural netizens accounted for
approximately one-third of netizens in China, amounting to a
population of almost 200 million people by the end of 2014.

Given the enormous potential in the 3rd and 4th-tier markets, many
e-commerce platforms attempted to tap into the rural markets
through internally developed logistic capability or strategic
partnerships over the past year. The No.1 Central Document for
2015 issued by the government reiterated government’s support to
develop e-commerce in rural areas for the third consecutive year,
and proposed to support companies from e-commerce, logistics,
trading and finance industries to engage in construction of
e-commerce platforms in rural area.
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INDUSTRY OVERVIEW (continued)

During the year, the continuing strong growth in e-commerce
drove the robust demand for nationwide logistics delivery services.
In response to the challenges from e-commerce and the slowing
economic growth, more companies restructured their supply chain
by outsourcing logistic services and supply chain services to third-
party logistics service providers, and switched their focus to brand
building and product development, which boosted the growth of
third-party logistics services. Because of the companies’
increasing demand for professional services, as well as deeper
and broader services coverage from third-party logistics
companies, third-party logistics service providers with scale and
nationwide service network will further expand their market shares,
resulting in consolidation in the logistics industry.

In 2014, the Government issued “2014-2020 Mid to Long Term
Development Plan for Logistics Industry” (“Plan”) and positioned
logistics industry as a strategic industry that helps to accelerate
economic development and consumption growth. Plans for twelve
major projects were outlined in the plan, including logistics for
agricultural products and manufacturing industry, as well as supply
chain management. The Plan states that China will establish
modern logistics service system by 2020. The Government will
endeavor to improve logistics infrastructure and lower social
logistics costs, while encouraging scale-up of logistics enterprises
and supporting merger and acquisition. In March 2015, Premier Li
Keqgiang proposed in the Report of Central Government at the
National People’s Congress and People’s Political Consultative
Conference to support the development of emerging industries,
such as mobile internet, logistics and courier services, and to
promote internet-related consumption which involves integration of
online and offline channels. Besides, Premier Li also mentioned
that the government would continue to encourage reform in
channel and distribution system in China, and to speed up the
construction of modern logistics facilities for the agricultural
product wholesaling, storage and warehouses, as well as cold

chain logistic.
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BUSINESS SEGMENT REVIEW paiE 3 a0

The breakdown of revenue and results by segment for 2014 is set —Z—MFMHFEWA REERKRLHMOT
out below:

Segment revenue Segment results
2 BB AR L I E DEEEBALLHIE
Water heater Water heater
HUKEE 5.6% HUKEE 17.0%
Washing
machine
;ﬁgiziié Integrated Integrated
' channel channel
services services
RBHRARY REFARY
76.2% Washing 40.0%
machine
BRI M
43.0%

Note: The proportions of the above pie charts are presented in accordance 3 : il B EIHEAK L P2 15 A8 5 KA A ] 248 4 512

with the aggregate amounts of segment revenue and results, without D+ REBWA R FELE D BRI S 8% -
taking into account inter-segment eliminations of revenue and
results.



BUSINESS SEGMENT REVIEW (continued)

Washing Machine Business

In 2014, the Group’s washing machine business recorded revenue
of RMB14,868 million, grew by 4.5% year-on-year (20183:
RMB 14,222 million), underpinned by higher average selling prices
for products sold in domestic market and strong growth in export
sales. Export sales grew significantly, attributed to the recovery of
US market and the Group’s stronger presence in Asia. Sales of
washing machine in domestic market were impacted by slow
recovery of the property market and slower economic growth.
During the year, the Group further enhanced its profitability on
washing machine business. Gross profit margin expanded by 0.3
percentage points to 27.6%, mainly attributable to the Group’s
efforts on product mix optimization, which resulted in increased
proportion of premium products with better profit margins, such as
front-loading washing machines and “Casarte” products. As to top-
loading washing machines, the Group’s high-end “clean-free”
washing machines dominated the domestic market of top-loading
washing machine rapidly. Besides, the declining raw materials
price also had a positive effect on gross profit margin.

According to a global home appliance market research published
by Euromonitor, Haier’'s washing machine ranked first in the world
in 2014 in terms of retail sales volume for the sixth consecutive
year in 2014, accounting for 14.4% of global market share.
According to research by CMM, the Group’s washing machines
continued to rank first in the PRC with 26.7% market share in terms
of sales volume, down by 1.3 percentage points year-on-year. The
sample data gathered by CMM monitored market information from
appliances retailers in 846 cities and counties, which may not
match the Group’s geographical market distribution. On the other
hand, the decline in market share might be attributed to
competitors’ market share gained in top-loading washing machine
segment. During the year, sales of washing machine through the
Group’s integrated channel services amounted to RMB9,778
million, representing 65.8% of its total segmental sales.
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BUSINESS SEGMENT REVIEW (continued)
Washing Machine Business (continued)

The Group maintained its growth momentum despite the
challenging industry environment, as we have built a powerful
product development platform that enables the Group to
continuously innovate through generating new demand and
implementing new technology. We have attracted the world’s
leading suppliers to join our product platform through our open
supply chain, amongst which, our platform was also designed to
facilitate frequent interaction with consumers through online and
offline channels. Together with our smart factory and intelligent
manufacturing system, the Group has been able to closely follow

market trend and satisfy consumers’ diversified demands.

In 2014, the Group launched Ella Series washing machine, the
world’s first washer with water quality detection device and auto
detergent feature, which provides customized cleansing and fabric
care. Ella washers were well received and became the best-selling
products in higher-end front-loading washer segment. To solve the
“secondary pollution” during cleansing, the Group launched
world’s leading “clean free” washing machine after six years’
research and development with experts from various industries.
Both interior and exterior drums are being cleaned with “smart-
particles” during the cleansing and rinsing progress. “Clean free”
washing machine topped the high-end top-loading washing
machine market shortly after its launch.

In 2014, the Group constructed the world’s first smart connecting
factory for home appliances, which integrates internet technology
and advanced manufacturing technology. By utilizing intelligent
computing and flexible manufacturing, the Group’s smart factory
achieves real-time connection of among production facilities,
enabling the migration from mass production to customized mass
production.
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BUSINESS SEGMENT REVIEW (continued)
Washing Machine Business (continued)

Persisting on its customer-centric culture and focus on innovation,
the Group’s washing machines were well awarded. In the China
Household Appliance Industry Brand Assessment 2013-2014
organized by China Household Electrical Appliance Research
Institute, Haier ranked first of the Top 10 Washing Machine Brands
List.

Water Heater Business

The Group’s water heater business recorded a steady growth and
recorded revenue of RMB4,545 million, up 4.3% year-on-year
(2013: RMB4,358 million). According to the market data from
CMM, sales in the domestic water heater market were adversely
affected by a sluggish real estate market and dropped by 2.0%
year-on-year. During the year, with ongoing enhance in product
mix and the declining of raw material costs, gross profit margin of
the water heater segment increased by 0.7 percentage points

year-on-year to 36.2%.

In 2014, Haier’'s water heaters remained China’s number one
brand in terms of sales volume, with its market share declined by
1.1 percentage points to 17.2%, according to a market research
report by CMM. The group emphasized on growing the more
profitable electric water heater and gas water heater business,
which has resulted in competitors’ market share gain in solar water
heater segment. The sample data gathered by CMM mainly
represented the market information from appliances retailers in 846
domestic cities and counties, and may not match the Group’s
sales in 3rd and 4th-tier markets. During the year, the Group’s
water heater sales through its integrated channel services segment

accounted for 80.7% of the total sales, increased from 79.2% in
2013.
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BUSINESS SEGMENT REVIEW (continued)
Water Heater Business (continued)

During the year, to address consumers’ requirement on safety and
stable water temperature of gas water heaters, the Group launched
the Casarte Legend gas water heater series. By adopting the
aerospace purification technology, the Casarte Legend series
water heater can convert carbon monoxide into carbon dioxide
instantly with its NOCO nanometer platinum oxidation safety
system, preventing carbon monoxide leakage during showering.
Casarte Legend also realizes multi-location simultaneous hot water
supply with its dual water-server module, which enables stable
water temperature despite significant fluctuation in water pressure

conditions.

The Group was rewarded China’s Leading Intelligent Water Heater
Brand 2013-2014 and China’s Innovative Intelligent Water Heater
Brand 2013-2014 for its distinctive design and product features in
China’s Intelligent Water Heater Summit held in April 2014. Haier
E9 electric water heater and Heart of Fire T3 (12T) gas water
heaters both received Top 10 Intelligent Water Heaters award.

Integrated Channel Services Business

During the year, despite the moderate recovery in home appliance
industry, the Group’s integrated channel service business
recorded a robust growth in revenue, which increased by 8.1%
year-on-year to RMB62,233 million (2013: RMB57,568 million). We
saw strong progress in the following three areas: sales of third-
party brands continued to grow quickly and accounted for large
proportion of integrated channel services revenue. The Group
successfully expanded its e-commerce and home furniture
logistics business. Rapid development in logistics business has
exceeded the Group’s integration target. The Group’s online
business posted vigorous growth on the merits of effective
interaction with users and excellent delivery and installation

service.
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BUSINESS SEGMENT REVIEW (continued)
Logistics Unit

In 2014, the Group’s logistics business grew significantly on the
back of robust growth in e-commerce logistics and home
appliance and furniture logistics businesses. The segmental
revenue increased by 46.4% year-on-year to RMB4,912 million.
Leveraging on our nationwide network and our innovative services
that enhanced user experience, the Group’s third party logistics
business grew beyond the Group’s expectation at the beginning of
the Year. Third-party logistics revenue went up by more than
150%, accounting for over 40% of the overall logistics revenue. By
offering more value added services on the backdrop of continuous
innovation in our services, gross profit margin of the logistics
business increased by 0.2 percentage point to 8.3% in 2014.

Since the completion of Alibaba Group’s strategic investment and
the establishment of joint-venture for large-format goods logistics
in the first quarter of 2014, Goodaymart Logistics soon became the
primary logistic service provider for large home appliances
merchants on Tmall.com. The group provided one-stop solutions
and “bundling of delivery and installation” services on a nationwide
basis, enabling merchants to expand into 3rd and 4th-tier markets
which have been difficult to penetrate previously. In February
2015, Goodaymart Logistics lined up with Cainiao Network to offer

large home appliances delivery service to Tibet for Tmall

merchants, terminating the age of “no-delivery to Tibet”.
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BUSINESS SEGMENT REVIEW (continued)
Logistics Unit (continued)

In early 2014, the Group acquired Shanghai Boyol New Brothers
Supply Chain Management Company Limited (“Boyol”), a leading
logistics service provider of furniture and bathroom fixtures in the
PRC. The acquisition has created significant synergy and
expanded our customer base, introducing new customers, e.g.
Yihua timber, Red Star Macalline. Its network coverage and service
capability have been expanded from major cities to the whole
nation. In the first year of consolidation, Boyol recorded over 30%
revenue growth. Leveraging on Boyol’s capability in providing “last
mile” furniture logistics service, the Group is committed to expand
its nationwide market network for furniture services, and establish
a leading professional third-party furniture logistic services

platform.

With Goodaymart Logistics’ 90 regional logistics centers by the
end of 2014, its warehousing capacity reached approximately
2,000,000 square meters, covering most of the 3rd and 4th-tier

markets nationwide.
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BUSINESS SEGMENT REVIEW (continued)
Online and Offline Distribution Unit
Distribution and Service Unit

The Group’s distribution business grew steadily in 2014 despite
slowdown in economy and the impact imposed on brick-and-motor
stores amid rapid growth of e-commerce. The Group worked
closely with Haier’s product development team to offer competitive
products designed for 3rd and 4th-tier markets to Haier franchisee
stores. Furthermore, the group’s franchisee stores centered on the
essence of retail management, provided innovative value-added
services to customers and enhanced customer experience. The
tailored services and the “convenient services at the next door”
invented by our franchise stores quickly gained popularity. For
instance, our franchisees design the total solution of home
appliances based on consumers’ floor plan. The group franchisee
stores proactively apply internet technology, such as touch screen,
selling products in both offline and online space simultaneously, so
as to showcase a wide variety of products within limited store
space. Franchisee stores joined the Group’s newly developed B2B
trading platform in the past year to conduct the online trading and

settlement, which significantly enhance their operating efficiency.

In light of rapid growth of water purifiers sales, the Group
strengthened its interaction with users, and established water
purifier experience stores to provide vivid shopping environment
where users can touch and feel the products. Consumer can also
enjoy “Pay if you like it” service, which allows them to experience
before they make actual payment. The Group also deployed its
franchisee resources to conduct water quality sampling and
inspection in different regions, in order to provide customized
water purification solutions based on water quality in various
regions. These services have facilitated the rapid growth of our

water purifier business.
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BUSINESS SEGMENT REVIEW (continued)
Online and Offline Distribution Unit (continued)
Distribution and Service Unit (continued)

Looking forward, the Group will further optimize store management
and national network to provide more diversified and convenient
services to consumers and create more income streams for
franchisees. As at the end of the Year, the Group had over 30,000
points of sales nationwide.

E-commerce Unit

During the year, revenue of E-commerce unit soared 153.9% year-
on-year to RMB4,463 million. The Group expanded sales channels
such as JD.com and enhanced its marketing strategy to attract
young consumers. Catering for younger generation’s taste for more
entertaining and engaging marketing, the Group utilized social
media on mobile-internet, such as Weibo and WeChat, to
encourage sharing among social networks and to help promote

Haier Brand and increase its popularity.

Goodaymart Logistics considerably enhanced user experience
with its speedy delivery during the 2014 November 11th Shopping
Festival. In the first hour of which, Goodaymart Logistics completed
first orders for home appliance in 8 cities. Haier continued to rank
No.1 in home appliance category for the third straight year in
Tmall's November 11 Shopping Festival, with sales of RMB320
million. Both transaction amounts and volumes reached record
high. In addition to continuous record-breaking sales, Haier also
achieved outstanding performance in respect to mobile expansion.
Sales from mobile platforms exceeded RMB100 million during the
festival, showing good progress of the Group’s development in
interaction with users and mobile shopping channels.

D EPESEIRE (&)
BREGTEHET(E)
D RIRHET (&)

AR AEERE - FBAEPIEEREN 2 BEH
R REBERHEZ TN - EEENRE
WHASMBREEAEE ZHRARIR - BEFK
AEEAEZELAEIB 30,000 KHEHR -

SFEBET

FA - BEFHHEDBWARGREERK - AL
153 9% ZE AR 44631ETT —FHE  £F
TERBERE  RABERREZEERE  RERA
mephe 5—HHE SEREFE-—RKRENEE
RE L - 2EBMBY - BEHMIE - EERY
Mt R IREERSA P TRABEN Y Z - FEEL
APEFNEZEMMAR -

—T-mE (B EYE - BRIBYRAR
RECXBARIRTT TP BRGNS
—fE/ NS - B BB R E 8 E R T X AR
BEE—HE-[BRmEAARBI2ETHER
FoFERREET — IBYHNKEE —mig
ERRREBARRIRBRELATELH © I
THENBERKIN 8] REERBROR
RuEFHe -#H[8+— | BYaE KRB
MHEREBBARBIEL BRAREBER
HAPFPRE  WBHEBRENRATEREIR T
HIRUR e




PROSPECTS

In 2015, overall growth for traditional large home appliance market
may slow down. Lifestyle home appliances may however continue
its strong sales trend, underpinned by Chinese consumers’
growing desire for exquisite and personalized lifestyle. As the
domestic economy develops to the next chapter, overall domestic
consumption shall pick up amid increasing individual disposable
income. Consumers will prefer environmental-friendly and high-
end home appliances, driving the ongoing consumption upgrade
for home appliance industry. The continuing decline in commodity
prices gives home appliance manufacturers more rooms to invest
in R&D and innovation. The Chinese Government is also
introducing incentive policies to encourage manufacturing
enterprises to invest in upgrading production technology,
promoting industry upgrade for home appliance industry.

The Internet will continue to impact the landscape of distribution
and channel industry. E-commerce will continue to outgrow offline
channels because of rising penetration of the Internet and post-
80s and 90s generations’ preference for shopping online. In the
1st and 2nd-tier markets, e-commerce is highly penetrated, thanks
to earlier development of the Internet and better logistic services,
while penetration in the 3rd and 4th-tier markets is relatively lower
given underdeveloped delivery services. Retailers are expected
invest to accelerate the e-commerce development in the 3rd and
4th-tier markets. In light of the lack of logistic services and
consumers’ lack of confidence in e-commerce, the top priority
should be to strengthen “last mile” delivery services and onsite
user experience. The Group will gradually open up its
comprehensive sales network in the 3rd and 4th-tier markets,
motivating its franchisees to switch their strategic focus from sales

to user engagement and user experience generation.
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PROSPECTS (continued)

Information technology and supply chain management are
developing vigorously with increasing applications in logistic
industry. Professional third party logistics are replacing corporates’
internally-operated logistics units, promoting optimization of
division of duties for corporates. The logistic industry is undergoing
ongoing consolidation, leading to increased breadth and depth of
service coverage, enhanced end-to-end service capability and
scalability of the market consolidators. The Group will reinforce
investments in the logistics business and enhance its management
and merger integration capability, aiming to attract more third-

party logistics teams to join the Group’s platform.

RE (&)

EERMMHEEEETEER  AHEVRES
EZER  EXNE=TYREEZHIRARL
2R HBEEEENT - MRITELEE
REARENES  BARNYRAREEER
B REMELME LEBERA £ T8RS
—BILEFENRERCREERERD - AEEEYR:

BLameRs RABEEBMEERARES R
SIEZEENE=WREFEASENFE




Annual Report 2014 &£ 3§

Financial Review
Bt 7% Bl B8

T -NEAEEREEBENEE  FAKAE
AR#67,133,962,000 0 RM-ZZE—=F 2 AR
¥ 62,263,162,000 T K 7 7.8% » IR AR AR
HE AL & A A AR 2,446,605,0007T 0 B ZF
—=F 2 AR#2,036,882,000 T &K 7 20.1% °
AAREBBRBRREEFRAEN (ER) BARK
92199 * WEAFMARKB80.159 LF15.0% °

The Group achieved stable financial performance in 2014. The
Group’s revenue amounted to RMB67,133,962,000, representing
an increase of 7.8% from RMB62,263,162,000 in 2013. The profit
attributable to owners of the Company was RMB2,446,605,000,
representing an increase of 20.1% from RMB2,036,882,000 in
2013. The basic earnings per share attributable to ordinary equity
holders of the Company was RMB92.19 cents, representing an
increase of 15.0% from RMB80.15 cents in 2013.

1. ANALYSIS OF REVENUE AND PROFIT 1. WARBERDT
2014 2013 Change %
—E-NF —E-=F 2E
RMB’000 RMB’000
ltems HE ARET R ARBFT
Revenue WA
Washing machine business ST T 14,867,828 14,221,925 +4.5%
Water heater business KSR ERK 4,544,518 4,357,657 +4.3%
Integrated channel services RiBIERE RIBER
business 62,232,729 57,567,787 +8.1%
Inter-segment elimination R4 3 (14,511,113) (13,884,207) +4.5%
Consolidated revenue AftA 67,133,962 62,263,162 +7.8%
EBITDA EBITDA (SR EHHATHE ) 3,174,959 2,755,703 +15.2%
Profit attributable to owners of KRB RRE(EEF
the Company 2,446,605 2,036,882 +20.1%
Earnings per share attributable RAAEBIRARRIEN
to ordinary equity holders of SRAR
the Company
Basic (RMB) HER(ARE) 92.19 80.15 +15.0%
Diluted (RMB) BEARE) 89.76 78.14 +14.9%
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ANALYSIS OF REVENUE AND PROFIT (continued)

The revenue of the Group for 2014 continued to achieve
steady growth, increased by 7.8% to RMB67,133,962,000, as
compared to RMB62,263,162,000 in 2013. During the year,
the increase of revenue was mainly attributed to the rapid
growth of the integrated channel services business,
supplemented by the steady growth from the washing
machine and water heater businesses.

Revenue from the washing machine business amounted to
RMB14,867,828,000, representing an increase of 4.5% as
compared to RMB14,221,925,000 in 2013. The growth was
mainly attributed to launch of high-end innovative products
during the year and rapid expansion of online channels.

Revenue from water heater business amounted to
RMB4,544,518,000, representing an increase of 4.3% as
compared to RMB4,357,657,000 in 2013. The growth was
mainly driven by the rapid growth of the new energy saving,
more environmental friendly and safer water heater products.

Revenue from the integrated channel services business
amounted to RMB62,232,729,000, representing an increase
of 8.1% as compared to RMB57,567,787,000 in 2013.

The revenue increase in the integrated channel services
business was mainly attributed to relatively faster growth of
the logistics business and e-commerce channel business.
Specifically, the Group’s e-commerce business contributed to
the integrated channel services business with revenue of
RMB4,463,137,000, representing an increase of 153.9% as
compared to RMB1,757,922,000 in 2013.
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ANALYSIS OF REVENUE AND PROFIT (continued)
Profit attributable to owners of the Company

In 2014, the profit attributable to owners of the Company was
RMB2,446,605,000, representing an increase of 20.1% from
RMB2,036,882,000 in 2013. The basic earnings per share
attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Company was
RMB92.19 cents in 2014, representing an increase of 15.0%
from RMB80.15 cents in 2013. In 2014, the Group’s EBITDA
(earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation)
was RMB3,174,959,000, representing an increase of 15.2%
from RMB2,755,703,000 in 2013.

Gross Profit Margins

In 2014, the gross profit margin of the washing machine
business was 27.6%, increased by 0.3 percentage points
compared with 27.3% in 2013. The gross profit margin of the
water heater business was 36.2%, increased by 0.7
percentage points as compared with 35.5% in 2013. The
increase in the gross profit margin of the washing machine
business and the water heater business were mainly due to
the higher proportion of high-end products, improved

product mix and decreased costs of certain raw materials.

In 2014, the Group’s overall gross profit margin of the
integrated channel services business was 8.2%, which is in
line with that of 2013.

In 2014, the Group’s overall gross profit margin was 14.7%,
which is in line with that of 2013. Specifically, the
improvement of the gross profit margins in the washing
machine and water heater businesses were offset by the
increased proportion of integrated channel business with a

relatively lower gross profit margin.

1.
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ANALYSIS OF REVENUE AND PROFIT (continued) 1. WARBRDH (&)

Selling and Distribution Expenses HERDHER

The ratio of selling and distribution expenses of the washing BER M R KSR E T 2 HE R D IHE Rha&
machine and water heater businesses to its segment revenue EBDBWALEY T —=Fm14.3% L
increased by 0.5 percentage points from 14.3% in 2013 to AZ_Z—NFMN148%  EFATO5MEE
14.8% in 2014, which was mainly due to higher input via SE - FBRAFERE L AT o HEEN

interactive sales with potential customers, and enhanced
marketing expenses for the promotion of new products

during the year.

ISR AL RATEL ©

The ratio of selling and distribution expenses of the integrated RBFARBEBRNHE RS HERLZE
channel services business to its segment revenue decreased BOBERALER T —=FWN47%
by 0.2 percentage points from 4.7% in 2013 to 4.5% in 2014, 2T —NFENL5% TR T02EE D

which was mainly due to the rapider growth in the logistic
business with a lower ratio of selling and distribution

expenses.

Administrative Expenses

In 2014, the ratio of administrative expenses of the Group’s
washing machine and water heater businesses to its segment
revenue was 5.4%, representing a decrease of 0.8
percentage points from 6.2% in 2013, which was mainly due
to enhanced cost effectiveness as a result of the improved

organisational and operational efficiency.

In 2014, the ratio of administrative expenses of the integrated
channel services business to its segment revenue was 1.8%,
which is in line with that of 2013.
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Bt B8 (1)
FINANCIAL POSITION 2. BBRR

2014 2013
—E-NF —ZT—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ltems BH AR®Tx ARBFIT
Non-current assets EMEEE 3,710,293 2,851,266
Current assets mEEE 23,804,981 19,029,897
Current liabilities mENBE 13,120,619 12,431,096
Non-current liabilities ERHEE 2,292,615 1,392,403
Net assets EEFE 12,102,040 8,057,664

Cash and Cash Equivalents ReNBESEEER

In 2014, the Group maintained a healthy financial position.
The cash and cash equivalents balance increased by 60.2%
from RMB6,824,322,000 as at 31 December 2013 to
RMB10,929,888,000. The increase was mainly attributable to
the growth in net cash flows from financing and operating
activities during the year.

Net assets

In 2014, the Group’s net assets increased by 50.2% from
RMB8,057,664,000 as at 31 December 2013 to
RMB12,102,040,000 as at 31 December 2014. The increase
in net assets was mainly attributable to profit contribution of
RMB2,515,102,000 for the year and an increment in net
assets of RMB1,326,229,000 arising from the issue of new

shares during the year.
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FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)
Working Capital
Trade and Bills Receivables Turnover Days

The bills receivable turnover days of the Group’s washing
machine and water heater businesses was 43 days at the
end of 2014, representing a considerable decrease of 17
days as compared with the end of 2013, which was mainly
due to the increase in the cash settlement proportion for the
washing machine and water heater businesses by the
integrated channel services business as a result of the
centralized cash management of the Group. The trade
receivables turnover days of the Group’s washing machine
and water heater businesses was 15 days, representing
decrease of 1 day from the end of 2013. The proportion of
the bills receivable to the total trade and bills receivables
was 74.5% (31 December 2013: 78.4%), most of which were

bank’s acceptance bills with minimal risk of default.

In the integrated channel services business, the majority of
customers in the 3rd and 4th-tier markets are relatively small
customers, and the sales are generally under a payment
term of cash on delivery. Our business model aims at
reducing the customers’ working capital requirements and
facilitating the cash-settled payment method. In 2014, the
bills receivable turnover days decreased from 13 days at the
end of 2013 to 11 days. The trade receivables turnover days
at the end of 2014 was 11 days, which was consistent with
that of the end of 2013.
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FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)
Working Capital (continued)
Inventory Turnover Days

Under the Group’s Just-In-Time policy, the Group has
implemented a series of measurements including rolling
order forecasts, made-to-order and procured-to-order
productions, which helped maintain a relatively low inventory
level. At the end of 2014, the inventory turnover days of the
washing machine and water heater businesses was 25 days,
increased by 3 days as compared to the end of 2013, which
was mainly attributed to the increase in production capacity
of front-loading washing machines for the current year,
assuring the goods supply for the peak sales before Spring
Festival.

As at the end of 2014, inventory turnover days of the Group’s
integrated channel services business was 19 days,
representing an increase of 3 days as compared to the end
of 2013. That was mainly attributed to the increased inventory
level of the distribution network for sales in the Spring

Festival, which was three weeks later than prior year.

Trade Payables Turnover Days

The trade payables turnover days of the Group’s washing
machine and water heater businesses was 31 days at the
end of 2014. The trade payables turnover days of the
integrated channel services business was 11 days,

maintaining a relatively low level.
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B 75 21 8 (48)
3. CASH FLOW ANALYSIS 3. HEREBHIWN
2014 2013
—E-mE —T-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ltems BB ARBT R ARBTFT
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in FH) 2 A BARR TR 52
the statement of financial position RekREEE
at beginning of year 6,824,322 5,368,308
Net cash flows from operating activities KEETH IR REFHE 2,902,971 2,210,030
Net cash flows used in investing activities REE RS REFRE
(excluding the changes in time deposits (HBR=MAMU L2
over three months) THETFERZEH) (954,709) (807,029)
Net cash flows from financing activities MEEFH R REFE 2,149,105 73,200
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net [ & & 8 5 2 % 58 8,199 (20,187)
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in FRZBBARNKF T2
the statement of financial position RekREEE
at end of year 10,929,888 6,824,322
The Group’s net cash inflow from operating activities TE-MEAKEKEER 2 REMAFRE
increased by 31.4% in 2014 as compared with 2013, which R_E—=FEA314% FEZRFEEH
was mainly due to the growth in net cash flows from the profit BT RIS REF LR AT A
of the operating activities during the year, as well as the BEeER  HEENUREREA -

improved working capital efficiency as a result of intensified

cash management.
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CASH FLOW ANALYSIS (continued)

Net cash outflow from investing activities (excluding the
changes in time deposits over three months) for the year was
RMB954,709,000, increased by 18.3% compared with that of
last year. Cash flow from investing activities mainly included
decrease in pledged deposits of RMB115,254,000 and cash
payments of RMB834,032,000 for capital expenditure items.
The items of capital expenditure consist of the construction
of additional logistics warehouse, the purchase of plant and
equipment for capacity expansion and other investment
projects.

Net cash inflow from financing activities was
RMB2,149,105,000 during the year, which mainly included
inflows upon exercise of warrants (RMB361,728,000), share
options (RMB76,198,000), proceeds from new share
subscriptions by Alibaba Group (RMB773,334,000),
contribution from minority shareholders (RMB428,435,000)
and issue of convertible and exchangeable bonds (“CEB”)
(RMB1,055,023,000).

Cash outflow from financing activities mainly included

repayment of net borrowings for the year (RMB194,632,000),
payment of dividends (RMB232,825,000), interest payment
of convertible bonds and borrowing (RMB29,558,000) and
payment for shares purchased for Restricted Share Award
Scheme (RMB88,598,000).
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group focuses on cash flow management and has been able
to maintain a healthy financial and liquidity position. The Group
recorded a current ratio of 181.4% as at 31 December 2014,
representing an increase of 28.3 percentage points compared with
153.1% in 2013. As at 31 December 2014, the Group’s cash and
cash equivalents balance amounted to RMB10,929,888,000 (31
December 2013: RMB6,824,322,000). Bank and other borrowings
amounted to RMB nil (31 December 2013: RMB174,633,000).
Shareholder’s borrowings amounted to RMB24,916,000 (31
December 2013: RMB24,301,000). The liabilities portion of the
convertible bonds was RMB776,319,000 (31 December 2013:
RMB716,835,000) and the liabilities portion of the CEB was
RMB1,024,382,000 (31 December 2013: nil), respectively. As a
result, the Group’s net cash balance (cash and cash equivalents
balance, net of bank and other borrowings, shareholder’s
borrowings, the liabilities portion of the convertible bonds and the
liabilities portion of the CEB) as at 31 December 2014 amounted to
RMB9,104,271,000 (31 December 2013: RMB5,908,553,000),

representing an increase of 54.1% over 2013.

The Group will maintain strong operating cash flows and sources
of liquidity in 2015 that are adequate to meet its working capital
requirements for the next year, construction of intelligent logistics
network and the e-commerce platform, as well as to maintain

financial flexibility for future strategic investment opportunities.
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USE OF PROCEEDS FROM ISSUE OF EQUITY AND
CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES

On 6 December 2013, the Group and the Alibaba Group agreed
on a strategic collaboration through the Strategic Investments
Agreements to further develop the Group’s logistics business
carried out by Qingdao Goodaymart Logistics Co., Ltd. (“Qingdao
Logistics”). On 20 March 2014, the Company issued CEB to
Alibaba Group with the principal amount of HK$1,316,036,000.
The Company also issued 52,389,996 ordinary shares of the
Company of HK$0.1 each to Alibaba Group for net proceeds
which, after taking into account the expenses in relation to the
share subscription, amounted to approximately HK$960,657,000,
representing a net price of approximately HK$18.34 per
subscription share. Further details are shown in notes 34 and 37 to
the financial statements. By the date of 26 March 2015, the
proceeds from the above issue of shares and CEB has been used
for the construction of logistics warehouses (approximately
RMB493 million) and for partial settlement of an acquisition in the
logistics industry (approximately RMB605 million) and the
remaining will be mainly used for “last-mile” network development

and other investment on online-to-offline integration.

During the year, Hawaii Asia Holdings Limited has exercised
40,000,000 warrants. The proceeds amounted to RMB361,728,000
will be used in the integrated channel services business related
investment.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

The Company assesses its capital expenditure and investments in
the businesses of the washing machine, water heater and
integrated channel services from time to time. The capital
expenditure during the year was RMB834,032,000, which was
mainly used for the investments of the Company in developing the
integrated channel services, including the construction of logistics

warehouse as well as factory equipment modifications for washing

machines and water heaters.
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GEARING RATIO

As at 31 December 2014, the Group’s gearing ratio (defined as
total borrowings (including the liabilities portion of convertible
bonds and the liabilities portion of CEB) over net assets) was
15.1% (31 December 2013: 11.4%).

TREASURY POLICIES

The Group adopts a prudent approach in its cash management
and risk control. Most of the Group’s revenues and expenses are
denominated in Renminbi. Cash is generally placed in short term
deposits denominated either in Renminbi or Hong Kong dollars.
Foreign currency risk is largely, though not fully, mitigated, as
liabilities in Renminbi will be substantially offset by the Group’s
revenue, most of which are derived from domestic sales in China
and denominated in Renminbi. Only approximately 8.7% of the
Group’s revenue is derived from export sales and is denominated
in other currencies. The Group does not have any significant
interest rate risk as it has an overall net cash balance. The Group
does not have any financial instrument for hedging purposes.

CAPITAL COMMITMENT

The Group’s capital commitments contracted but not yet provided
for amounted to RMB1,558,935,000 as at 31 December 2014 (31
December 2013: RMB258,342,000), which were mainly related to
the purchase of machinery for the Group’s businesses capacity
expansion as well as construction of warehouse for the logistics
business and the capital introduction of Sinopec Marketing. Capital
commitments authorised but not yet contracted amounted to
RMB486,906,000 (31 December 2013: RMB20,766,000) which
mainly related to the warehouse construction for the logistics
business in 2015.
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CHARGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2014, the Group did not have short-term bank
loans secured by floating charges over inventories (31 December
2013: RMB61,540,000).

Further, as at 31 December 2014, certain of the Group’s bills
payable were secured by the pledge of the Group’s bank deposits
of RMB101,459,000 (31 December 2013: RMB220,350,000) and
the Group’s bills receivable of RMB77,271,000 (31 December
2013: RMB76,842,000).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At the end of the reporting period, neither the Group nor the

Company had any significant contingent liabilities.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

The total number of employees of the Group decreased by
approximately 5.3% to 15,637 as at 31 December 2014 from
16,506 as at 31 December 2013. The Group ensures that the
remuneration packages for its employees remain competitive, and
its employees are generally remunerated with fixed monthly

salaries, which are reviewed annually, along with discretionary

performance bonuses.
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DIVIDENDS

The Board has proposed a final dividend of HK11 cents per share
in cash to shareholders whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company on Thursday, 9 July 2015 for the year
ended 31 December 2014. All the dividends will be paid upon
approval by shareholders at the Company’s forthcoming annual
general meeting. The final dividend will be paid on around Friday,
14 August 2015.

This dividend represented approximately 10% of the profit
attributable to the owners of the Company for the year, and will be
distributed out of the contributed surplus account of the Company.
The Group shall retain sufficient cash for maintaining a strong
financial position for capturing strategic investments when
opportunities arise, and in particular, achieving the financial
flexibility in relation to investments in the integrated channel
services business. The Company will review the payout ratio in the
coming period and will increase that ratio as and when
appropriate.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) and the
management (the “Management”) of Haier Electronics Group Co.,
Ltd. (the “Company”) recognise that sound corporate practices are
crucial to the efficient operation of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) and the safeguarding of our
shareholders’ interests. In this regard, the Board attaches great
priority to reinforce the Company’s corporate governance
standards with emphasis on transparency, accountability and
independence in order to enhance our long-term shareholders’

value.

The Company has complied with the applicable code provisions
(the “Code Provision(s)”) and principles under the Corporate
Governance Code (the “Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
during the year except for certain deviations as described below.
The Board shall review its code from time to time to ensure its
continuous compliance with the Code. This report describes the
Company’s corporate governance practices, explains its
applications of and deviations from the Code, together with

considered reasons for such deviations.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Composition

As at 31 December 2014, the Board currently comprises one
Executive Director, five Non-executive Directors and three

Independent Non-executive Directors (the “INED(s)”").

The Board has at least one-third in number of its members
comprising INEDs throughout the year. The Company has also
fulfilled the requirements of the composition of the Company’s
audit committee, remuneration committee and the nomination

committee under the Listing Rules.

At least one of the INEDs possesses appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise under Rule 3.10 of the Listing Rules. The Directors are
well-versed in respective areas such as accounting and finance,
business management and industry knowledge and the Board as
a whole has achieved an appropriate balance of skills and
experience. The Directors’ biographical details, by category of
Directors, are set out on pages 21 to 32 of this annual report.

To the best of the Company’s knowledge, there is no financial or
family relationship among the Board members. All of them are free
to exercise their independent judgment on all matters concerning
the Company.

Under Code Provision A.4.1, non-executive directors should be
appointed for specific terms, subject to re-election. Currently, all
non-executive directors of the Company are not appointed for a
specific term but are subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election at the annual general meeting of the Company (the
“AGM”") in accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws and their

appointment will be reviewed when they are due for re-election.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Composition (continued)

The Bye-laws have stated clearly the procedures for the
appointment of new directors, re-election and removal of directors.
Under the Bye-laws, the Board may from time to time appoint a
director either to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the
Board. Any such new director shall hold office until the next
following general meeting of the Company or until the next
following AGM and shall then be eligible for re-election at the same

general meeting.

Board diversity policy

The Company has adopted the board diversity policy during the
year 2013. The Company recognizes and embraces the benefits of
having a diverse Board to enhance the quality of its performance
and as an essential element in maintaining strategic objectives and
sustainable development. The Company continues to review and
enhance the level of board diversity when refreshing and renewing
board membership. All Board appointment will be based on merits
against objective criteria and with due regards for benefits and
balance of diversity on the Board. Board diversity will be
considered in terms of, among other things age, gender,
educational and cultural background, expertise, industry
experience and independence, in order to complement and extend

the skills, know-how and experience of the Board.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Delegation by the Board

The Directors are collectively responsible for setting the Group’s
strategies, providing leadership and guidance to put them into
effect, reviewing and monitoring the performance of the Group and
are accountable to the Company’s shareholders. To maximise the
effectiveness of the Group’s operations, the Board has delegated
management and administration of the Group’s daily operations to
the Executive Directors and the Management while reserving
several important matters for its approval. To this end, the Board
has adopted written guidelines (the “Guidelines”) laying down the
division of functions between the Board and the Management
(including the Executive Directors for the purpose of the

Guidelines).

Pursuant to the Guidelines, the major functions of the Board and

the Management are summarized as follows:

The Board is principally responsible for:

1. determining the overall strategy;

2. reviewing all significant policies of the Group;

3. monitoring the performance of the Management to ensure
that the business operations of the Group are properly

planned and undertaken;

4. approving interim and annual results of the Group based on
recommendations made by the audit committee of the

Company;
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Delegation by the Board (continued)

5.

approving material contracts and transactions for which the
Management is required to obtain the Board’s prior approval;
and

subject to the requirements of the Listing Rules, approving
transactions in which connected person(s) (as defined in the
Listing Rules) of the Group is/are considered having a
material conflict of interests.

The Management is principally responsible for:

exercising all such other powers and performing all such
other acts as may be exercised and performed by the
Directors, save and except for those that may specifically be
reserved by the Board and/or the committees set up by the
Board for decision and implementation; or those that may
only be exercised by the Board pursuant to The Companies
Act of Bermuda, the Bye-laws of the Company (the “Bye-
laws”), the Listing Rules and/or the Hong Kong Codes on
Takeovers and Mergers and Share Repurchases;

formulating and implementing policies for business activities,
internal controls and administration of the Company;

planning and deciding the Company’s strategies on its
business activities; and

keeping proper written records of its decisions taken which
may be inspected by any members of the Board or the Board

committees upon request.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Delegation by the Board (continued)

The Board reviews those arrangements and the Guidelines on a
periodic basis to ensure that they remain appropriate to the needs
of the Group.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer (“CEO”)

Under Code Provision A.2.1, the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer (“CEQ”) should be separated and should not be
performed by the same individual. During the year, Mr. Zhou Yun
Jie (“Mr. Zhou”), an Executive Director, had served as the
chairman and also the CEO of the Company. After evaluation of
the current situation of the Company and taking into account the
experience and past performance of Mr. Zhou, the Board is of the
opinion that it is appropriate and in the best interests of the Group
at the present stage for Mr. Zhou to hold both positions as the
chairman and CEO of the Company as it helps to maintain the
continuity of the policies and the stability of the operations of the
Group. It also helps to promote the efficient formulation and
implementation of the Company'’s strategies which will enable the
Group to seize business opportunities efficiently and promptly. The
Board comprising a vast majority of non-executive Directors also
meets regularly on a quarterly basis to review the operations of the
Group and to consider other major matters affecting the business
of the Group. Accordingly, the Board believes that this
arrangement will not have negative influence on the balance of
power and authorizations between the Board and the management
of the Company. In addition, through the continuing supervision of
the Board and its independent non-executive Directors, checks
and balances continue to exist so that the interests of the
shareholders are continued to be adequately and fairly
represented.

BExg(A)
ExgoREHE)

SReTimd bl 2 RIEs] - EREEFR
BERIESDA A A KRR ZFE -

ERERTHRAR(1THAR])

RIESTRMERICE A2.1 16 - E/F EITHAEL ([1TR
BEDZzABERERY A TEH— AFRME-F
A ATEFAEN(ELEDEERRARERE -
WIRFRAEITHRARE, » BRHEARRRNLEEF
TENKREAERRR  EFERRERERA
FRERTARRER RITRAKMERLZES
BREAANEENKENS S ARASESE
FHBENWCEEREBOREN - ENERER
ARBHIFT RATREORE - SAKEAUER
MEFHMEEEE EESRBASHOFNTE
EER TEHREBFERITER  BIAE
BHEBAREBEFEASEXGNEGMERS
HeRAilb EF2REAHENTHRTIEHAR
RESSREIRE 2MOZNMERNFESR
BEPE U EEFERBIIIFRTESH
FEZET BBHE®S  REROFSERE
WIFATE D B FHIREIR -




BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
INEDs

The INEDs have the same duties of care and skill and fiduciary
duties as the Executive Directors. They are expressly identified as
such in all corporate communications that disclose the names of
the Directors.

The INEDs are experienced professionals with expertise in areas
of accounting and finance, and business management. With their
professional knowledge and experience, the INEDs advise the
Company on its operation and management; provide independent
opinion on the Company’s connected/continuing connected
transactions; participate in the Company’s audit committee
meetings, remuneration committee meetings, nomination
committee meetings and strategic committee meetings. The INEDs
also contribute to provide adequate checks and balance to protect
the interests of the Company and the Company’s shareholders as

a whole, and to promote the development of the Company.

The Company has received an annual confirmation of
independence from each of the INEDs pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules and considers that all INEDs to be independent as
the date of this report.

Supply of and access to information

Newly appointed Directors will receive induction packages
containing the duties and responsibilities of directors under the
Listing Rules and other applicable rules and regulations.

All the Directors are briefed and updated from time to time on the
latest legislative and regulatory developments to ensure that they

are fully aware of their responsibilities under the Listing Rules,

applicable legal and regulatory requirements.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Supply of and access to information (continued)

In order to ensure that their duties can be properly discharged, the
Directors are entitled to seek advice from independent professional
advisers whenever deemed necessary by them at the Company’s
expense.

Professional development

The Company encourages the Directors to attend any relevant
programme to enhance their knowledge so as to discharge their
duties and responsibilities more effectively. During the year, all
Directors have attended various relevant training programmes
which include:

(a) Participation in conferences and seminars organized by
various external organizations relevant to the business or
directors’ duties, and for update on corporate governance.
Mr. Zhou Yun Jie, Mr. Liang Hai Shan, Ms. Tan Li Xia, Ms.
Janine Junyuan Feng, Dr. Wang Han Hua, Mr. Zhang Yong,
Mr. Yu Hon To, David, Mrs. Eva Cheng Li Kam Fun, Ms. Tsou
Kai-Lien, Rose, Mr. Gui Zhaoyu and Mr. Li Hua Gang have
attended the relevant conferences and seminars.

(b) Private study of materials relevant to the director’s duties and
responsibilities. Mr. Zhou Yun Jie, Mr. Liang Hai Shan, Ms.
Tan Li Xia, Ms. Janine Junyuan Feng, Dr. Wang Han Hua, Mr.
Zhang Yong, Mr. Yu Hon To, David, Mrs. Eva Cheng Li Kam
Fun, Ms. Tsou Kai-Lien, Rose, Mr. Gui Zhaoyu and Mr. Li Hua
Gang have undertaken the private study.

(c) In-house training session organized by the Company for new
directors which was conducted by professional relating to
the duties and responsibilities of directors under the Listing
Rules and other applicable rules and regulations. Ms. Tsou
Kai-Lien, Rose attended the session.

The Company Secretary of the Company, who is a full-time
employee of the Company, has taken no less than 15 hours of
relevant professional training.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Board meetings

During the year ended 31 December 2014, apart from the adhoc
meetings and consents obtained by means of written resolutions of
all the Board members, the Board had held four scheduled
meetings at approximately quarterly intervals to review and
approve, among other things, the 2013 annual results and 2014
interim results, the overall Group’s strategy, discloseable and
connected transactions of the Group. The Company’s board
meetings (the “Board Meeting(s)”) are permitted to be held by
means of telephone or other means of electronic communication
under the Bye-laws.

Sufficient notices are served and comprehensive information is
provided to the Board members in advance of all the Board
Meetings in order to enable them to make informed decisions on

all matters transacted at the Board Meetings.

The proceedings of the Board Meetings are conducted by the
Chairman of the Board or another Executive Director who ensures
that sufficient time is allowed for discussion among the Directors
and equal opportunities are being given to the Directors to express
their views and share their concerns.

The Company Secretary attends the Board Meetings to advise
Directors on corporate governance practices, and statutory
compliance, accounting and financial issues whenever deemed
necessary by the Board.

The Company Secretary is responsible for preparing minutes
recording all matters transacted and resolved at the Board
Meetings. All the Board minutes are kept by the Company

Secretary and are open for inspection by the Directors.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued) BExg(#)
Exgelm(E)

The following table shows the attendance of the Directors at the TRABEBEZE-ZT—MF+_A=+—HIEFEA
scheduled Board Meetings during the year ended 31 December EZZERTHEFCTEH2HFER

Board meetings (continued)

/6

2014:
No. of the
scheduled
Board
meetings
attended/held
HE BT
EHEEE
BERE
Executive Directors: BITES:
Mr. Zhou Yun Jie (Chairman) BERFEE(EE) 4/4
Mr. Li Hua Gang TERLAE
(retired on 26 March 2014) (R=ZF—WFE=H =+ ~HiRF) 0/1
Non-executive Directors: FHITES :
Mr. Liang Hai Shan 2811%4%E 0/4
Mr. Li Hua Gang FEM KA
(alternate to Mr. Liang Hai Shan and (BB FEEZBETES -
appointed on 7 June 2014) RZF—PEFENHAEHEZF) 2/2
Ms. Tan Li Xia EBEXL 4/4
Ms. Janine Junyuan Feng BEL LT 4/4
Dr. Wang Han Hua FEEHL 4/4
Mr. Zhang Yong REBEE
(appointed on 25 March 2014) (R=ZFE—WFE=A=+AHEZ(F) 3/4
INEDs: BYFHTES:
Mr. Yu Hon To, David AEE LA 4/4
Dr. Liu Xiao Feng (retired on 6 June 2014) RIS+ (R - —mFEN ANHRT) 1/1
Mrs. Eva Cheng Li Kam Fun e3P 4/4
Ms. Tsou Kai-Lien, Rose Bt
(appointed on 7 June 2014) (R=ZFE—ENA+HEZEF) 2/2




BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Board meetings (continued)

It is challenging to arrange the Board Meeting that fits in with the
tight and busy schedules of all the Directors. In particular, as
certain of the Non-executive Directors devote considerable time
and efforts to the management and operation of the Group’s
business, they were only able to attend some of the Board
Meetings in person and their attendance rate at the Board
Meetings were relatively low during the year. To enable all the
Directors to keep abreast of the Group’s latest development and to
discharge their duties properly, the Company Secretary briefed the
Directors on those matters transacted at the Board Meetings that
they were unable to attend. In addition, draft and final versions of
the Board minutes were sent to all Directors for their comments
and records.

Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors

The Company has adopted a Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors (the “Haier Electronics Model Code”) on
no less exacting terms than the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix 10
to the Listing Rules. Upon enquiry by the Company, all directors of
the Company have confirmed that they have complied with the
required standard as set out in the Haier Electronics Model Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2014.

In addition, the Board has adopted written guidelines (the
“Employees’ Guidelines for Securities Transactions”) for securities
transactions by employees (the “Relevant Employees”) who are
likely to be in possession of unpublished price sensitive information
of the Company on no less exacting terms than the Haier
Electronics Model Code. Having made specific enquiries of all the
Relevant Employees, the Company confirmed that all the Relevant
Employees had complied with the required standard as set out in

the Employees’ Guidelines for Securities Transactions throughout
the year ended 31 December 2014.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Board Committees

The Board has established an Audit Committee (the “Audit
Committee”), a Remuneration Committee (the “Remuneration
Committee”), a Nomination Committee (the “Nomination
Committee”) and a Strategic Committee (the “Strategic
Committee”) (collectively the “Committees”) to oversee specific
aspects of the Company’s affairs. The Committees report to the
Board regularly, and have been provided with sufficient resources
to discharge their respective duties. To reinforce independence,
the chairman of the Committees other than the Strategic Committee
is an INED. Each of the Committees has adopted specific terms of
reference covering its duties, powers and functions which will be
reviewed by the Board from time to time. The Company Secretary
also acts as secretary of the Committees. The Committees adopt
as far as practicable, the procedures and arrangement of the
Board Meeting in relation to the conduct of meetings, notice of
meetings and recording of minutes. Further particulars of each of
the Committees are set out below:

(1) Audit Committee

The Audit Committee currently comprises one Non-executive
Director and two INEDs, and is chaired by Mr. Yu Hon To,
David. Mr. Yu is a professional accountant and was formerly
a partner of an international accounting firm. The terms of
reference (revised) of the Audit Committee are available on
the respective websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to ensure the
objectivity and credibility of financial reporting, to make
recommendation to the Board on the appointment,
reappointment and removal of the Group’s external auditors
and review of the Company’s financial controls, internal
control and risk management systems. Each member of the
Audit Committee has unrestricted access to the Group’s
external auditors and the Management.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Board Committees (continued)

(1)

Audit Committee (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Audit
Committee held three meetings to review the management
and accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Group and to discuss financial reporting matters including
the review of 2013 annual results and 2014 interim results of
the Group, review the adequacy of resources, accounting
staff qualifications and experience, training programmes and
budget of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting
function, review of the internal control procedures and the
connected transactions and other related issues.

There is no disagreement between the Board and the Audit
Committee regarding the selection, appointment, resignation
or dismissal of external auditors. The Audit Committee also
met the external auditors at least twice without the presence
of the Executive Directors.

The annual results for the year ended 31 December 2014

were also reviewed by the Audit Committee.

The Board also has adopted the arrangement for employees
of the Company to raise genuine concerns about possible
improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or other
matters in the Company and its subsidiaries. The Audit

Committee monitors the execution of this arrangement.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Board Committees (continued)

(1) Audit Committee (continued)

The following table shows the attendance of members of the

Audit Committee during the year ended 31 December 2014:

BExg(A)
Ezgz8e(8)

No. of Audit
Committee
meetings
attended/held
HE BTz
EREES
BERE
Non-executive Director: FHITES :
Ms. Tan Li Xia EEELL
(appointed as member on 6 June 2014) (RZE—NEXANBEZIAZESKE) 2/2
INEDs: BYFHTES:
Mr. Yu Hon To, David BIEE A 3/3
Mrs. Eva Cheng Li Kam Fun Ll o 3/3
Dr. Liu Xiao Feng (retired on 6 June 2014) BREIE B+ (R - — & X AN HET) 1/1

(2) Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises three

members including one Executive Director, namely Mr. Zhou
Yun Jie, and two INEDs (Mrs. Eva Cheng Li Kam Fun and Mr.
Yu Hon To, David). Dr. WANG Han Hua has also acted as the
observer. The Remuneration Committee is chaired by Mrs.

Eva Cheng Li Kam Fun, an INED. The terms of reference

(revised) of the Remuneration Committee are available on the

respective websites of the Company and the Stock

Exchange.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued) BExg(#)
Ezgz8e(8)

2) FHESE(E)

Board Committees (continued)

(2) Remuneration Committee (continued)

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are to
make recommendations to the Board on policy and structure
of all remuneration of the Directors and senior management.
Each of the Directors has not involved in the determination of
his/her own remuneration. The Remuneration Committee
meets at least once a year.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee has held one
meeting. At the meeting, members of the Remuneration
Committee reviewed and made recommendations to the
Board the remuneration proposal of the Directors and senior
management by taking into account factors such as
remuneration packages and benefits offered by comparable
companies, the respective contribution of each of the
Directors and senior management to the Group and the
business objectives of the Group. The Remuneration
Committee also considered the performance-based structure
of the remuneration of Executive Directors and senior

management.

The Remuneration Committee has adopted the model that it
will review the proposals made by the management on the
remuneration of Executive Directors and senior management,
and make recommendations to the Board. The Board will
have final authority to approve the recommendations made

by the Remuneration Committee.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Board Committees (continued)
(2) Remuneration Committee (continued)

The following table shows the attendance of members of the
Remuneration Committee during the year ended 31

BExg(A)
Ezgz8e(8)
2) FHESE(E)

B HERRREZ RRBEE

December 2014:
No. of
Remuneration
Committee
meetings
attended/held
HEBiTZ
FHEES
=8
Executive Director: HITEE:
Mr. Zhou Yun Jie AEREE 171
Non-executive Directors: FHITES
Ms. Janine Junyuan Feng HEILZ T
(retired as member of committee on (R=—ZF—PgFNHANHE
6 June 2014) REZEEHKE) 171
Mr. Gui Zhaoyu FRFEE
(alternate to Ms. Janine Junyuan Feng) UEETLZ L ZEEA) 1/1
INEDs: BYFATES:
Mrs. Eva Cheng Li Kam Fun B3R5 22 1/1
Mr. Yu Hon To, David BNEE LA 1/

Dr. Liu Xiao Feng (retired on 6 June 2014)

BB L (R —F—FNHNHRE)
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Board Committees (continued)

(3)

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was formed on 19 September
2008 and currently comprises three members including one
Executive Director, namely, Mr. Zhou Yun Jie, and two INEDs
(Mr. Yu Hon To, David and Mrs. Eva Cheng Li Kam Fun). The
Nomination Committee is chaired by Mr. Yu Hon To David, an
INED. The Nomination Committee meets at least once a year.
The terms of reference (revised) of the Nomination Committee
are available on the respective websites of the Company and
the Stock Exchange.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for formulating
nomination policy and making recommendations to the Board
on nomination and appointment of Directors and Board
succession. It also develops selection procedures of
candidates for nomination, reviews the structure, size and
composition of the Board and assesses the independence of

the INEDs.

Nomination procedures include identification and
acknowledgement of qualified individuals by the Nomination
Committee and review and approval of such nomination by
the Board. The Nomination Committee is to evaluate potential
candidates by considering factors such as professional
expertise, relevant experience, personal ethics and integrity.
It also advises the Board in considering the suitability of the

re-election of the Directors who are subject to the retirement

by rotation at the AGM in accordance with the Bye-laws.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Board Committees (continued)

(3)

Nomination Committee (continued)

The Nomination Committee monitors the execution of the
Board diversity policy of the Company. Selection will be
based on a range of diversity perspectives, including but not
limited to, professional experience, business insight, skills,
know-how, gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnic and length of services. It will review the
Board diversity policy as appropriate and recommend any
revisions to the policy to the Board for consideration and
approval as required.

During the year, the Nomination Committee has held one
meeting. At the meeting, members of the Nomination
Committee have identified and recommended qualified
individual to the Board for the appointment of directors,
reviewed the composition of the Board, and advised the
Board on the suitability of the retirement and re-election of
the Directors at the annual general meeting.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Board Committees (continued)

(3)

Nomination Committee (continued)

The following table shows the attendance of members of the

Nomination Committee during the year ended 31 December
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B REEERRAZ GRHEE

2014:
No. of
Nomination
Committee
meetings
attended/held
HiE S BiTZ
REEES
BBRE
Executive Director: HITEE:
Mr. Zhou Yun Jie AEREE 171
Non-executive Directors: FHITES
Ms. Janine Junyuan Feng HEILZ T
(retired as member of committee on (R=—ZF—PgFNHANHE
6 June 2014) REZEEHKE) 1/1
Mr. Gui Zhaoyu FRFEE
(alternate to Ms. Janine Junyuan Feng) UEETLZ L ZEEA) 1/1
INEDs: BYFATES:
Mr. Yu Hon To, David BEELE 1/1
Mrs. Eva Cheng Li Kam Fun L o 1/1
Dr. Liu Xiao Feng (retired on 6 June 2014) B IgiE+ (R —F—mFE N ANHRELT) 11
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Board Committees (continued)

(4)

Strategic Committee

The Strategic Committee was formed on 18 October 2011
and currently comprises four members including one
Executive Director, namely, Mr. Zhou Yun Jie, one INED,
namely, Ms. Tsou Kai-Lien, Rose and two Non-executive
Directors namely, Ms. Janine Junyuan Feng (with Mr. Gui
Zhaoyu as her alternate director) (unconnected with the
Company, Haier Group Corporation, Qingdao Haier Co., Ltd.,
Qingdao Haier Investment and Development Co., Ltd. and
their respective subsidiaries), and Mr. Zhang Yong. Dr.
WANG Han Hua has also acted as the observer. The
Strategic Committee is chaired by Mr. Zhou Yun Jie. The
Strategic Committee shall meet four times a year.

The purpose of the Strategy Committee shall be to prepare
recommendations for the Board in fulfilling its responsibilities
relating to (a) the development, articulation, and execution of
the Company’s long term strategic plan, and (b) the review,
evaluation, and approval of certain strategic transactions,
including but not limited to acquisitions, mergers,
divestitures, financings, capital structure and joint ventures.

The primary duties of the Strategic Committee are to review
the major long term strategic proposals of the Group, review
the issue, offer or sale of shares or other equity securities of
the Company for the purposes of funding acquisitions or
investments made or new businesses undertaken by the
Group, review the proposed initial or follow-on equity
investment by the Company through the establishment of a
new business or venture or other means, review and
comment on the annual budgets of the Group taken as a
whole, and thereafter recommend to the Board for its

consideration and approval.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued) B2 (A)

Board Committees (continued) EEgZEg (&)

(4) Strategic Committee (continued) (4) BRZEE(E)
During the year, the Strategic Committee has held four %ﬁﬁkééﬁaﬁf\\iﬁqﬁiﬁﬂ}/’igg ;o BUARZE
meetings. At the meeting, members of the Strategic S@REED FEHEREBGEA ¥R 2B
Committee have discussed the strategies on and the BE &gﬁe):' Sz wHEEeERERERS
development plans of the integrated channel business and s — LU - A HE R EERS S

made recommendations to the Board. The strategic
transactions, such as the mergers and acquisitions, were

reviewed.
The following table shows the attendance of members of the TRREE-_ZT—NF+-_A=+—HIF
Strategic Committee during the year ended 31 December ERN - BBEEEXNE @R LFE
2014:
No. of
Strategic
Committee
meetings
attended/held
HE BTz
BREES
BERE
Executive Director: iﬁlﬁﬁ? :
Mr. Zhou Yun Jie BERTE 4/4
Non-executive Directors: FHITES
Ms. Janine Junyuan Feng BT T 4/4
Mr. Zhang Yong KBS
(appointed on 25 March 2014) (R-F—FE=H -+ A HEZT) 3/4
INEDs: BYFHTES:
Ms. Tsou Kai-Lien, Rose BrELt
(appointed on 7 June 2014) (R=ZF—MFENF+HEZT) 2/2
Dr. Liu Xiao Feng (retired on 6 June 2014) RERiE L (R=ZF—mWFE N ANHRE) 1/1
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Corporate Governance Function

In fulfilling the requirement of Listing Rules which became effective
on 1 April 2012, the Board delegated the corporate governance
duties to the Audit Committee and Nomination Committee.

The primary corporate governance duties are to develop and
review the Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance and make recommendations to the Board; to review
and monitor the training and continuous professional development
of Directors and senior management; to review and monitor the
Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements; to develop, review and monitor the code
of conduct and compliance manual (if any) applicable to
employees and Directors; and to review the Company’s
compliance with the code and disclosure in the Corporate
Governance Report.

During the year, the Board and the board committees have
developed and reviewed the Company’s corporate governance
practices, including providing guideline on the enhancement of
internal controls and risk management.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTOR RELATIONS

A shareholder’'s communication policy was established in March
2012. The Company has maintained different communication
channels with its shareholders through the publication of annual
and interim reports, circulars and announcements. Such

information is also available on the Company’s website.

It is the Company’s practice to provide an explanation of the
details of the procedures for voting by poll in the general meetings
to shareholders in accordance with the Bye-laws and the Listing
Rules. The poll results of the general meetings are also published
on the websites of the Stock Exchange and of the Company. The
Board regards general meetings as one of the principal channels
of communications with our shareholders and the Directors provide
detailed and complete answers to questions raised by the

shareholders in the general meetings.

During the year, the Company has held one general meeting, (the

annual general meeting) in which various resolutions were passed.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND EHERRZEBRREBBR(E)
INVESTOR RELATIONS (continued)
The following table shows the attendance of the Directors at the THRBERAEELNBEE_ZT—WF+_A=+—

general meeting held during the year ended 31 December 2014: HIEFERITZRRAGZHFEX
No. of the
General
meetings
attended/held
HEETZ
BRAE
BBRH
Executive Directors: HITES:
Mr. Zhou Yun Jie AEREE 11
Mr. Li Hua Gang (retired on 26 March 2014) TEMSLE(RZF—WHF=F =1 NHEF) 0/0
Non-executive Directors: FHITES !
Mr. Liang Hai Shan Z2811%4%E
(with Mr. Li Hua Gang as his alternate director) (AETEFERFTEMEE) 0/1
Ms. Tan Li Xia BEERL /1
Ms. Janine Junyuan Feng BT T
(with Mr. Gui Zhaoyu as her alternate director) (B E(FEEAIEBFIEE) 1/1
Dr. Wang Han Hua TEEFL 1/1
Mr. Zhang Yong REBLE
(appointed on 25 March 2014) (R-ZF—pE=H_+7 HEZT) 0N
INEDs: BYFHTES:
Mr. Yu Hon To, David BEESEE 1/1
Mrs. Eva Cheng Li Kam Fun B RS+ 1/1
Ms. Tsou Kai-Lien, Rose FrRFEL L+
(appointed on 7 June 2014) (R=ZF—FEN A+ HEZFE) 0/0
Dr. Liu Xiao Feng (retired on 6 June 2014) REig + (R =T —HF A NHREE) 0N

During the year, there have been no changes in the Company’s  F R » KR &) 7 ZFE X E I (o] & &) -
constitutional documents.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures by which Shareholders may convene a special
general meeting

Pursuant to Section 74(1) of the Bermuda Companies Act and the
bye-law 62 of the Bye-laws of the Company, the shareholder(s) of
the Company holding at the date of the deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company as at
the date of the deposit carries the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company may request the Board to convene a

special general meeting.

The requisition must state the purposes of the meeting, and must
be signed by the requisitionists and deposited at the registered
office of the Company at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda and the head office and principal place
of business of the Company in Hong Kong at Unit 3513, 35/F., The
Center, 99 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong, for the attention of
the Company Secretary and may consist of several documents in
like form each signed by one or more requisitionists.

If the Directors do not within twenty-one days from the date of the
deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene a meeting, the
requisitionists, or any of them representing more than one half of
the total voting rights of all of them, may themselves convene a

meeting, but any meeting so convened shall not be held after the

expiration of three months from the said date.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (continued)
Procedures by which enquiries may be put to the Board

Shareholders may put forward enquiries to the Board through the
Company Secretary who will direct the enquiries to the Board for

handling. Such enquiries can be made by the following means:

Mail: Company Secretary

Haier Electronics Group Co., Ltd.

Unit 3513, 35/F., The Center,

99 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong
E-mail: IR@haier-elec.com.hk

Procedures for putting forward proposals at a Shareholders’

meeting

On the requisition in writing of (i) either any number of
Shareholders representing not less than one-twentieth of the total
voting rights of all the Shareholders having at the date of the
requisition a right to vote at the meeting to which the requisition
relates, or (ii) not less than 100 Shareholders, the Company shall
be under a duty to:

(a) give to Shareholders entitled to receive notice of the next
AGM notice of any resolution which may properly be moved
and is intended to be moved at that meeting; and

(b) circulate to Shareholders entitled to have notice of any
general meeting sent to them any statement of not more than
1,000 words with respect to the matter referred to in any
proposed resolution or the business to be dealt with at that

meeting.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (continued)

Procedures for putting forward proposals at a Shareholders’
meeting (continued)

The written request/statements must be signed by the
shareholder(s) concerned and deposited at the Company’s
registered office in Bermuda at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM11, Bermuda and head office and principal place of
business of the Company in Hong Kong at Unit 3513, 35/F., The
Center, 99 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong, for the attention of
the Company Secretary, not less than six weeks before the AGM in
the case of a requisition requiring notice of a resolution and not
less than one week before the general meeting in the case of any

other requisition.

If the written request is in order, the Company Secretary will ask
the Board (i) to include the resolution in the agenda for the AGM,;
or (ii) to circulate the statement for the general meeting, provided
that the shareholder(s) concerned have deposited a sum of money
reasonably determined by the Board sufficient to meet the
Company’s expenses in serving the notice of the resolution and/or
circulating the statement submitted by the shareholder(s)
concerned in accordance with the statutory requirements to all the
registered shareholders. On the contrary, if the requisition is invalid
or the shareholder(s) concerned have failed to deposit sufficient
money to meet the Company’s expenses for the said purposes, the
shareholder(s) concerned will be advised of this outcome and
accordingly, the proposed resolution will not be included in the
agenda for the AGM; or the statement will not be circulated for the

general meeting.

Annual Report 2014 &£ 3§

Corporate Governance Report (continued)
EEERRE (&)

IR SRAER (42)
RERASLREBRZERF ()

EMEBR RO EEAABRESEE  WHRE
BERGRITRD LR /NE(WAERAZREDY
WA E2F) MRERGERITIIPR—B (KA
FMEMER)EXZRAR BRETMHER (M
iiF & Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton
HM11, Bermuda) A R AR R BB AN ER KT
DML AR BERFREFRQRPIRFH
0353513 %) @ iERKHEFARRRWE °

HEMZREE  RAANEBEREZTS()KR
ARBABRBFASHRE () EERERS
R E - ERERRAXNESEBETZAES
BB UWEARARBEEZRME2RER
IRR B EOR BRI AR, ok A S E B AR R AR R
REZRAE - HR  W2FER  HEBRRE
AEXNEMERHAREEL Li17E - AlM
HEBRREFMLAER  MEZRERZHTSHA
BERAFAGRHE  IBWRAERAEHTEF




Haier Electronics Group Co., Ltd.

SHEEBEMERA A

Corporate Governance Report (continued)
EEERRE (&)

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (continued)

Procedures for Shareholders to propose a person for election
as a Director

If a Shareholder wishes to nominate a person to stand for election
as a Director at a general meeting, notice in writing of his intention
to propose such person for election as a Director and the notice in
writing executed by the nominee of his willingness to be elected
must be validly served at the principal place of business in Hong
Kong of the Company. The minimum length of the period during
which such notices are given shall be at least 7 days and the
period for lodgement of such notices shall commence no earlier
than the day after the dispatch of the notice of the general meeting
appointed for such election and end no later than 7 days prior to
the date of such general meeting.

To enable shareholders to make an informed decision on their
election at a general meeting, the names of all candidates
submitted for election or re- election as a Director together with
his/her biographical details as set out in Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing
Rules (including other directorships held in listed public companies
in the past 3 years and other major appointments) are to be set out
in a circular or supplementary circular to be sent to shareholders

prior to the meeting in accordance with the Listing Rules.

INSURANCE

The Group has arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’
liability insurance to indemnify the Directors and senior staff of the
Group for their potential liabilities incurred by them in discharging
their duties. The Group reviews the insurance coverage for the

Directors and the Group’s senior staff on an annual basis.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
financial statements of the Group in accordance with relevant
statutory requirements and generally accepted accounting
principles in Hong Kong and ensuring that the financial statements
give a true and fair view of the Group’s financial position. In
preparing the financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2014, the Directors have adopted suitable
accounting policies and applied them consistently; made
judgments and estimates that are prudent and reasonable; and
prepared the financial statements on a going concern basis.

The responsibilities of the external auditor with respect to the
financial reporting are set out in the Independent Auditor’'s Report
of this Annual Report.

The Board aims to present a comprehensive, balanced and
understandable assessment of the Group’s development and
prospects in all corporate communications, including but not
limited to annual and interim reports, any price sensitive
announcements and financial disclosures required under the
Listing Rules, any reports to regulators as well as to information
required to be disclosed pursuant to other statutory requirements.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group is committed to implementing effective internal controls
and risk management procedures to identify and manage the risks

faced by the Group, as well as to safeguard the interests of the

Group and our shareholders as a whole.
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INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)

The Board is responsible for overseeing adequate internal controls
and risk management procedures in the Group, and for reviewing
their effectiveness on an on-going basis. The Board has clearly
defined the authorities and key responsibilities of each business
and operational unit to ensure adequate checks and balances.
The Board has delegated to the Management the design,
implementation and monitoring of the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems covering financial, operational and
compliance aspects.

The Board is also responsible for ensuring that the management
has discharged its duty to have an effective internal control system
including the adequacy of resources, qualification and experience
of staff of the Company’s finance and internal audit functions, and
their training programme and budget.

In response to the broadening of the Company’s scope of business
activities and the increase in geographical locations in which it
operates, to face the challenges of the fast growing trend of new
business and the related increased financial and operational risks,
the Company has built an Internal Audit Department which
provides independent and objective assurance and consulting
activity designed to add value and improve Company’s operations.
It helps Company accomplishing its objectives by bringing a
systematic, disciplined approach to evaluate and improve the
effectiveness of risk management, control, and governance
processes.
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INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)

Internal auditing is a catalyst for improving Company’s
governance, risk management and management controls by
providing insight and recommendations based on analyses and
assessments of data and business processes. With commitment to
integrity and accountability, Internal Audit provides value to
governing bodies and senior management as an objective source

of independent advice.

The Company has established an annual risk assessment practice
to cover its major internal control systems covering areas including
operational control, financial control and compliance control.
During the year, the Internal Audit has conducted a series of
comprehensive audit activities to review the effectiveness of
Group’s internal control systems and risk management procedures
on the major business and operational processes, particularly on
those divisions of the integrated channel services business which
were newly set up. The findings and recommendations for further
improvements are reported to the Management as well as the
Board.

REMUNERATION OF EXTERNAL AUDITORS

The Group’s independent external auditors are Ernst & Young,
Certified Public Accountants. During the year, the annual audit
fees and non-audit fees payable/paid by the Group to Ernst &
Young were RMB7,480,000 and RMB2,360,000, respectively. The
non-audit services included the performance of agreed-upon
procedures in respect of the Group’s quarterly and interim financial

information (RMB1,400,000), review of the connected transactions

(RMB120,000), and the tax and management consultancy service
fees (RMB840,000).
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Report of the Directors
EEEHREE

The directors of the Company present their report and the audited
financial statements of the Company and the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2014.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.

During the year, the Group’s subsidiaries continued to be engaged
in the manufacture and sale of washing machines and water
heaters, as well as the provision of integrated channel services
which comprised the provision of logistics services, after-sale
services, on-line sales and distribution of home electric appliances
and other products. There were no significant changes in the

nature of the Group’s principal activities during the year.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s profit for the year ended 31 December 2014 and the
state of affairs of the Company and the Group at that date are set

out in the financial statements on pages 123 to 311.

The directors of the Company recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2014 of HK11 cents per
share (2013: HK10 cents per share).

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the results and assets, liabilities and non- controlling
interests of the Group for the last five financial years is set out on
page 312. This summary does not form part of the audited financial
statements.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment, and
investment properties of the Group during the year are set out in

notes 15 and 16 to the financial statements, respectively.

SHARE CAPITAL, SHARE OPTIONS, WARRANTS,
CONVERTIBLE BONDS, AND CONVERTIBLE AND
EXCHANGEABLE BONDS

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital, share
options, warrants, convertible bonds, and convertible and
exchangeable bonds during the year are set out in notes 37, 39,
33 and 34 to the financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-Laws or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing
shareholders.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Save for the purchase of 5,873,000 shares of the Company on the
open market for an aggregate consideration of HK$110,362,000
pursuant to the Company’s Restricted Share Award Scheme as
announced by the Company on 15 April 2014, neither the
Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed or sold

any of the Company’s listed securities during the year ended 31
December 2014.
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RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the
Group during the year are set out in note 40(b) to the financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity,
respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 December 2014, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), amounted to
RMB2,101,403,000. In addition, the Company’s share premium
account, in the amount of RMB1,317,021,000, may be capitalised
and distributed to members in the form of fully paid bonus shares.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, sales to the Group’s five largest
customers accounted for less than 30% of the total sales for the
year. Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted
for 79% of the total purchases for the year and purchases from the
largest supplier included therein amounted to 48%.

During the year, Haier Group Corporation (“Haier Corp”) and
Qingdao Haier Investment and Development Co., Ltd. (“Haier
Investment”) (collectively referred to as “Haier Group”), the
substantial shareholders of the Company, had beneficial interests
in one of the Group’s five largest customers and all of the Group’s

five largest suppliers.

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors or any of their
associates or any shareholders of the Company (which, to the best
knowledge of the directors, owns more than 5% of the Company’s
issued share capital) had any beneficial interest in the Group’s five

largest customers or suppliers.
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DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year were:

Executive directors:

Mr. Zhou Yun Jie
Mr. Li Hua Gang (retired on 26 March 2014)

Non-executive directors:

Mr. Liang Hai Shan

Ms. Tan Li Xia

Ms. Janine Junyuan Feng

Dr. Wang Han Hua

Mr. Zhang Yong (appointed on 25 March 2014)

Independent non-executive directors:

Mr. Yu Hon To, David

Mrs. Eva Cheng Li Kam Fun

Ms. Tsou Kai-Lien, Rose (appointed on 7 June 2014)
Dr. Liu Xiao Feng (retired on 6 June 2014)

Alternate directors:

Mr. Gui Zhaoyu (alternate Director to Ms. Janine Junyuan Feng)
Mr. Li Hua Gang (alternate Director to Mr. Liang Hai Shan)
(appointed on 7 June 2014)

In accordance with the Bye-Laws of the Company, Mr. Yu Hon To,
David, Mrs. Eva Cheng Li Kam Fun, Ms. Janine Junyuan Feng, Mr.
Gui Zhaoyu (alternate Director to Ms. Janine Junyuan Feng) and
Mr. Li Hua Gang (alternate Director to Mr. Liang Hai Shan) are
subject to retirement by rotation at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company (*“AGM”). All these directors are eligible

for re-election at the AGM.
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DIRECTORS (continued)

The independent non-executive directors of the Company are not
appointed for any specific terms and are subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election at the annual general meeting of the
Company in accordance with the bye-laws of the Company.

The Company has received an annual confirmation of
independence from each of Mr. Yu Hon To, David, Mrs. Eva Cheng
Li Kam Fun and Ms. Tsou Kai-Lien, Rose, and on the basis of such
confirmations, considers them to be independent as at the date of
this report.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the directors of the Company and the senior
management of the Group are set out on pages 21 to 35 of the

annual report.

CHANGES OF INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS

Below are the changes of directors’ information required to be
disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules since the
interim report:

Up to the balance sheet date, Mr. Li Hua Gang was appointed as
a director of 365 Goodaymart (CM) Limited and 365 Goodaymart
(HK) Limited, subsidiaries of the Group.

Ms. Janine Junyuan Feng has resigned as a non-executive director
of Natural Beauty Bio-Technology Limited, a company listed in
Hong Kong Stock Exchange Limited (stock code: 157).

Mr. Zhang Yong has been appointed as a director of Alibaba
Group Holding Limited, a company listed on the New York Stock

Exchange.
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CHANGES OF INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Subsequent to the balance sheet date, Mr. Zhou Yun Jie has
resigned as directors of Haier Electronics Sales (HK) Co., Ltd.,
Heroic Plan Global Limited, Haier Electrical Appliances Fourth
Holdings (BVI) Limited, Haier Washing Machines Holdings (BVI)
Ltd., and Haier Water Heaters Holdings (BVI) Ltd., subsidiaries of
the Group, Mr. Zhou has also been appointed as director of
Qingdao Haier Investment and Development Holdings (BVI)
Limited, a subsidiary of the Group, and

Mr. Liang Hai Shan has resigned as a director of Qingdao Haier
Investment and Development Holdings (BVI) Limited, a subsidiary
of the Group, and

Mrs. Eva Cheng Li Kam Fun has retired as the independent non-
executive director of The Link Management Limited (the manager
of The Link REIT which is listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
(stock code: 823).

Ms. Tsou Kai-Lien, Rose has been appointed as a director of
Gomaji Corp. Ltd. (a company listed in Taiwan).

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

During the year, no director had a service contract with the
Company which is not determinable by the Company within one
year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The directors’ fees are subject to shareholders’ approval at general
meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the Company’s
board of directors with reference to directors’ duties,

responsibilities and performance and the results of the Group.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in
any contract of significance to the business of the Group to which
the Company, or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries or
fellow subsidiaries was a party during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

At 31 December 2014 the interests and short positions of the
directors in the share capital and underlying shares (“Share(s)”) of
the Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQ”)), as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers, were as follows:

Long positions in Shares of the Company:

BEERan ks

FABBEEERN AR REEMZERAF - /B
ARHFARMBARMI LM ANEEEHEE
RZEMEHPERAHEEREE N -

ESRRORMERARD 2EERXR

RZF-—FT_A=1+—8B BFERARAX
HiguEE (ERRBF MR (B RE
B 1) XV ER) Z A R AERER D ([Btr 1) e -
BB RSN AR BRI E 5 K& B & 55 58 352 16
MEBFEZERMT 2SR - SRELE
METABRETESFXHINRETAETEAR
RARBAMARSMBRAR ([BRFT]) 21#
SRR

RARBRM 2R

Number of Shares
directly (personal) Approximate % of

beneficially owned issued Shares

BEMEA) HEBRTRAZ
Name B EXEERAEE BHAEDL
Mr. Zhou Yun Jie BAENTE 5,180,000 0.19
Mr. Yu Hon To, David BLEE AL 360,000 0.01
Mr. Li Hua Gang EEM| S A4 230,000 0.01

Apart from above, Mr. Zhou Yun Jie and Mr. Li Hua Gang are also
the grantees of 2,250,000 and 110,000 restricted shares of the
Company, respectively, in accordance with the Company’s

Restricted Share Award Scheme.

B BB o o RIE AR BIRRR SR 2B B
BAERTE R ZEEM LA 785 Bl & 2,250,000 % K
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (continued)

Long positions in underlying Shares of the Company pursuant to
share options:
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REBEBEAEN AR REERND 2 HR

Approximate % of
issued Shares upon

Number of share exercise of

options granted and share options

not yet exercised THEBRER

ERHEERTE HERITRAZ

Name ®E ZEREZA BHAED

Mr. Zhou Yun Jie* BERLE 2,250,000 0.08

Mrs. Eva Cheng Li Kam Fun** e PO i 500,000 0.02

Dr. Wang Han Hua** TIEEH L 450,000 0.02

Mr. Li Hua Gang* IR oA 170,000 0.01
Note: HiaF -

* The exercise price of each of the above share options is HK$19.37  * H BRI TTEERRE—K19.378 T -

for subscription of one Share. The exercisable period is from 15 April
2015 to 14 April 2017.

> The exercise price of each of the above share options is HK$12.16
for subscription of one Share. The exercisable period is from 26 June
2014 to 25 June 2017.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN EZERRORAEBEKRG ZERRXE (B)
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (continued)

Long positions in shares and underlying shares of Qingdao Haier RARFRRSESERRNHERAT(ETEER])
Co., Ltd (“Qingdao Haier”), the Company’s shareholder: 2B KRR D 2 iR

Approximate % of
total registered

Number of share capital
Approximate % of share options upon exercise of
total registered granted and share options
Number of share capital not yet exercised BRERTER Capacity
Name shares held EEEMRRAZ EREBRERTRE ZHBIMBA  and interest
#E BRYAE BREA ZBREHE ZHABELLE FHRERME
Mr. Liang Hai Shan 3,239,920 0.11 2,250,000 0.07 Directly (personal)
2EILEE beneficially owned
BEER(AAN)ERZER
Ms. Tan Li Xia 1,246,680 0.04 1,325,000 0.04 Directly (personal)
BEERT beneficially owned
ER(EN)ERESR
Mr. Zhou Yun Jie 98,298 0.0032 - - Directly (personal)
BAER%E beneficially owned

EE(EAN)ESES




DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (continued)

Notes:

The exercise price of the above share options is RMB16.63 for subscription
of one Share. The exercisable period is from 20 June 2015 to 19 June
2017.

Apart from above, Mr. Liang Hai Shan and Ms. Tan Li Xia are also the
grantees of 2,250,000 and 1,325,000 restricted shares of Qingdao Haier,
respectively, in accordance with the restricted share award scheme of
Qingdao Haier.

Save as disclosed above, no directors or chief executive officer
had any interests or short positions in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company or its associated corporation (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO), as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the
SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions

by Directors of Listed Issuers.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES IN OR
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY
Share option scheme

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives and reward to
eligible participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s
operations. Further details of the Share Option Scheme are

disclosed in note 39 to the financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES IN OR EEZBEEALATRMPDEEZTZERN(E)
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY (continued)
Share option scheme (continued) BRETE (&)

The following table discloses movements in the Company’s share T &RBTRA R BIRFARITERRE 2 SB)IEN -
options outstanding during the year:

Number of share options
BHREHE
Exercise price of
share options
(note 2)
At At Date of grant of per share
1 January 31 December  share options HKS
2014 2014 (note 1) Shishi
R Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed R BRE Exercise period fitid
Name o category of participants ZE-ME duringtheyear duringtheyear duringtheyear duringtheyear — —E-TE FHAH  of share options (Hit2)
HEASREEH -B-H REREH RERTRE  REREH RERXN T=A=t-H (fit1) EREARS o
Executive directors
HTE%
Mr. Zhou Yun Jie - 2,250,000 - - - 2,250,000 15/04/2014  15/04/2015- 19.37
REARE 1400412017
Mr. Li Hua Gang 600,000 - 600,000 - - - 18/09/2009  18/09/2010~ 17
FERlxE 17/09/2014
600,000 2,250,000 600,000 - - 2,250,000
Independent Non-executive directors
BUkynEs
Mr. Yu Hon To, David 360,000 - 360,000 - - - 16/12/2011 16/06/2012- 8,67
MERTE 15/12/2014
Mrs. Eva Cheng Li Kam Fun 500,000 - - - - 500,000 26/06/2013  26/06/2014- 12.16
X, 25/06/2017

860,000 - 360,000 - - 500,000




DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES IN OR
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY (continued)
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Share option scheme (continued) BRETE (&)
Number of share options
EREHE
Exercise price of
share options
(note 2)
At At Date of grant of per share
1 January 31 December  share options HKS
2014 2014 (note 1) SRiERE
R Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed R BIRE  Exercise period EE
Name or category of participants ZE-WE duringtheyear duringtheyear duringtheyear duringtheyear — —E-RF REAH  of share options (Hit2)
fEGSEE R -B-B  RERRE  RERTE  REARE  REAXY TZRST-B (Hi1) BREGRS B
Non-executive directors
FufES
Dr. Wang Han Hua 450,000 - - - - 450,000 26/06/2013  26/06/2014- 12.16
TEERL 25/06/2017
Alternate director
BfEs
Mr. Li Hua Gang - 170,000 - - - 170,000 150412014 15/04/2015- 19.37
SEflxk 1400412017
External consultants
SEE
Inaggregate 1,070,000 - 1,070,000 - - - 161212011 16/12/2012- 758
&t 15/12/2014
Other employees
HitEs
Inaggregate 7,319,000 - 7,318,500 500 - - 18/09/2009  18/09/2010~ 1.7
&t 17/09/2014
In aggregate 4,258,000 - 4,257,000 - 1,000 - 18/05/2010  18/05/2011- 482
st 17/0/2014
Inaggregate 6,766,000 - 6,739,000 - 27,000 - 16/12/2011  16/12/2012- 758
a5t 151122014
In aggregate - 22,930,000 - - - 22,930,000 150412014 15/04/2015- 19.37
h 1400412017
18,343,000 22,930,000 18,314,500 500 28,000 22,930,000
21,323,000 25,350,000 20,344,500 500 28,000 26,300,000
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES IN OR
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY (continued)

Share option scheme (continued)

Notes:

1. The vesting period of the share options is from the date of grant until
the commencement of the exercise period.

2. The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment(s) in
the case of rights or bonus share issues, or other similar changes in
the share capital of the Company.

3. The weighted average closing price of the Company’s shares
immediately before the exercise dates of the share options was
HK$21.61 per share.

The directors have estimated the values of the share options
granted during the year, calculated using the binomial pricing
model as at the date of grant of the options, to be RMB110,198,000.

EERERDAROAEER 2ER (F)

BRESE(E)
et -

1. BREEBHESERLABESTERREH
Hif -

2. (HETTHRREEBTARE AN AR B IR
LZE) - RIFERIERYTTIEIER T LA FE

3. REEBRETE BRI KR EIR G INETH
WiTIE R 21.6187T o

SEFEA_EAMETERN  HFEARHKNBE
BEERERLABHZEBEEFRLEFRARE
110,198,0007T °




DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES IN OR
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY (continued)
Share option scheme (continued)

The binomial option pricing model is a generally accepted method
of valuing options. The significant assumptions used in the
calculation of the values of the share options were dividend yield,
historical volatility, risk-free interest rate, contractual life of options
and exercise multiple. The measurement dates used in the
valuation calculations were the dates on which the options were

granted.

The values of share options calculated using the binomial model
are subject to certain fundamental limitations, due to the subjective
nature of and uncertainty relating to a number of assumptions of
the expected future performance input to the model, and certain
inherent limitations of the model itself. The value of an option varies
with different variables of certain subjective assumptions. Any
change to the variables used may materially affect the estimation
of the fair value of an option.

Save as the options granted to the director, at no time during the
year were rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in or debentures of the Company granted to any director or
their respective spouses or minor children, or were any such rights
exercised by them; or was the Company, its holding company, or
any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable the directors to acquire such rights in any

other body corporate.
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CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE EEEW

The Group has contracts with Haier Group and their subsidiaries — 7<£ [# &2 /5 /R & B & E B A7) & B2 A 7
and/or associates (collectively referred to as “Haier Affiliates”) for (%58 BB AT )T A 4 A E R R
the purchase of products and materials. Further details of the %l o ghizs AP E REIT 5 2 B 40 SE15 K4S
transactions undertaken in connection with these contracts RIBExs ] —a -

during the year are included in the section “CONNECTED

TRANSACTIONS”.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN FERZARDRAEBERD ZER
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

At 31 December 2014, the following shareholders interested in 5% R—E-—MF+-A=+t—8 U THEELRA
or more of the issued share capital and share options of the — EIEITIA NI S5% sk oA E#E s < R TR 8%
Company were recorded in the register of substantial shareholders AR BIRIE 7 % & BB E 15055 336 1§48 E B T1F
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the & 7 F EARE &1 :

SFO:

Long positions: ad -
Approximate
percentage of
the Company’s
Number of Shares issued share capital
Name of shareholder Notes interested {HZAAQ T B BHITRAR
BRRERE Hist BERERZROHBE ZBABEDHE
Qingdao Haier Collective Asset Management Association 1, 4 1,569,919,592 58.43

(“Haier Collective Asset Management”)

FEERSEEAETEHBE ((BRRBEETE])

Haier Corp 2.4 1,569,919,592 58.43
HREELRR

Haier Investment 3 4 1,569,919,592 58.43
BRIRE

Qingdao Haier 4 1,561,039,592 58.10
E88M

Haier Shareholdings (Hong Kong) Limited (“Hong Kong Haier”) 4 831,762,110 30.96
BRRD (BEB)ERAR(EHER])

Carlyle Asia Partners Il AIV Cayman, L.P. 5 140,000,000 5.21

Hawaii Asia Holdings Limited 5 140,000,000 5.21




SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (continued)

Notes:

1.

As at 31 December 2014, by virtue of the SFO, Haier Collective
Asset Management was deemed to be interested in an aggregate of
1,669,919,592 Shares, including (i) 345,480,000 Shares directly and
indirectly held by its non wholly-owned subsidiary, namely Haier
Investment; and (ii) given Haier Investment was acting in concert
with Haier Corp and Qingdao Haier, Haier Collective Asset
Management was also deemed to be interested in 1,224,439,592
Shares held by Qingdao Haier pursuant to the SFO.

Mr. Zhou Yun Jie, executive director of the Company, Mr. Liang Hai
Shan and Ms. Tan Li Xia, non-executive directors of the Company
are also members of the board of management of Haier Collective
Asset Management.

As Qingdao Haier is a non wholly-owned subsidiary of Haier Corp,
Haier Corp was deemed to be interested in 1,224,439,692 Shares
held by Qingdao Haier pursuant to the SFO.

Furthermore, as Haier Corp was acting in concert with Haier
Investment, Haier Corp was deemed to be interested in 345,480,000
Shares held by Haier Investment and its subsidiary.

Mr. Zhou Yun Jie, executive director of the Company, Mr. Liang Hai
Shan and Ms. Tan Li Xia, non-executive directors of the Company,
are also the members of the management committee of Haier Corp.

Haier Investment and its subsidiary held 345,480,000 Shares in total
as beneficial owners. Moreover, Haier Investment was deemed to be
interested in 1,224,439,592 Shares held by Qingdao Haier pursuant
to the SFO by reason of its acting in concert with Haier Corp.

Qingdao Haier held 392,677,482 Shares as beneficial owner.
Moreover, Qingdao Haier was deemed to be interested in
831,762,110 Shares held by its wholly-owned subsidiary, Hong Kong
Haier, pursuant to the SFO.

Furthermore, Haier Investment has appointed Qingdao Haier to
exercise voting in respect of its holding of 336,600,000 Shares.

Carlyle Asia Partners Il AIV Cayman, L.P. was deemed to be
interested in the Shares held by its subsidiary, Hawaii Asia Holdings
Limited, pursuant to the SFO.
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Report of the Directors (continued)
EZewREE @

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (continued)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2014, no person,
other than the directors of the Company, whose interests are set
out in the section “Directors’ interests and short positions in shares
and underlying shares” above, had registered an interest or short
position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company that
was required to be recorded pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
During the year, the Company and the Group had the following

connected and continuing connected transactions, certain details
of which are disclosed in compliance with the requirements of
Chapter 14A of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

Connected transactions

(i)  During the year, the Group disposed of its interests in a
branch of Qingdao Goodaymart Logistics Co., Ltd. (formerly
known as “Qingdao Haier Logistics Co., Ltd.”) to a fellow

subsidiary of the Company at a cash consideration of
RMB15,103,000, which was determined with reference to the
fair value of the net assets of the branch.

FERRARD RERR G 2 s (F)

BEXBREEN  RoB-mE+=A=+—8 -
BTN L [ EERR G RABRIR S

B AR — B2 ARTEEUNZ ALRA
N FIRAR S AR B AR o M 5 A 1 3B 3 T B O

E3B6IFMEAT LI BREERIRR ©
BEXS

FR - ARRIRAEEETOTEERISTERE
R ATHBCERBHEASLETRATE
MRADEFTHAZEZETE T UARE -

BERS

() FR ALEELEHEHRESRBIBEMRER
/‘ﬂ(ﬁﬁ%fﬁ%W@;ﬁﬁﬁ&/‘m)ffﬁ
DRRNER T AR —HRRMBR
HeEREAARE 15,103,000 7T é%ﬁ)}ﬂ
D NRINBEFENATEET




CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Connected transactions (continued)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

During the year, a subsidiary of the Company entered into a
transfer agreement with a fellow subsidiary of the Company
to acquire a land use right at a cash consideration of
RMB37,000,000. The consideration was determined after
arm’s length negotiation with reference to the property
valuation report prepared by an independent property valuer.

During the year, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
and a fellow subsidiary of the Company were jointly and
severally granted general banking facilities in the amount of
USD55,000,000 by a third party bank. The bank facilities
were ultimately guaranteed by another fellow subsidiary of
the Company.

During the year, the Group acquired 100% equity interest of
Changchun Haier Development Co., Ltd. (“Changchun
Development”) from Qingdao Haier Development Co., Ltd. at
a consideration of RMB10,000,000. The consideration was
determined with reference to the paid-in capital amount of
Changchun Development. Qingdao Haier Development Co.,

Ltd. is a fellow subsidiary of the Company.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued) BERS (&)
Continuing connected transactions BHEBERS

During the year, the Group had the following material transactions

FAAEEEERBEARGETATEAR

with Haier Affiliates: Z

2014 2013
“B-mOE  —T-=F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BtaF ARETR ARBTFT
Export sale of products HOEEE S (i) 1,436,785 1,439,248
Domestic sale of products NEEEEm (ii) 207,225 365,756
Purchase of finished goods RS G (iii) 34,592,907 30,411,964
Purchase of raw materials AR (iv) 12,578,498 12,402,661
Purchase of equipment FREE R (v) 104,296 11,428
Printing and packaging fees Nl & B 2 (vi) 33,334 45,447
Mould charges REABTH (vii) 187,517 163,222
Utility service fee NARBE (viii) 114,794 116,805
Promotion fee EEEBELH (ix) 38,395 77,000
Research and development service fees  #f5% & 3 BR 7 S (x) 228,823 127,710
Other service fees HipR% & (xi) 310,120 338,915
Interest income FLEW A (xii) 24,569 20,842
Interest expenses FEZE (xii) 2,029 2,342
Other financial service fees Hih e miRi g (xiii) 7,086 7,219
Logistics service income i ARSI A (xiv) 1,987,831 1,905,854
After-sale service income E 1B R A (xv) 187,058 201,067

Notes: Het -

[BERREZ BN EREREZEXHRAL
AI([EMERSER]) HOHEEERIRAERE
T BEZZFE B GRERERZ HEH
X TEBEREEZ1.5%)2EB EEMET -

() The export sales of products were made to Haier Electrical (i)
Appliances Co., Ltd. (“Haier Electrical”), a subsidiary of Haier
Investment, at selling prices representing the differences between
the selling prices of these products mutually agreed and the selling

expenses of Haier Electrical not exceeding 1.5% of the selling prices
of products.




CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Continuing connected transactions (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(x)

The domestic sales of products were made at prices no less
favourable than those prevailing in the domestic market for the
products of the same type and quality and those offered by the
Group to independent third parties; the sales made by the subsidiary
of the Group — Haier International Business Corporation Limited
(“Haier International”) were at gross profit margin no lower than 2%.

The purchase of finished goods was charged at prices no less
favourable than those prevailing in the domestic market for the
products of the same type and quality and those offered by Haier
Affiliates to independent third parties.

The purchase of raw materials was charged at prices not higher than
the consolidated and integrated tender and bidding price of the raw
materials plus a commission fee of not exceeding 1.25%.

The purchase of production and experimental equipment was
charged at prices no less favourable than those offered by
independent third parties; the imported production and experimental
equipment through Haier Affiliates was charged at the purchase
price from suppliers plus a commission fee of not exceeding 1.3%.

The printing and packaging fees were charged on terms no less
favourable than those offered by independent third parties.

The moulds were charged with reference to the average market
tender and bidding price plus actual administrative costs.

The utility service fee was charged based on the state-prescribed
prices plus actual administrative costs.

The promotion fee was charged with reference to actual cost at no
more than 0.6% of the total sales of washing machines and water
heaters of the Group.

The research and development service fees were charged with
reference to the actual costs incurred in the research and
development activities. For the single project related to the
intellectual property with the amount of more than RMBZ20,000,000,
the independent valuation professional firm shall be involved to
determine the price.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Continuing connected transactions (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(xi)  The other service fees were charged with reference to the actual
costs incurred andy/or on terms no less favourable than those offered
by independent third parties to the Group.

(xii) ~ The interest income and expenses were determined with reference
to the standard rates published by the People’s Bank of China. The
maximum balance of bank deposits placed with and the maximum
loan balance drawn down from Haier Group Finance Co., Ltd. related
to the above interest income and expenses during the year were
RMB890,469,000 and RMB74,271,000 respectively.

(xiii) The other financial service fees were charged on terms no less
favourable than those offered by independent third parties.

(xiv) The logistics service income was charged on terms no less favorable
than those prevailing in the domestic market for services of similar
kinds and quality and those charged by the Group on independent
third parties.

(xv) The after-sale service income was charged on terms no less
favourable than those prevailing in the domestic market for services
of similar nature and scale.

The independent non-executive directors of the Company have
reviewed the continuing connected transactions set out above and

have confirmed that they were entered into:

(iy  inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(i) on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favourable
to the Group than terms available to or from independent

third parties; and

(iii)  in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them
on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of

the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

BEXS (&)

REBRERXS (8)

fifet - (&)

(xi) BMRHEEIRENELEGRKAGER T

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)
Continuing connected transactions (continued)

The amounts of the continuing connected transactions have not
exceeded the cap disclosed in previous announcements made by
the Company.

Ernst & Young, the Company’s auditors, were engaged to report
on the Group’s continuing connected transactions in accordance
with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000
Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of
Historical Financial Information and with reference to Practice Note
740 Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under
the Hong Kong Listing Rules issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Ernst & Young have issued their
unqualified letter containing their findings and conclusions in
respect of the continuing connected transactions disclosed above
by the Group in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules.
A copy of the auditors’ letter has been provided by the Company
to the Stock Exchange.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the directors as at the date of this report,

at least 25% of the Company’s total issued share capital was held

by the public.
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of the significant events of the Group after the reporting
period are set out in note 49 to the financial statements.

AUDITORS

Ernst & Young will retire, and a resolution for their reappointment
as auditors of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Zhou Yun Jie
Chairman

Hong Kong
26 March 2015

BEPRER
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Independent Auditors’ Report

Ernst & Young

22/F, CITIC Tower

1 Tim Mei Avenue
Central, Hong Kong

EY=x

To the shareholders of Haier Electronics Group Co., Ltd.
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Haier
Electronics Group Co., Ltd. (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together, the “Group”) set out on pages 123 to 311, which
comprise the consolidated and company statements of financial
position as at 31 December 2014, and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
promulgated by the International Accounting Standards Board and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. Our report is made solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda
Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

BYZHMBRES

31 December 2014 —ZE—NE+=-A=+—H

BB EKAT Tel E:%: +852 2846 9888
BEBRRREBIR Fax {€H:+852 2868 4432
s KE221E €y.com
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Independent Auditors’ Report (continued)
BY R RES (&)
31 December 2014 —ZE—F+—-F=+—8H

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditors consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 31 December 2014, and of the Group’s profit and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
22/F, CITIC Tower

1 Tim Mei Avenue

Central

Hong Kong

26 March 2015
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consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
meEEmER

Year ended 31 December 2014 B —E—NFE+-_A=+—HILFE

2014 2013
—E-mE —T—=F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
MiE AR¥ETR AREFIT

REVENUE /PN 5 67,133,962 62,263,162
Cost of sales HERAR (57,292,029) (53,125,613)
Gross profit E7 9,841,933 9,137,549
Other income and gains Hb g A Uz 5 390,762 203,942
Selling and distribution expenses HEN D HE R (4,704,728) (4,403,956)
Administrative expenses THRER (2,245,444) (2,221,437)
Other expenses and losses HBRARER (20,647) (9,924)
Finance costs BMENKAK 7 (95,961) (68,334)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BRBLADREF 6 3,165,915 2,637,840
Income tax expense iR iEha 10 (650,813) (547,527)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR EREF 2,515,102 2,090,313
Attributable to: AN T REM,

Owners of the Company RATRRE 11 2,446,605 2,036,882

Non-controlling interests JEIE R bR 68,497 53,431

2,515,102 2,090,313

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO AATEBERRE

ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF EEEREF

THE COMPANY 13
Basic BEWN RMB92.19 cents RMB80.15 cents

ARM9219%5  AR¥S80.15%
Diluted e RMB89.76 cents RMB78.14 cents
AR¥89.76 7 ARE7814%

Details of the dividends proposed for the year are disclosed in
note 12 to the financial statements.

ARERRRBE 2 FBERM MR T 12 -
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
mEETHEWRER

Year ended 31 December 2014 HE —Z—NFE+ A =+—HIFE
2014 2013
—E—F —F—=
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
HtaE AR®T T ARETT
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR F R A 2,515,102 2,090,313
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME Hih2mEla
Other comprehensive income to be REZHHEgEN > ES
reclassified to profit or loss in B 2wk
subsequent periods:
Exchange differences on translation of
foreign operations MEBINETS 2 B ERE (4,061) (7,924)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FREM2ERE
FOR THE YEAR (4,061) (7,924)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FRAEEKRZEE
FOR THE YEAR 2,511,041 2,082,389
Attributable to: AT & T7 e -
Owners of the Company PN S 11 2,442,195 2,029,773
Non-controlling interests VTR = 68,846 52,616
2,511,041 2,082,389




Annual Report 2014 &£ 3§

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
e BN ER

31 December 2014 —ZE—NE+=-A=+—H

2014 2013
—E-F —ET—=%F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
HtaE AR¥T T AREETIT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BEMEE 15 2,135,286 1,488,068
Investment properties A 16 12,339 13,531
Prepaid land lease payments A T ER 17 519,821 307,013
Goodwill [SES 18 74,530 6,123
Other intangible assets Hihmp e 19 142,163 90,455
Available-for-sale investments ]t HERE 21 2,925 2,925
Prepayments for investments & Z MR - 41,400
Prepayments for items of property, W BENMEEEREE Z
plant and equipment TR RRIE 199,681 309,095
Deferred tax assets RIETIAE 36 623,548 592,656
Total non-current assets FERBEERE 3,710,293 2,851,266
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories FE 22 3,668,067 2,891,587
Trade and bills receivables TEWBE R R ZEE 23 6,848,385 7,558,920
Prepayments, deposits and TERTRIE -~ me &
other receivables H At R AR X 24 2,011,145 1,534,718
Pledged deposits EEHER 25 105,096 220,350
Deposits for bank financial products RITIEBIE 7K 26 242,400 -
Cash and cash equivalents RWe MRS EEIER 25 10,929,888 6,824,322
Total current assets mBEERE 23,804,981 19,029,897
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Trade and bills payables AR e 27 3,109,438 3,202,301
Other payables and accruals HiENERRETAE 28 8,707,645 7,776,253
Interest-bearing borrowings AFEEE 29 - 159,633
Due to a fellow subsidiary FE—RA ZHT B A FFHIE - 15,000
Due to a non-controlling shareholder TET—RIEFEIR AR R 7R 18 30 24,916 24,301
Tax payable FERTELIE 542,602 693,964
Provisions B 5 35 517,788 537,244
Put option liabilities ROLEREAE 31 218,230 22,400
Total current liabilities nRBBERE 13,120,619 12,431,096
NET CURRENT ASSETS REEEFE 10,684,362 6,598,801
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31 December 2014 —ZE—MNF&+_-A=+—H

2014 2013
—E-F —E—=F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
HtaE AR¥T T AREETIT
TOTAL ASSETS LESS HEERRDAER

CURRENT LIABILITIES 14,394,655 9,450,067
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FERBEME
Convertible bonds ATRRES 33 776,319 716,835
Convertible and exchangeable AR K A] s E 5

bonds (“CEB”) ([ TR I AT s B 25 1) 34 1,024,382 -
Provisions B 35 319,396 302,891
Deferred income PRIEWA 55,773 44,145
Deferred tax liabilities EIEF A& 36 15,602 8,503
Put option liabilities ROLEEAE 31 29,000 305,600
Share-based payment liabilities LR BERZNREaE 32 41,143 14,429
Other non-current liabilities HEmIERBAaE 41 31,000 -
Total non-current liabilities ERBAGERE 2,292,615 1,392,403
Net assets BEFE 12,102,040 8,057,664
EQUITY s
Equity attributable to owners of the Company  ZN/A &A% 5 e #E 25
Issued equity BEITRER 37 1,863,462 2,761,754
Shares held for Restricted Share Award BLBR 1 A% D 2B 5T )

Scheme Frisa 2 ik1n 38 (96,461) (7,863)
Equity component of convertible bonds ABRRESF R E D 33 149,249 149,249
Equity component of CEB ATHARY J A] e RS 5 2

Wz E D 34 54,838 -

Reserves FEE 40(a) 9,282,151 4,617,064
Proposed final dividend R AR HA RS 12 237,191 200,824
11,490,430 7,721,028

Non-controlling interests FEIERRRERS 611,610 336,636
Total equity e BE 12,102,040 8,057,664

Zhou Yun Jie Tan Li Xia
Director Director
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Cconsolidated Statement of Cash Flows
GEHERER

Year ended 31 December 2014 HE—_Z—WNFE+_A=+—HILFZ

2014 2013
—E—-NF —E-=fF
Notes RMB’000 RMB 000
Hiat AR%T ARBFT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES K& (K s HERE
Profit before tax K 55 BT Y Al 3,165,915 2,637,840
Adjustments for: EAT % -
Finance costs BEAR 7 95,961 68,334
Interest income FBUA 5 (246,513) (79,681)
Interest income from deposits for bank RITIRBS EE AT 5K
financial products FEUA 5 (7,515) -
Gain on bargain purchase mfgﬂﬁlﬁﬁﬂﬁlm 5 - (16)
Gains on disposal of subsidiaries and HEMBA
a branch —HaA TZJ%Z 5 (4,506) -
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ~ #)2 - ﬁ% N BT E 6 146,021 113,466
Depreciation of investment properties HEYERE 6 1,192 1,192
Recognition of prepaid land lease payments MERIEN T E KT 6 11,746 7,575
Amortisation of intangible assets EEEEEE 6 8,152 6,977
Provision for obsolete and slow-moving VEJHj* &/é-"a"ﬁﬁﬁ &
inventories, net 6 33,077 37,772
Provision for impairment on trade receivables, fuﬁlﬁﬁ R B
net 6 16,600 4,436
Provision for impairment on other receivables ﬁﬁﬁfﬂ&ﬁﬁm)&iﬁﬁ
and prepayments, net SRIE B R 6 4,047 -
Loss/(gains) on disposal/write-off of items of HE MY -
property, plant and equipment and R e e TE B K
investment properties, net BEME BB
(Yezm) #58 6 (1,107) 101
Loss on disposal/write-off of items of prepaid e MEETEN i
land lease payments MERIBBE 6 - 5,387
Share-based payment expense VAR B E T 2
BENGES 6 26,714 14,429
Management services arrangements expenses ‘& IR RS L HEFI 2 6 8,228 34,877
Equity-settled share option expense VARG R 45 & 2 B R
s 6 49,256 12,955
Equity-settled Restricted Share Award VAE 25 45 5 /) PR 1511
Scheme expense B SR EpET IR X 6 15,304 -
3,322,572 2,865,644
Increase in inventories FEEM (815,999) (448,366)
Decrease/(increase) in trade and JEUS BR 70 K 2%
bills receivables ;‘a@\/( HEh0) 685,218 (638,927)
Increase in prepayments, deposits and TERFRIE -~ iRe REM
other receivables JRE Lkt BE 2R 48 (350,986) (316,152)
Increase/(decrease) in trade and F‘Eﬁﬁﬁﬁm)}m}ﬁ
bills payables B CRid) (77,872) 233,338
Increase in other payables and accruals Hﬁﬂfﬁﬁﬁm)}f&fﬁ
BEEM 790,195 1,234,171
Increase/(decrease) in provisions BEE o Od) (2,952) 38,920
Increase/(decrease) in deferred income IR AL DD, GRI) 11,628 (46)
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net fE RE T EREE 5,048 (10,174)
Cash generated from operations IREEBSHR S 3,566,852 2,958,408
Interest received 2 U 8 171,612 79,681
Mainland China corporate income tax paid B Ao B Pt 2 TS (835,493) (828,059)
Net cash flows from operating activities B IR RS R 2,902,971 2,210,030 1 29
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continued)

FERERER(E)

Year ended 31 December 2014 HE —ZE—MNF+_A=+—HI-FE

2014 2013
—Z—NEF —E—=fF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
KtaF AR¥T ARBFT
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES KREZEZHERE
Purchases of items of property, BEYE  BEKL
plant and equipment e B (688,437) (259,374)
Prepayments for investments W& 7 FBRFRIA - (41,400)
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments for M - WERBZHEIEE 2
items of property, plant and equipment B FIER A, (3G ) 75,443 (247,918)
Proceeds from disposal of items of property, HEME - WFE N&E
plant and equipment 18 B Fr1Sk18 9,372 1,307
Additions to prepaid land lease payments BB L E 17 (218,978) (70,496)
Additions to intangible assets FiEpAE 19 (2,060) -
Acquisition of subsidiaries WS E A A 41 (11,864) (20,573)
Disposal of subsidiaries and a branch HERBARR
—KD AR 42 1,446 -
Acquisition of non-controlling interests W s R IR AR - (10,029)
Decrease/(increase) in pledged deposits BEREFERRD,(E) 115,254 (158,546)
Investment in bank financial products RERITEYE R (242,400) -
Interest received from deposits for bank BiRTTEMERTR
financial products WER 2 F) 8, 5 7,515 -
Decrease/(increase) in time deposits over =BA K EZEBRFR
three months A, (35 m) 614,850 (847,000)
Net cash flows used in investing activities REFSFRAZESRE
R (339,859) (1,654,029)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES FBi&EFZEIZ2HERE
Proceeds from issue of shares BT TS 5RIE 37 1,211,260 172,518
Shares purchased for Restricted Share BLRR I M At £E B 5T B
Award Scheme BE KRG 38 (88,598) (7,863)
Interests paid for convertible bonds MAMBRELFZ T 2FE 33 (25,433) (25,375)
Capital contributions from a non-controlling —KIEERR R L E
shareholder 428,435 5,500
Repayment of loans from non-controlling EEIEEBRRRER
shareholders - (22,838)
Loans from a fellow subsidiary —XAZRMBATIER - 15,000
Repayment of loans from a fellow subsidiary, BE—HRZWBEAR
net BHFE (15,000) -
New bank loans g E 280,812 348,699
Issue of CEB BT MR R ARG S 34 1,055,023 -
Repayment of borrowings BEEER (460,444) (228,867)
Dividends paid to shareholders BT IRERARE (213,296) (160,761)
Dividends paid to non-controlling shareholders £ < 3E#2 J& i% 55 A% &, (19,529) (19,281)
Interest paid BEfFE (4,125) (3,532)
Net cash flows from financing activities METHEEREFE 2,149,105 73,200
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continued)

GREReERER(E)
Year ended 31 December 2014 HEZE - Z—WF+_A=+—HILFE

2014 2013
—E-ImF —T=F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000

et AR®TT ARBTT

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND HeRASEEEBERZ
CASH EQUIVALENTS B nE R 4,712,217 629,201
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year F# 2R & MR E&EE
HH 5,743,322 5,134,308
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net [ERE T EHEE 8,199 (20,187)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FRzEESRASEHE
END OF YEAR HE 10,463,738 5,743,322

ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND HeRREEEEEZ

CASH EQUIVALENTS oW
Non-pledged cash and bank balances RN & RIRTT AR 2,638,350 4,946,760
Time deposits TEHATF K 8,291,538 1,877,562
Cash and cash equivalents as stated FERRERAY] 2

in the statement of financial position BekE£EEER 25 10,929,888 6,824,322
Less: time deposits over three months B = A ER

TEHRTF K (466,150) (1,081,000)

Cash and cash equivalents as stated in REMERTAY 2

the statement of cash flows HeNIRSEEIER 10,463,738 5,743,322
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Statement of Financial Position

B AR 2R

31 December 2014 —Z—ME+=-A=+—H

2014 2013
—E—-ImF —=2—=
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
Mt ARET T AREF T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries KB AR ZIEE 20 3,084,504 1,989,881
Other intangible assets HihmpEeE 19 57,750 61,250
Due from subsidiaries e NG E ] 20 510,009 430,076
Total non-current assets ERENBEERE 3,652,263 2,481,207
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Prepayments, deposits and TERTRIE ~ Re Rk
other receivables H e IR R 24 47,017 24,307
Cash and cash equivalents He MRS ZEEIER 25 1,766,102 939,028
Total current assets MENEEBE 1,813,119 963,335
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBAE
Other payables and accruals HEmEERERRERAE 28 148,865 131,825
Total current liabilities mEeEEE 148,865 131,825
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEETFE 1,664,254 831,510
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BEERRBEE
LIABILITIES 5,316,517 3,312,717
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FnBaE
Due to subsidiaries JESHI B A Al FUAR 20 61,664 68,456
Convertible bonds Al E S 33 776,319 716,835
CEB A[IARR K A] s iR (E 34 1,024,382 -
Derivative financial instrument PTEEmMTA 34 24,246 -
Total non-current liabilities IEmBaEEE 1,886,611 785,291
Net assets BEFE 3,429,906 2 527,426
EQUITY =
Issued capital BEITAR AR 37 266,732 257,524
Shares held for Restricted Share ThBR B A% 1D 2B AT &I
Award Scheme A 2 38 (96,461) -
Equity component of convertible bonds Al EH 2 e 33 149,249 149,249
Equity component of CEB AJARR K AJ SR E 5 2
D 34 32,034 -
Reserves 1 40(b) 2,841,161 1,919,829
Proposed final dividend R AR HA RS 12 237,191 200,824
Total equity BRAeE 3,429,906 2,527,426
Zhou Yun Jie Tan Li Xia
Director Director
EFE EE
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Notes to Financial Statements

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Haier Electronics Group Co., Ltd. is a limited liability
company incorporated in Bermuda. The registered office of
the Company is located at Clarendon House, 2 Church
Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda.

In the opinion of the directors, the immediate holding
company of the Company is Qingdao Haier Co., Ltd.
(“Qingdao Haier”), which is established in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”), and the controlling
shareholders of the Company are Haier Group Corporation
(“Haier Corp”) and Qingdao Haier Investment and
Development Co., Ltd. (“Haier Investment”) (collectively
referred to as “Haier Group”), which are established in the
PRC, by reason of their acting in concert with each other in
respect of the Company. Qingdao Haier is a non-wholly-
owned subsidiary of Haier Corp.

During the year, the Group was involved in the following

principal activities:

° manufacture and sale of washing machines

o manufacture and sale of water heaters

° provision of logistics, after-sale and other value-added
consumer services as well as sale and distribution of

home appliances and other products procured from
subsidiaries and/or associates of Haier Group (“Haier

Affiliates”) and other external parties

Bt 755 R AR P

31 December 2014 —ZE—NE+=-A=+—H

ARER
BHEREEERAR AR B REZMKT
ZABR ARG AR A M EEMA
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton
HM11, Bermuda °
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AEEBSBAREZERARAR(BAKE])
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Haier Electronics Group Co., Ltd.

SHEEBEMERA A

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
B RS R MR ()
31 December 2014 —ZE—MNF&+_-A=+—H

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
("IFRSs”) (which include all International Financial Reporting
Standards, International Accounting Standards ("IASs”) and
Interpretations) issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (the “IASB”). These financial statements
also comply with the applicable disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance relating to the
preparation of financial statements, which for this financial
year and the comparative period continue to be those of the
predecessor Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32), in accordance
with transitional and saving arrangements for Part 9 of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), “Accounts
and Audit”, which are set out in sections 76 to 87 of Schedule
11 to that Ordinance. The financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, except for
derivative financial instruments which have been measured
at fair value. These financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB”) and all values are rounded to the nearest

thousand except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2014. The financial statements of the subsidiaries are
prepared for the same reporting period as the Company,
using consistent accounting policies. The results of
subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the
Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until

the date that such control ceases.

2.1
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2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the
Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results
in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. All
intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of

the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control described in the
accounting policy for subsidiaries below. A change in the
ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is
accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises
(i) the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the
subsidiary, (ii) the carrying amount of any non-controlling
interest and (iii) the cumulative translation differences
recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair value of the
consideration received, (ii) the fair value of any investment
retained and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or
loss. The Group’s share of components previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified to
profit or loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the same
basis as would be required if the Group had directly

disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
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Haier Electronics Group Co., Ltd.

SHEEBEMERA A

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised standards and

new interpretation for the first time for the current year’s

financial statements.

Amendments to IFRS 10,
IFRS12 and IAS 27

Amendments to IAS 32

Amendments to IAS 36

Amendments to IAS 39

IFRIC 21

Amendment to IFRS 2
included in Annual
Improvements
2010-2012 Cycle

Amendment to IFRS 3
included in Annual
Improvements
2010-2012 Cycle

Amendment to IFRS 13
included in Annual
Improvements
2010-2012 Cycle

Amendment to IFRS 1
included in Annual
Improvements
2011-2013 Cycle

Investment Entities

Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities

Recoverable Amount Disclosures
for Non-Financial Assets

Novation of Derivatives and
Continuation of Hedge
Accounting

Levies

Definition of Vesting Condition’

Accounting for Contingent
Consideration in a Business

Combination’

Short-term Receivables and
Payables

Meaning of Effective IFRSs

! Effective from 1 July 2014

2.2
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND 22 EERNSBRKE(E)

DISCLOSURES (continued)

Except for the amendment to IFRS 1 which is only relevant to

an entity’s first IFRS financial statements, the nature and the

impact of each amendment and interpretation is described

below.

(a)

Amendments to IFRS 10 include a definition of an
investment entity and provide an exception to the
consolidation requirement for entities that meet the
definition of an investment entity. Investment entities are
required to account for subsidiaries at fair value
through profit or loss rather than consolidate them.
Consequential amendments were made to IFRS 12 and
IAS 27. The amendments to IFRS 12 also set out the
disclosure requirements for investment entities. The
amendments have had no impact on the Group as the
Company does not qualify as an investment entity as
defined in IFRS 10.

The IAS 32 Amendments clarify the meaning of
“currently has a legally enforceable right to set off” for
offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities. The
amendments also clarify the application of the offsetting
criteria in IAS 32 to settlement systems (such as central
clearing house systems) which apply gross settlement
mechanisms that are not simultaneous. The
amendments have had no significant impact on the

Group.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

(c)

The IAS 39 Amendments provide an exception to the
requirement of discontinuing hedge accounting in
situations where over-the-counter derivatives
designated in hedging relationships are directly or
indirectly, novated to a central counterparty as a
consequence of laws or regulations, or the introduction
of laws or regulations. For continuance of hedge
accounting under this exception, all of the following
criteria must be met: (i) the novations must arise as a
consequence of laws or regulations, or the introduction
of laws or regulations; (ii) the parties to the hedging
instrument agree that one or more clearing
counterparties replace their original counterparty to
become the new counterparty to each of the parties;
and (iii) the novations do not result in changes to the
terms of the original derivative other than changes
directly attributable to the change in counterparty to
achieve clearing. The amendments have had no impact
on the Group as the Group has not novated any
derivatives during the current and prior years.

IFRIC 21 clarifies that an entity recognises a liability for
a levy when the activity that triggers payment, as
identified by the relevant legislation, occurs. The
interpretation also clarifies that a levy liability is accrued
progressively only if the activity that triggers payment
occurs over a period of time, in accordance with the
relevant legislation. For a levy that is triggered upon
reaching a minimum threshold, the interpretation
clarifies that no liability should be recognised before
the specified minimum threshold is reached. The
interpretation has had no impact on the Group as the
Group applied, in prior years, the recognition principles
under IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets which for the levies incurred by the

Group are consistent with the requirements of IFRIC 21.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND 22 BIBENEBRIEEE)

DISCLOSURES (continued)

(e) The IFRS 2 Amendment clarifies various issues relating (e) B BHmEEANE2RUEETA)E
to the definitions of performance and service conditions B IR BB G 2 B R AR &
which are vesting conditions, including (i) a HrzERBESEE  BIE1)ERIEHE
performance condition must contain a service ABRERBEES : (NERXRFEFRME
condition; (ii) a performance target must be met while ARFGH: » MEERESEIZ : (i)ER
the counterparty is rendering service; (iii) a B M ERMELEIEEEH -
performance target may relate to the operations or gEFE—SREAREMERBLE ST
activities of an entity, or to those of another entity in the B (iv) ERURM AT RIS IET
same group; (iv) a performance condition may be a BEE RV)WRZEFREBHR
market or non-market condition; and (v) if the T AEMRERETSBRERS - AR
counterparty, regardless of the reason, ceases to TG REER - ZIBEFTEHAEE
provide service during the vesting period, the service B E o

condition is not satisfied. The amendment has had no
impact on the Group.

(f)  The IFRS 3 Amendment clarifies that contingent ( EIERGBREEREIFRUSFTA)E
consideration arrangements arising from a business B EmADBRESNEBLE
combination that are not classified as equity should be EEXENKARELHETBEKTH
subsequently measured at fair value through profit or WEERF O BIE EEHER S 39
loss whether or not they fall within the scope of IFRS 9 FHEN EELERNEBEZAT
or IAS 39. The amendment has had no impact on the Bt AiE% - ZEBFTEAEEHEY
Group. 2.

(g) The IFRS 13 Amendment clarifies that short-term (9) FIBRMBHREERNEIIHEUETA)E
receivables and payables with no stated interest rates BEMROTZENERE - EAEF
can be measured at invoice amounts when the effect of I 52 B FE MR IA K B A SR IA AT R B
discounting is immaterial. The amendment has had no ZEHEGE c ZEBITHAEZELE
impact on the Group. Tl -
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2.3 EARRABHE REEFTER AR EER
LR EERDRGRGIE N HRERE

2.3 NEW AND REVISED IFRSs AND NEW DISCLOSURE
REQUIREMENTS UNDER THE HONG KONG
COMPANIES ORDINANCE NOT YET ADOPTED

The Group has not applied the following new and revised

IFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in

AEBWRRZFVHRERPEAATER
B 1 R AR FTR] S B RT BRI 5 ¥R o

these financial statements. £ER -
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments* BRE KGR E95% 2RIA
Amendments to IFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets BREBREERE 105 R REEZHERES
and IAS 28 (2011) between an Investor and its BRasER 2285 (B5F)  AEPEZEMEE
Associate or Joint Venture? (ZB——%) HETE
Amendments to IFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions of EREHaseE 1% WiES 2B RRY
Interests in Joint Operations? (BFTA) b
IFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts® BIREHRE e E 145 HEETKR®
IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with BIREHREERE 155 EPE&1ME°
Customers®
Amendments to IAS 16 Clarification of Acceptable B e ERIZ 16 ] BENERBENT LD
and IAS 38 Methods of Depreciation and BIRSERIZ 8 (IB3TR) 7

Amendments to IAS 16
and IAS 41

Amendments to IFRS 10,

Amortisatior?

Agriculture: Bearer Plants?

Investment Entities: Applying the

AR e ERE 165 R
B e RERE 41 5% (BT A)
BRI EERE 103% -

RX  LEItEY?

REER  EEARE

IFRS 12 and IAS 28 Consolidation Exception’ BRI BREENZ 125K oIMER?
(2011) B @Rl £ 285
(ZZ—5)(BiTK)
Amendments to IAS 1 Disclosure Initiative? R EALACHEN) BE&HE?

Amendments to IAS 19

Defined Benefit Plans: Employee

BIRR @ AR 195 (BET4)

EEERE - ERA

Contributions’
Amendments to IAS 27 Equity Method in Separate B e ERZ TR (BTR)  BUABRRZEmA
Financial Statements?
Annual Improvements Amendments to a number of F-SEZ-F-FF4  SRERMBESER
2010-2012 Cycle IFRSs’ z&g@%g (BFTR)
Annual Improvements Amendments to a number of ZE—£5-F-CHFE  SBERRBREEL
2011-2013 Cycle IFRSs’ zw-wf (BFTR)
Annual Improvements Amendments to a number of ZE-CEECE-MERE SBERRBREEL
2012-2014 Cycle IFRSs? z&g@%g (BTH)?
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2.3 NEW AND REVISED IFRSs AND NEW DISCLOSURE 2.3 & ARER#AH T RGBT BB BHREEA

REQUIREMENTS UNDER THE HONG KONG
COMPANIES ORDINANCE NOT YET ADOPTED

(continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2016

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2017

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2018

s Effective for an entity that first adopts IFRSs for its annual

financial statements beginning on or after 1 January 2016 and
therefore is not applicable to the Group

In addition, the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.
622) will affect the presentation and disclosure of certain
information in the consolidated financial statements for the
year ending 31 December 2015. The Group is in the process
of making an assessment of the impact of these changes.

Further information about those IFRSs that are expected to
be applicable to the Group is as follows:

In July 2014, the IASB issued the final version of IFRS 9,
bringing together all phases of the financial instruments
project to replace IAS 39 and all previous versions of IFRS 9.
The standard introduces new requirements for classification
and measurement, impairment and hedge accounting. The
Group expects to adopt IFRS 9 from 1 January 2018. The
Group expects that the adoption of IFRS 9 will have an
impact on the classification and measurement of the Group’s
financial assets. Further information about the impact will be
available nearer the implementation date of the standard.
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2.3 NEW AND REVISED IFRSs AND NEW DISCLOSURE 2.3 & ARER#AH T RGBT BB BHREEA

REQUIREMENTS UNDER THE HONG KONG
COMPANIES ORDINANCE NOT YET ADOPTED
(continued)

The amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 (2011) address an
inconsistency between the requirements in IFRS 10 and in
IAS 28 (2011) in dealing with the sale or contribution of
assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture.
The amendments require a full recognition of a gain or loss
when the sale or contribution of assets between an investor
and its associate or joint venture constitutes a business. For
a transaction involving assets that do not constitute a
business, a gain or loss resulting from the transaction is
recognised in the investor’s profit or loss only to the extent of
the unrelated investor’s interest in that associate or joint
venture. The amendments are to be applied prospectively.
The Group expects to adopt the amendments from 1 January
2016.

The amendments to IFRS 11 require that an acquirer of an
interest in a joint operation in which the activity of the joint
operation constitutes a business must apply the relevant
principles for business combinations in IFRS 3. The
amendments also clarify that a previously held interest in a
joint operation is not remeasured on the acquisition of an
additional interest in the same joint operation while joint
control is retained. In addition, a scope exclusion has been
added to IFRS 11 to specify that the amendments do not
apply when the parties sharing joint control, including the
reporting entity, are under common control of the same
ultimate controlling party. The amendments apply to both the
acquisition of the initial interest in a joint operation and the
acquisition of any additional interests in the same joint
operation. The amendments are not expected to have any
impact on the financial position or performance of the Group

upon adoption on 1 January 2016.
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2.3 NEW AND REVISED IFRSs AND NEW DISCLOSURE

REQUIREMENTS UNDER THE HONG KONG
COMPANIES ORDINANCE NOT YET ADOPTED
(continued)

IFRS 15 establishes a new five-step model that will apply to
revenue arising from contracts with customers. Under IFRS
15, revenue is recognised at an amount that reflects the
consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled in
exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer.
The principles in IFRS 15 provide a more structured
approach for measuring and recognising revenue. The
standard also introduces extensive qualitative and
quantitative disclosure requirements, including
disaggregation of total revenue, information about
performance obligations, changes in contract asset and
liability account balances between periods and key
judgements and estimates. The standard will supersede all
current revenue recognition requirements under IFRSs. The
Group expects to adopt IFRS 15 on 1 January 2017 and is
currently assessing the impact of IFRS 15 upon adoption.

Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 38 clarify the principle in IAS
16 and IAS 38 that revenue reflects a pattern of economic
benefits that are generated from operating business (of
which the asset is part) rather than the economic benefits
that are consumed through the use of the asset. As a result,
a revenue-based method cannot be used to depreciate
property, plant and equipment and may only be used in very
limited circumstances to amortise intangible assets. The
amendments are to be applied prospectively. The
amendments are not expected to have any impact on the
financial position or performance of the Group upon adoption
on 1 January 2016 as the Group has not used a revenue-

based method for the calculation of depreciation of its non-

current assets.
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2.3
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2.3 NEW AND REVISED IFRSs AND NEW DISCLOSURE 2.3 & ARER#AH T RGBT BB BHREEA
REQUIREMENTS UNDER THE HONG KONG UREBARGOETHRERE (&)
COMPANIES ORDINANCE NOT YET ADOPTED

(continued)

The amendments to IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial BB B 53REER F10A S HFHRE
Statements, IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities BB SRS B2 R A e 1%
and IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures 2R R BB & 5T A RIS 28 S OB & 4 Al
introduce minor clarifications to the requirements when REERNFIZIREZIEEISIANREEE S
accounting for investment entities. The amendments also BIERTE A TEE - B EFTTRERNE
provide relief in particular circumstances, which will reduce NGETFER - HERERABREZER /A -
the costs of applying the standards.

The Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle issued ®n= %—Ei—ﬁ MR B B BR 1 75 4R 2 2 Y
in January 2014 sets out amendments to a number of IFRSs. FFEF Z AR FREMEE
Except for those described in note 2.2, the Group expects to 5']&%.5?%@%%*&%5@545’9@ 7] o BRMfIFE2.2
adopt the amendments from 1 January 2015. None of the Frit&Esh - REBEBBE T —RAF—A—
amendments are expected to have a significant financial ARERMZEEE] - HAREFEIHIeY
impact on the Group. Details of the amendment most REEBKRERYHZE - HBEARALAEE
applicable to the Group are as follows: BEETREIEAT -

IFRS 8 Operating Segments: Clarifies that an entity must BB RE R ESRAL TS - BEE
disclose the judgements made by management in applying BN E R BB B E E R B 8RR E
the aggregation criteria in IFRS 8, including a brief Fj/‘iﬁquAﬁE‘EEfﬁVﬁﬁE’]#lﬂﬁﬁ BIEFT
description of operating segments that have been FEREDHBORALARTES IS
aggregated and the economic characteristics used to assess HURREBEE - BB NEENHE
whether the segments are similar. The amendments also ERAEENHRETZEHERETRSE
clarify that a reconciliation of segment assets to total assets BREEZIENT AR -

is only required to be disclosed if the reconciliation is

reported to the chief operating decision maker.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FEETHRHME

POLICIES
Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity),
directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is
achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the investee and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power over
the investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group the

current ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the
Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in
assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders
of the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s

statement of profit or loss to the extent of dividends received
and receivable. The Company’s investments in subsidiaries

are stated at cost less any impairment losses.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FEETHBERBEGE)

POLICIES (continued)
Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred is
measured at the acquisition date fair value which is the sum
of the acquisition date fair values of assets transferred by the
Group, liabilities assumed by the Group to the former owners
of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group
in exchange for control of the acquiree. For each business
combination, the Group elects whether to measure the non-
controlling interests in the acquiree that are present
ownership interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets in the event of liquidation at
fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other components of non-
controlling interests are measured at fair value. Acquisition-
related costs are expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the
financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the
contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent
conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the
separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts of the

acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition
date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in

profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
Contingent consideration classified as an asset or liability
that is a financial instrument and within the scope of IAS 39 is
measured at fair value with changes in fair value either
recognised in profit or loss or as a change to other
comprehensive income. If the contingent consideration is not
within the scope of IAS 39, it is measured in accordance with
the appropriate IFRS. Contingent consideration that is
classified as equity is not measured and subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the
aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of
the Group’s previously held equity interests in the acquiree
over the identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities
assumed. If the sum of this consideration and other items is
lower than the fair value of the net assets acquired, the
difference is, after reassessment, recognised in profit or loss
as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be
impaired. The Group performs its annual impairment test of
goodwill as at 31 December. For the purpose of impairment
testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from
the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash-
generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group

are assigned to those units or groups of units.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FEGHBEBEE)
POLICIES (continued)
Business combinations and goodwill (continued) (¥REHREE(E)

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-
generating units) to which the goodwill relates. Where the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit (group of
cash-generating units) is less than the carrying amount, an
impairment loss is recognised. An impairment loss
recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent
period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit
(or group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation
within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with
the operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount
of the operation when determining the gain or loss on the
disposal. Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances is
measured based on the relative value of the operation
disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit
retained.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its derivative financial instruments at
fair value at the end of each reporting period. Fair value is
the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place
either in the principal market for the asset or liability, or in the
absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous
market for the asset or liability. The principal or the most
advantageous market must be accessible by the Group. The
fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the
assumptions that market participants would use when pricing
the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in

their economic best interest.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FEETHBERBEGE)

POLICIES (continued)
Fair value measurement (continued)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the

asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available
to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable

inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within
the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value

measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is observable, either directly
or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair

value measurement is unobservable
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FEETHBERBEGE)

POLICIES (continued)
Fair value measurement (continued)

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the
hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as
a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, financial assets and goodwill), the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit's
value in use and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those
from other assets or groups of assets, in which case the
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating

unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss
is charged to the statement of profit or loss in the period in
which it arises in those expense categories consistent with

the function of the impaired asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FEETHBERBEGE)

POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period
as to whether there is an indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may
have decreased. If such an indication exists, the recoverable
amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment
loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there
has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount
higher than the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years.
A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to the
statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises.

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s

family and that person

(iy  has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii)  is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group;

or
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FEESTBEBEAE)
POLICIES (continued)
Related parties (continued) BEAL(E)
(b) the party is an entity where any of the following (b) fHFE TIEMEE  ZHEEEE

conditions applies:

(i)  the entity and the Group are members of the () ZEREASEER-—SB2ZK
same group; I=P/NGIN

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the (il —FAERBRS—EBZBERA
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow SEEE(KS—EEBZER
subsidiary of the other entity); A B ARIKRERMB AR

(i)  the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the (i) ZEBRAIEEHAR—
same third party; ZARERE:

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and (ivy —HBERBRF=FEEz2EG=2]
the other entity is an associate of the third entity; ¥ Mr—EBEBRZFE=ZER

i /NG|

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for (V) RZREBAHBEENFE - &
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an BB ANRREESEREEH
entity related to the Group; FHAZEBRER

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a (vi) ZE%H(a )IﬁﬁﬁﬁETiZ/\iTZ@
person identified in (a); and il =k H EE I

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant (vii) ()BT ATHZERE
influence over the entity or is a member of the key BEAFENSBZER(NZE
management personnel of the entity (or of a BINRAF)EZEEBABZK

parent of the entity). 8o
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FEETHBERBEGE)

POLICIES (continued)
Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property,
plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to the statement of profit
or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where
the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a
major inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the
asset as a replacement. Where significant parts of property,
plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals,
the Group recognises such parts as individual assets with
specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to
its residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal

annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Buildings 2% to 19%
5% to 33%
5% to 33%
9% to 24%

Plant and machinery
Tools, furniture and fixtures

Motor vehicles
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on
a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Residual values, useful lives and the
depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if

appropriate, at least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the
year the asset is derecognised is the difference between the
net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant
asset.

Construction in progress is stated at cost less any impairment
losses, and is not depreciated. Construction in progress is
reclassified to the appropriate category of the property, plant

and equipment when completed and ready for use.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FEETHBERBEGE)

POLICIES (continued)
Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in buildings (including the
leasehold interest under an operating lease for a property
which would otherwise meet the definition of an investment
property) held to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation, rather than for use in the production or supply
of goods or services or for administrative purposes; or for
sale in the ordinary course of business. Such properties are
measured initially at cost, including transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses. Depreciation is calculated on the straight-
line method to write off the cost of each investment property
over its estimated useful life. The principal annual rate used
for this purpose is 5%.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in the statement of profit

or loss in the year of the retirement or disposal.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in
a business combination is the fair value at the date of
acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed
to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite
lives are subsequently amortised over the useful economic
life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an
indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The
amortisation period and the amortisation method for an
intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least

at each financial year end.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FEETHBERBEGE)

POLICIES (continued)
Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (continued)

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for
impairment annually either individually or at the cash-
generating unit level. Such intangible assets are not
amortised. The useful life of an intangible asset with an
indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether the
indefinite life assessment continues to be supportable. If not,
the change in the useful life assessment from indefinite to

finite is accounted for on a prospective basis.

Patents, licences and softwares

Purchased patents, licences and software are stated at cost
less any impairment losses and softwares acquired through
business combinations are initially stated at fair value. They
are amortised on the straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives of not exceeding 10 years.

Management services arrangements

Management services arrangements are initially stated at fair
value and subsequently amortised on the straight-line basis
over the tenure of management services arrangements of 20

years.

Customer relationships

Customer relationships acquired through business
combinations are initially stated at fair value and
subsequently amortised on the straight-line basis over their

estimated useful lives of not exceeding 10 years.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FEETHBERBEGE)

POLICIES (continued)
Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (continued)
Trademark

Trademark has an indefinite useful life and is stated at cost,

less any identified impairment losses.

Research and development costs

All research costs are charged to the statement of profit or
loss as incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is
capitalised and deferred only when the Group can
demonstrate the technical feasibility of completing the
intangible asset so that it will be available for use or sale, its
intention to complete and its ability to use or sell the asset,
how the asset will generate future economic benefits, the
availability of resources to complete the project and the
ability to measure reliably the expenditure during the
development. Product development expenditure which does

not meet these criteria is expensed when incurred.

Deferred development costs are stated at cost less any
impairment losses and are amortised using the straight-line
basis over the commercial lives of the underlying products,
commencing from the date when the products are put into

commercial production.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FEETHBERBEGE)

POLICIES (continued)
Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for
as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessor, assets
leased by the Group under operating leases are included in
non-current assets, and rentals receivable under the
operating leases are credited to the statement of profit or
loss on the straight-line basis over the lease terms. Where the
Group is the lessee, rentals payable under operating leases
net of any incentives received from the lessor are charged to
the statement of profit or loss on the straight-line basis over
the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are
initially stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
receivables and available-for-sale financial investments, or
as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an
effective hedge, as appropriate. When financial assets are
recognised initially, they are measured at fair value plus
transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the
financial assets, except in the case of financial assets
recorded at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the period generally

established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

mEEY

NEERARE BR8N ER TS b
MAZERAE 2L - B BEERY -
HAEERHEA  AEBRBLEHEOL
M2EBEEDAFRDEEAN - MEEHD
ATz BREHESEERZERRRE AR
B - WMAKREAABEA  AIREZSLE
MH RN 2 B2 (B A HAAREZ ER
BR) HABRAENE AR R -

REMQ AN LA ERE REAAT
B BRABREAREIARER -

RENREMUBEE
BB KT 2

MBEENBRERR A D EREBRRMRK
BAFEIGRZHBEE  BEXRERE
Ho AR EMERE - KEEANBRY
AR EER TAZITETAGRBRME) °
BRERMBEER  RAFHEM KB
BEERGZXZERE DB BIRD
RN THEAR M EEERIRRIDN -

FIBREREBECMBEERRSE A (A
AEEAGEBERNNEEEZ AH) R -
EREERANT S — REEERGISAE BT
REZHRARNEEZHFEEETE -




Annual Report 2014 &£ 3§

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
B RS R MR ()

31 December 2014 —ZE—MNF+_-A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FEETHBERBEGE)

POLICIES (continued)
Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends
on their classification as follows:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include
financial assets held for trading and financial assets
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through
profit or loss. Financial assets are classified as held for
trading if they are acquired for the purpose of sale in the near
term. Derivatives, including separated embedded derivatives,
are also classified as held for trading unless they are
designated as effective hedging instruments as defined by
IAS 39.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried
in the statement of financial position at fair value with positive
net changes in fair value presented as other income and
gains and negative net changes in fair value presented as
other expenses and losses in the statement of profit or loss.
These net fair value changes do not include any dividends or
interest earned on these financial assets, which are
recognised in accordance with the policies set out for

“Revenue recognition” below.

Financial assets designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss are designated at the date of
initial recognition and only if the criteria in IAS 39 are

satisfied.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FEETHBERBEGE)

POLICIES (continued)
Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (continued)

Derivatives embedded in host contracts are accounted for as
separate derivatives and recorded at fair value if their
economic characteristics and risks are not closely related to
those of the host contracts and the host contracts are not
held for trading or designated as at fair value through profit
or loss. These embedded derivatives are measured at fair
value with changes in fair value recognised in the statement
of profit or loss. Reassessment only occurs if there is either a
change in the terms of the contract that significantly modifies
the cash flows that would otherwise be required or a
reclassification of a financial asset out of the fair value

through profit or loss category.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. After initial measurement, such assets are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method less any allowance for impairment.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and includes fees or
costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest rate amortisation is included in other
income and gains in the statement of profit or loss. The loss
arising from impairment is recognised in the statement of

profit or loss in other expenses and losses.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FEGHBEBEE)
POLICIES (continued)
Investments and other financial assets (continued) RERHEMMEEE (&)

Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-derivative
financial assets in listed and unlisted equity investments and
debt securities. Equity investments classified as available for
sale are those which are neither classified as held for trading
nor designated as at fair value through profit or loss. Debt
securities in this category are those which are intended to be
held for an indefinite period of time and which may be sold in
response to needs for liquidity or in response to changes in
market conditions.

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial
investments are subsequently measured at fair value, with
unrealised gains or losses recognised as other
comprehensive income in the available-for-sale investment
revaluation reserve until the investment is derecognised, at
which time the cumulative gain or loss is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss in other income, or until the
investment is determined to be impaired, when the
cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from the available-for-
sale investment revaluation reserve to the statement of profit
or loss in other gains or losses. Interest and dividends
earned whilst holding the available-for-sale financial
investments are reported as interest income and dividend
income, respectively and are recognised in the statement of
profit or loss as other income in accordance with the policies

set out for “Revenue recognition” below.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FEETHBERBEGE)

POLICIES (continued)
Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

When the fair value of unlisted equity investments cannot be
reliably measured because (a) the variability in the range of
reasonable fair value estimates is significant for that
investment or (b) the probabilities of the various estimates
within the range cannot be reasonably assessed and used in
estimating fair value, such investments are stated at cost less

any impairment losses.

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention to sell
its available-for-sale financial assets in the near term are still
appropriate. When, in rare circumstances, the Group is
unable to trade these financial assets due to inactive
markets, the Group may elect to reclassify these financial
assets if management has the ability and intention to hold the
assets for the foreseeable future or until maturity.

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-for-sale
category, the fair value carrying amount at the date of
reclassification becomes its new amortised cost and any
previous gain or loss on that asset that has been recognised
in equity is amortised to profit or loss over the remaining life
of the investment using the effective interest rate. Any
difference between the new amortised cost and the maturity
amount is also amortised over the remaining life of the asset
using the effective interest rate. If the asset is subsequently

determined to be impaired, then the amount recorded in

equity is reclassified to the statement of profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position) when:

° the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

° the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to
pay the received cash flows in full without material
delay to a third party under a “pass-through”
arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or
(b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but
has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained
the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the
Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the
extent of the Group’s continuing involvement. In that case,
the Group also recognises an associated liability. The
transferred asset and the associated liability are measured
on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over
the transferred assets is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of

consideration that the Group could be required to repay.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FEGHBEBEE)
POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of financial assets MEEERE

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired. An impairment exists if
one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition
of the asset have an impact on the estimated future cash
flows of the financial asset or the group of financial assets
that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may
include indications that a debtor or a group of debtors is
experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability
that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation and observable data indicating that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows,
such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that
correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first
assesses whether impairment exists individually for financial
assets that are individually significant, or collectively for
financial assets that are not individually significant. If the
Group determines that no objective evidence of impairment
exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether
significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial
assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively
assesses them for impairment. Assets that are individually
assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is,

or continues to be, recognised are not included in a

collective assessment of impairment.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Financial assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future
credit losses that have not yet been incurred). The present
value of the estimated future cash flows is discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e., the
effective interest rate computed at initial recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use
of an allowance account and the loss is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss. Interest income continues to be
accrued on the reduced carrying amount and is accrued
using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash
flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss.
Loans and receivables together with any associated
allowance are written off when there is no realistic prospect
of future recovery and all collateral has been realised or has

been transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is increased or
reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a write-off is
later recovered, the recovery is credited to the statement of

profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FEETHBERBEGE)

POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has
been incurred on an unquoted equity instrument that is not
carried at fair value because its fair value cannot be reliably
measured, or on a derivative asset that is linked to and must
be settled by delivery of such an unquoted equity instrument,
the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market
rate of return for a similar financial asset. Impairment losses

on these assets are not reversed.

Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group
assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there
is objective evidence that an investment or a group of
investments is impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount
comprising the difference between its cost (net of any
principal payment and amortisation) and its current fair value,
less any impairment loss previously recognised in the
statement of profit or loss, is removed from other
comprehensive income and recognised in the statement of

profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

In the case of equity investments classified as available for
sale, objective evidence would include a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment below its
cost. “Significant” is evaluated against the original cost of the
investment and “prolonged” against the period in which the
fair value has been below its original cost. Where there is
evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss — measured as
the difference between the acquisition cost and the current
fair value, less any impairment loss on that investment
previously recognised in the statement of profit or loss — is
removed from other comprehensive income and recognised
in the statement of profit or loss. Impairment losses on equity
instruments classified as available for sale are not reversed
through the statement of profit or loss. Increases in their fair
value after impairment are recognised directly in other

comprehensive income.

The determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged”
requires judgement. In making this judgement, the Group

evaluates, among other factors, the duration or extent to

which the fair value of an investment is less than its cost.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FEETHBERBEGE)

POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

In the case of debt instruments classified as available for
sale, impairment is assessed based on the same criteria as
financial assets carried at amortised cost. However, the
amount recorded for impairment is the cumulative loss
measured as the difference between the amortised cost and
the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that
investment previously recognised in the statement of profit or
loss. Future interest income continues to be accrued based
on the reduced carrying amount of the asset and is accrued
using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash
flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss. The
interest income is recorded as part of other income.
Impairment losses on debt instruments are reversed through
the statement of profit or loss if the subsequent increase in
fair value of the instruments can be objectively related to an
event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised in
the statement of profit or loss.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and borrowings, or as derivatives designated as hedging
instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and,

in the case of loans and borrowings, net of directly

attributable transaction costs.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FEETHBERBEGE)

POLICIES (continued)
Financial liabilities (continued)
Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends
on their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include
financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through
profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are
acquired for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term.
This category includes derivative financial instruments
entered into by the Group that are not designated as hedging
instruments in hedge relationships as defined by IAS 39.
Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held
for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments. Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss. The net fair
value gain or loss recognised in the statement of profit or loss
does not include any interest charged on these financial
liabilities.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at
fair value through profit or loss are designated at the date of
initial recognition and only if the criteria in IAS 39 are

satisfied.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FEESTBEBEAE)
POLICIES (continued)
Financial liabilities (continued) BEaE(E)
Loans and borrowings EXMREE
After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings REXERE  sFRRITERREEERIA

are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest rate method unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.
Gains and losses are recognised in the statement of profit or
loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through
the effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are
an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in finance costs in the
statement of profit or loss.

Convertible bonds

The component of convertible bonds that exhibits
characteristics of a liability is recognised as a liability in the
statement of financial position, net of transaction costs. On
issuance of convertible bonds, the fair value of the liability
component is determined using a market rate for an
equivalent non-convertible bond; and this amount is carried
as a long term liability on the amortised cost basis until
extinguished on conversion or redemption. The remainder of
the proceeds is allocated to the conversion option that is
recognised and included in shareholders’ equity, net of
transaction costs. The carrying amount of the conversion
option is not remeasured in subsequent years. Transaction
costs are apportioned between the liability and equity
components of the convertible bonds based on the allocation
of proceeds to the liability and equity components when the

instruments are first recognised.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Financial liabilities (continued)
Convertible bonds (continued)

If the conversion option of convertible bonds exhibits
characteristics of an embedded derivative, it is separated
from its liability component. On initial recognition, the
derivative component of the convertible bonds is measured
at fair value and presented as part of derivative financial
instruments. Any excess of proceeds over the amount initially
recognised as the derivative component is recognised as the
liability component. Transaction costs are apportioned
between the liability and derivative components of the
convertible bonds based on the allocation of proceeds to the
liability and derivative components when the instruments are
initially recognised. The portion of the transaction costs
relating to the liability component is recognised initially as
part of the liability. The portion relating to the derivative
component is recognised immediately in the statement of

profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the
terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such
an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of
the original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and
the difference between the respective carrying amounts is

recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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Haier Electronics Group Co., Ltd.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
B RS R MR ()
31 December 2014 —ZE—MNF&+_-A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FESHEEHSEE)
POLICIES (continued)
Offsetting of financial instruments HEEMIA

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if
there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities

simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on the weighted average basis
and, in the case of work in progress and finished goods,
comprises direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate
proportion of overheads. Net realisable value is based on the
estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to be
incurred to completion and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
demand deposits, and short term highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have
a short maturity of generally within three months when
acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash

management.

For the purpose of the statement of financial position, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks,
including term deposits, and assets similar in nature to cash,

which are not restricted as to use.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is
recognised outside profit or loss, either in other

comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period, taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

° when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at
the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, when the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled
and it is probable that the temporary differences will not

reverse in the foreseeable future.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FEETHBERBEGE)

POLICIES (continued)
Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits
and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are
recognised, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and

unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

° when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, deferred
tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that the temporary differences will reverse in
the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can
be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at
the end of each reporting period and are recognised to the
extent that it has become probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax

asset to be recovered.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FEETHBERBEGE)

POLICIES (continued)
Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset
is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a
legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to
the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be

made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end of
the reporting period of the future expenditures expected to
be required to settle the obligation. The increase in the
discounted present value amount arising from the passage
of time is included in finance costs in the statement of profit
or loss.

Provisions for installation services and product warranties
granted by the Group on certain products are recognised
based on sales volume and past experience of the level of
installation services rendered, repairs or returns, discounted

to their present values as appropriate.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FEETHBERBEGE)

POLICIES (continued)
Provisions (continued)

A contingent liability recognised in a business combination is
initially measured at its fair value. Subsequently, it is
measured at the higher of (i) the amount that would be
recognised in accordance with the general guidance for
provisions above; and (ii) the amount initially recognised less,
when appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised in

accordance with the guidance for revenue recognition.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the
grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income
on a systematic basis over the periods that the costs, which
it is intended to compensate, are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited
to a deferred income account and is released to the
statement of profit or loss over the expected useful life of the
relevant asset by equal annual instalments or deducted from
the carrying amount of the asset and released to the

statement of profit or loss by way of a reduced depreciation

charge.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic

benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be

measured reliably, on the following bases:

(a)

(c)

(e)

from the sale of goods, when the significant risks and
rewards of ownership have been transferred to the
buyer, provided that the Group maintains neither
managerial involvement to the degree usually
associated with ownership, nor effective control over
the goods sold;

from the rendering of services, when the services are

rendered;

rental income, on a time proportion basis over the lease
terms;

interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the
expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter
period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of
the financial asset; and

dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to

receive payment has been established.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FEETHBERBEGE)

POLICIES (continued)
Employee benefits
Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s
operations. Employees (including directors) of the Group
receive remuneration in the form of share-based payments,
whereby employees render services as consideration for
equity instruments (“equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees for
grants is measured by reference to the fair value at the date
at which they are granted. The fair value is determined by an
external valuer using a binomial model, further details of
which are given in note 39 to the financial statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised,
together with a corresponding increase in equity, over the
period in which the performance and/or service conditions
are fulfilled in employee benefit expense. The cumulative
expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at the end
of each reporting period until the vesting date reflects the
extent to which the vesting period has expired and the
Group’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments
that will ultimately vest. The charge or credit to the statement
of profit or loss for a period represents the movement in the
cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and end

of that period.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Employee benefits (continued)
Share-based payments (continued)

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately
vest, except for equity-settled transactions where vesting is
conditional upon a market or non-vesting condition, which
are treated as vesting irrespective of whether or not the
market or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided that all

other performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as
a minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not
been modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In
addition, an expense is recognised for any modification that
increases the total fair value of the share-based payments, or
is otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at the
date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if
it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense
not yet recognised for the award is recognised immediately.
This includes any award where non-vesting conditions within
the control of either the Group or the employee are not met.
However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled
award, and is designated as a replacement award on the
date that it is granted, the cancelled and new awards are
treated as if they were a modification of the original award, as
described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as

additional share dilution in the computation of earnings per

share.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FEGHBEBEE)
POLICIES (continued)
Employee benefits (continued) EEEF (&)

Shares held for Restricted Share Award Scheme

As disclosed in note 38 to the financial statements, the Group
has adopted the Restricted Share Award Scheme (“Award
Scheme”), under which the Company may purchase the
scheme shares on the open market through the trust or issue
and allot new scheme shares to the trustee. The
consideration for the purchase of shares, including any
directly attributable incremental costs, is presented as
“Shares held for Restricted Share Award Scheme” and
deducted from the Group’s equity.

Pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for those employees who are eligible to participate
in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based on a
percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged
to the statement of profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of
the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in an independently administrated fund. The Group’'s
employer contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in
Mainland China are required to participate in central pension
schemes operated by the local municipal governments.
These subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain
percentage of their payroll costs to the central pension
schemes. The contributions are charged to the statement of
profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with the

rules of the central pension schemes.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the
cost of those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing
costs ceases when the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the
temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing
costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs
in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the directors are classified as a
separate allocation of retained profits within the equity
section of the statement of financial position, until they have
been approved by the shareholders in a general meeting.
When these dividends have been approved by the

shareholders and declared, they are recognised as a liability.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company’s bye-laws grant the directors the
authority to declare interim dividends. Consequently, interim
dividends are recognised immediately as a liability when they

are proposed and declared.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FESHEEHSEE)
POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currencies hi
These financial statements are presented in RMB, which is WEMBEHRRUALER 2 27| EEARKESR
the Group’s presentation currency. The functional currency P o KRR ZINEEEE BB ERREZ
of the Company is the Hong Kong dollar while the RMB is M mENAAREBZY - AEERAEER 2
used as the presentation currency of the financial statements HEME—E - ZIX’EEETXE%;Q FTREAR
of the Company for the purpose of aligning with the B2 E%  MEBEBZHMBHRKRMEE
presentation currency of the Group. Each entity in the Group EB RS quE o REBIE RS 2
determines its own functional currency and items included in m&%%%&&ixé ZRSAEBIT I
the financial statements of each entity are measured using EEMSTER AR - INEFHECEREER
that functional currency. Foreign currency transactions fashz WMEMRBIT2NEEEERKRE
recorded by the entities in the Group are initially recorded REE I EERIBEFEE CIERLZEN
using their respective functional currency rates prevailing at B R TR ©
the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of the
reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or
translation of monetary items are recognised in the statement
of profit or loss.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical LASNES R SE PR AET 2 2 FEE B IE B 1R IRFT R
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange SABZEXRBE  MEQATETE 2INE
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary FEMERZFEATFEEH ZEXRR
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are HoARERNTEFEZIERKERmME
translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair EMERIRERZIBE A TEES 2B —
value was measured. The gain or loss arising on translation B EAREB(AMEAFEERENEME
of a non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated in EW s EmRERCIER - HREZETD
line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair B ORI EM 2 E W RSB R R TER) ©

value of the item (i.e., translation difference on the item
whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in other

comprehensive income or profit or loss is also recognised in

other comprehensive income or profit or loss, respectively).




2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currencies (continued)

The functional currencies of the subsidiaries not established
in the PRC are currencies other than the RMB. As at the end
of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these
entities are translated into the presentation currency of the
Company at exchange rates prevailing at the end of the
reporting period and their statements of profit or loss are
translated into RMB at the weighted average exchange rates

for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
component of other comprehensive income relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognised in the statement of
profit or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
the cash flows of the subsidiaries not established in the PRC
are translated into RMB at the exchange rates ruling at the
dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of
these subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are
translated into RMB at the weighted average exchange rates

for the year.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND 3. EXREFHERMAE
ESTIMATES
The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires BEANEETBREN - TEEAEL 4

management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenue,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and their accompanying
disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities.
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the
future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from
those involving estimations, which have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Operating lease commitments — Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases on
its property portfolio. The Group has determined, based on
an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the
arrangements, that it retains all the significant risks and
rewards of ownership of these properties which are leased

out on operating leases.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)
Judgements (continued)

Classification between investment properties and owner-
occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an
investment property, and has developed criteria in making
that judgement. Investment property is a property held to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both. Therefore, the
Group considers whether a property generates cash flows
largely independently of the other assets held by the Group.
Some properties comprise a portion that is held to earn
rentals or for capital appreciation and another portion that is
held for use in the production or supply of goods or services
or for administrative purposes. If these portions could be sold
separately or leased out separately under a finance lease,
the Group accounts for the portions separately. If the portions
could not be sold separately, the property is an investment
property only if an insignificant portion is held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes. Judgement is made on an individual
property basis to determine whether ancillary services are so
significant that a property does not qualify as an investment
property.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities

within the next financial year, are described below.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least
on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value-
in-use of the cash-generating units to which the goodwill is
allocated. Estimating the value-in-use requires the Group to
make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from the
cash-generating units and also to choose a suitable discount
rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash
flows. The carrying amount of goodwill at 31 December 2014
was RMB74,530,000 (2013: RMB6,123,000). Further details

are given in note 18.

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for all non-financial assets at the end of each
reporting period. Indefinite life intangible assets are tested
for impairment annually and at other times when such an
indicator exists. Other non-financial assets are tested for
impairment when there are indicators that the carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment exists when
the carrying value of an asset or a cash-generating unit
exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair
value less costs of disposal and its value-in-use. The
calculation of the fair value less costs of disposal is based on
available data from binding sales transactions in an arm’s
length transaction of similar assets or observable market
prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset.
When value-in-use calculations are undertaken, management
must estimate the expected future cash flows from the asset
or cash-generating unit and choose a suitable discount rate

in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.

3.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment

Management determines the estimated useful lives and
related depreciation for the Group’s property, plant and
equipment. This estimate is based on the historical
experience of the actual useful lives of items of property,
plant and equipment of similar nature and functions. It could
change significantly as a result of technical innovations and
competitor actions in response to industry cycles. The
depreciation charge will increase when the useful lives are
less than the previously estimated useful lives, or
management will write off or write down obsolete or non-
strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold. At 31
December 2014, the carrying amount of the property, plant
and equipment was RMB2,135,286,000 (2013:
RMB1,488,068,000).

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for deductible temporary
differences, carryforward of unused tax credits and unused
tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses can be utilised. Significant management
judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred
tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely
timing and level of future taxable profits together with future

tax planning strategies. The carrying value of deferred tax
assets at 31 December 2014 was RMB623,548,000 (2013:
RMB592,656,000).

3.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Impairment of receivables

The Group maintains an allowance for estimated loss arising
from the inability of its debtors to make the required
payments. The Group makes its estimates based on the
ageing of its receivable balances, debtors’ creditworthiness,
and historical write-off experience. If the financial condition of
its debtors was to deteriorate so that the actual impairment
loss might be higher than expected, the Group would be
required to revise the basis of making the allowance. At 31
December 2014, the carrying amounts of trade and bills
receivables and other receivables were RMB6,848,385,000
(2013: RMB7,558,920,000) and RMB525,619,000 (2013:
RMB440,450,000), respectively.

Write-down of inventories to net realisable value

Write-down of inventories to net realisable value is made
based on the ageing and estimated net realisable value of
inventories. The assessment of the write-down amount
involves management’s judgements and estimates. Where
the actual outcome or expectation in future is different from
the original estimate, such differences will impact the
carrying value of the inventories and the write-down charge/
reversal in the period in which such estimate has been

changed. At 31 December 2014, the carrying amount of
inventories was RMB3,668,067,000 (2013:
RMB2,891,587,000).

3.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Product warranty and installation provisions

Product warranty and installation provisions are made based
on sales volume and past experience of the level of
installation services rendered, repairs or returns. The
assessment of the provision amount involves management’s
judgements and estimates. Where the actual outcome or
expectation in future is different from the original estimate,
such differences will impact the carrying amount of the
product warranty and installation provisions and the provision
amount charged/reversed in the period in which such
estimate has been changed. At 31 December 2014, the
product warranty and installation provisions amounted to

RMB837,184,000 (2013: RMB840,135,000).

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into
business units based on their products and services and has
three reportable segments as follows:

(a) the washing machine business segment manufactures
and sells washing machines;

(b) the water heater business segment manufactures and
sells water heaters; and

(c) the integrated channel services segment provides
logistics, after-sale and other value-added consumer
services as well as sells and distributes home
appliances and other products procured from Haier

Affiliates and other external parties.

3.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating

4,

RESBER (B)

EREBUEEAEERKENRIEE

segments separately for the purpose of making decisions ERERNDEENFIZRIR ZREER - Hf8
about resources allocation and performance assessment. KRFEDERAIRED N - DEEF

Segment performance is evaluated based on reportable
segment profit, which is a measure of adjusted profit before
tax. The adjusted profit before tax is measured consistently
with the Group’s profit before tax except that bank interest
income, interest income from deposits for bank financial
products, finance costs as well as corporate and other
unallocated expenses are excluded from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude deferred tax assets, pledged
deposits, deposits for bank financial products, cash and
cash equivalents and corporate and other unallocated assets

as these assets are managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude an amount due to a fellow
subsidiary, interest-bearing borrowings, tax payable,
deferred tax liabilities, convertible bonds, CEB and corporate
and other unallocated liabilities as these liabilities are

managed on a group basis.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted in
accordance with the terms and conditions mutually agreed

by the parties involved.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4. REFBVERE)
Washing machine Water heater Integrated
business business channel services Consolidated
RRBER HhEEY REGAREER &&
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
“E-jf -3--f ZB-mF -T--f ZE-@mF -%--f CE-mE -
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR  ARETT  ARETR ARETR  ARETn ARETR  ARMTR  ARETR
Segment revenue: PEUA
Sales to external customers ANERPHEE 5,090,092 4,804,767 878,968 907312 61,164902 56551083 67,133,962 62,263,162
Intersegment sales PERBE 9,771,736 9417158 3,665,950  3450,345 1,067,827 1,016,704 14,511,113 13,884,207
Total &t 14,867,828 14221925 4544518 4357657 62,232,729 57567787 81,645,075 76,147,369
Reconciliation: FE.
Elimination of intersegment sales £ AERHHE (14511,113)  (13,884,207)
Segment revenue BET 0N 67,133,962 62,263,162
Segment other income and gains ~ HEEMMA R 62,238 48757 13,395 17,165 61,101 56,339 136,734 124,261
Total segment revenue, other FEUN - EHRAR
income and gains Wasieg 67,270,696 62,387,423
Segment results PEEE 1,351,785 1,240,626 533,957 479,104 1,255,161 1050424 3,140,903 2,770,154
Reconciliation: FE.
Elimination of intersegment results ¥ 7 iR £48 (26,237) (83,040)
Bank interest income BITHIBMA 246,513 79,681
Interest income from deposits for TR ERRH
bank financial products TN 7,515 -
Corporate and other unallocated  AFIREMAEL
expenses (106,818) (60,621)
Finance costs BERA (95,961) (68,334)
Profit before tax BHaaF 3,165,915 2637840
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4,

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4. RESBEENE)
Washing machine Water heater Integrated
business business channel services Consolidated
RRBER BABER REGARBES &e
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
Z%-mF T ZB-mF -F--f CZE-mE -—E--f ZE-mF —E-Zf%
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR  ARETL ARETR ARETr ARMTn ARETR  ARETR  ARETR

Segment assets PBEE 4,724,101 5,044,107 1,385,883 1,734.231 10,086,820 9381339 16,196,804 16,159,677
Reconciliation: Fs
Elimination of intersegment Y BRI

receivables (1,804,789)  (3428,353)
Deferred tax asses EithagE 623,548 502,656
Pledged deposits BEAER 105,09 220,350
Deposits for bank financial FTBHNERER

products 242,400 -
Cash and cash equivalents BeRE4ZEER 10,929,888 6824322
Corporate and ofher unallocated ~ RAIREMANTEE

assels 1,222,327 1512511
Total assets BELE 27515274 21,881,163
Segment liabilities 2EE8E 2,302,668 1,964,579 962,315 818,524 9,480,155 86880621  12,745138 11471724
Reconciliation: e
Elimination of intersegment YD ERERE

payables (1,804789)  (3428353)
Deferred tax liabilties EiEaE 15,602 8,503
Tax payable EMHE 542,602 693 964
Due to a fellow subsidlary EN-FE%

MEBARE - 15,000

Interest-bearing borrowings HEEE - 159,633
Convertible bonds HRES 716,319 716,83
CEB AARRTERES 1,024,382 -
Corporate and other unallocated ~ AFREHASEEE

liabilities 2113980 4,186,193
Total liabiliies BEEE 15413234 13823499
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4., REIWEH(E)

Washing machine Water heater Integrated
business business channel services Consolidated
RREER BABEE RERCREEE &a
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
“E-mE -F-=F C5-mE -F--F CZE-mE -F--F ZE-mE 5=

RMB000  RVBOOO  RMB'000  RWBOOO  RMB'00D  RVBOOO  RMBOO0  RMBOD
ARBTR  ARETL  ARBTR  ARETI  ARMFR  ARETL  ARRTR  ARETR

Other segment information: EARER !

Provision for obsolete and BERAEFRERE

slow-moving inventorigs, net 8 18,336 29,002 4,163 6,206 10,578 2,564 33,077 3172
Provision for impairment of rade RN 2 HiEAE

receivables, net 8 - - 8,785 - 7815 4436 16,600 4436
Provision for impairment of BRZBREMER

prepayments and other B HERRE

receivables, net 38 27 - - - 3810 - 4,047 -

Product warranty and installation ~ ERRERZEEE
provisions 401,773 397845 303,260 290,943 - - 705,033 688,788

Lossesf(gains) on disposaljwrite-off (£ & /i34 -
ofitems of property, plantand ~ BERFAEEE

equipment, net BB/ (h&) 58 (1,044) 62 44 - (107) 39 (1,107) 101
Loss on disposaliurite-offofitems 1% /41Tt 54
of prepaid land lease HEFNRE 2 BR
payments, net et - - - - - 5,387 - 5,387
Depreciation and amortisation REREH 58,440 46,696 30,393 24,741 76,529 56,416 165,362 127,853
Corporate and other unallocated AT REMKAE
amounts Ex 1,749 1357
167,11 129,210
Capital expenditure™ ERER 277,282 299,560 216,738 64,369 328,081 210,874 822,101 574,803
Corporate and other unallocated ~ AFIREHAAE
amounts 24 11,931 2,985
834,032 577788
* Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant * BAEL OREREDE  BERKE &
and equipment, prepaid land lease payments and intangible T HERREEEE ©
assets.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4. RESEEH(E)

Geographical information i35 & K

Over 90% (2013: 90%) of the Group’s revenue is derived AEBEBRI0% (ZF—=F : 90%) KA
from customers in Mainland China and over 90% (2013: 90%) TREPEAMZER - MASEEBE0%
of the Group’s non-current assets, other than financial (ZF—=%F:90%)3ERnEEE(TEIE
instruments and deferred tax assets, are situated in Mainland SR ITARBERIBEE) U RFEAM
China.

Information about major customers FRETEEFER

During the year, there was no revenue from a single customer FR - WEKREE - ZBAERMEARE
which individually accounted for 10% or more of the Group’s BA10% KA L (ZE—=4F : ) -
revenue (2013: Nil).

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5. WA - Htt A R

Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents the
net invoiced value of goods sold, net of value-added tax and
after allowances for returns and trade discounts; and the

value of services rendered during the year.

WATREIA SR B2 E%%  HELERC®
SFE - MBREEY  RERERESITH
AR F AR EE -




Annual Report 2014 &£ 3§

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
B RS R MR ()
31 December 2014 —ZE—MNF+_-A=+—H

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS (continued) 5. WA - Bl AR Wz (&)

An analysis of revenue, other income and gains is as follows: WA~ A RBESTAT
Group rER
2014 2013
—E-mF —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TRE ARETE

Revenue LN

Sale of goods HEEY 63,072,809 59,411,600

Rendering of services RS 4,061,153 2,851,662
67,133,962 62,263,162

Other income Hibg A

Bank interest income RITFIBULA 246,513 79,681

Interest income from deposits for bank

HRTTHE B 2 dn 77 ORI B A

financial products 7,515 -
Government subsidies* BT #Bh & 44,813 35,187
Compensation received from suppliers B U e B E 64,118 67,080
Gross rental income in respect of buildings &R &I A &L 2,016 2,016
Dividend income from available-for-sale AEHERE 2 REWA
investments - 7,728
Others HAih 20,174 12,234
385,149 203,926
Gains Wz
Gains on disposal of items of property, HEDME  MENMKEEE 2 WH
plant and equipment 1,107 -
Gains on disposal of subsidiaries and HEMRBARR—MY ARz =
a branch 4,506 -
Gain on bargain purchase S B W - 16
5,613 16
390,762 203,942
* Various government grants have been received for * BRI R] 1B 2 7] 2 7 P IE A B A T
investments in certain cities in Mainland China in which the W EITRIRECEERZEHTHE S -
Company’s subsidiaries operate. There are no unfulfilled B HB & WS REZER IR E

conditions or contingencies relating to these grants. e
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6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 6. BRBIAIEFR
The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/ AEBZBRHRINEFNENGR,(KE) TI&
(crediting): I -
2014 2013
—EF-mE —T=F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

et AR¥TRT ARETE

Cost of inventories sold EHTFERAE 53,401,726 50,318,036
Cost of services provided IR ARG A A 3,647,789 2,607,277
Depreciation of property, plant and VI - RN EREBITE
equipment 15 146,021 113,466
Depreciation of investment properties & &Y% E 16 1,192 1,192
Recognition of prepaid land lease ERIEN LA S A
payments 17 11,746 7,575
Amortisation of intangible assets* I EE 19 8,152 6,977
Research and development costs** s R EEEE R 543,684 444,605
Auditors’ remuneration ZEENEN & 7,475 7,000
Employee benefit expense: EERAIRXY
(including directors’ and chief (BEEERITHEH
executive officer’'s remuneration & — FisEs) -
— note 8):
Wages and salaries ITENH® 2,774,644 2,475,538
Welfare =Rl 37,462 41,857
Pension scheme contributions R ETEIE R 341,719 433,185
Share-based payment expense AR D BETE 2 MRS 32 26,714 14,429
Equity-settled share option expense  MARRZN 45 E 7 BEARAERA X 39 49,256 12,955
Equity-settled Restricted Share VARE 25 45 B 9 PR 161 1 A £
Award Scheme expenses ZRENET B 38 15,304 -

3,245,099 2,977,964
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6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX (continued) 6. BRBLATER (&)
2014 2013
—E-mFE  —FT=F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

S ARBTRT ARBTT

Minimum lease payments under THREFLEHEL

operating leases in respect of =IEHEHIE

land and buildings 154,256 123,861
Provision for obsolete and slow-moving 38 5 7§85 17 & B 75 58 =~

inventories, net*** 33,077 37,772
Product warranty and installation EmIRE R LT EERE

provisions 35 705,033 688,788
Management services arrangements B I2 RS ZHEFR X

expenses 8,228 34,877
Losses/(gains) on disposal/write-off of & MEWE - ME R

items of property, plant and REEE 2EBE ()

equipment, net# SRER (1,107) 101
Loss on disposal/write-off of prepaid ~ H%& /#MsETa +iBERZ

land lease payments, net* E 18 F - 5,387
Provision for impairment of trade JEUER SR 2 BB B F R

receivables, net* 23 16,600 4,436
Provision for impairment of other H bR R R IFEN FRIBZ

receivables and prepayments, net* B ERE T 24 4,047 -
Foreign exchange differences, net e N ZFFHE 58,975 11,615
* The amortisation of intangible assets for the year is included in * FNEREESHERGE B RIIA [T

“Administrative expenses” in the consolidated statement of BKEAIA -

profit or loss.

**  The research and development costs included mould charges “ HRREBREFAEREEAETHARK
of RMB209,437,000 (2013: RMB163,222,000) which are 209,437,000 ( Z F — = F: AR K
included in “Cost of sales” in the consolidated statement of 163,222,0007T) ER#FE B a K IIA [ 15
profit or loss. B A -

“**  The provision for obsolete and slow-moving inventories for the o FRBIERFEFEREEOR S B X
year is included in “Cost of sales” in the consolidated SIA [HHEKA] A °

statement of profit or loss.
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6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX (continued) 6. BRBANER(E)

# The net losses on disposal/write-off of items of prepaid land # HE WA L EFIEE 2 EEF
lease payments, and the net provisions for impairment of trade BE N JE W AR 5K I B it JE K AR K e FE A TR
receivables, other receivables and prepayments are included IR ER A FREE R e BRI [Ef
in “Other expenses and losses” in the consolidated statement EBAREE]A -
of profit or loss.

# The net gains/losses on disposal/write-off of items of property, #o HE S MEWE BERLEEAZK
plant and equipment are included in “Other income and w ERFE AR A Ba X [EMRA R
gains”/“Other expenses and losses” in the consolidated YWoas | THE fh B A REE]

statement of profit or loss.

7. FINANCE COSTS 7. BERK
An analysis of finance costs is as follows: BEKARSITINT -
Group rEH
2014 2013
—EF-mE =%
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTRT ARETE

Interest on borrowings wholly repayable ARAFAZHEEZEEFE

within five years 4,125 4,262
Notional interest on loans from —KIEERBRRERZBEFE

a non-controlling shareholder - 834
Interest on convertible bonds (note 33) ATBRESFE (7 33) 66,471 63,238
Interest on CEB (note 34) AR R AR S 5 FI S (FaE 34) 25,365 -

95,961 68,334
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8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S 8. EBRTHAHME

REMUNERATION

Directors’ and chief executive officer’s remuneration for the FARBEEBBEXIMERAREFESF LT
year, disclosed pursuant to the Rules Governing the Listing BB ETARE]) REBEMNE 622 EFH
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited NGB R 11 E 78 1GL B RE B EHE
(the “Listing Rules”) and section 78 of Schedule 11 to the NEEFBLRKAEICHEEREZEER
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), with reference TRBIEMe T

to section 161 of the predecessor Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance (Cap. 32), is as follows:

Group EH
2014 2013
—E-0F —ET—=%
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETT
Fees we 1,057 914
Other emoluments: Hip e -
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e AL REDFE 1,184 1,385
Performance-related bonuses FKIRIEAT 214 214
Equity-settled share option expense DA 458 2 BB AR i 2 6,088 1,486
Equity-settled Restricted Share Award VAR 2 45 55 1 PR 1 ME B £ 228D
Scheme expenses FrEIf X 8,788 -
Pension scheme contributions RIKEETHEIH 48 87

16,322 3,172

17,379 4,086
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8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S 8. EERTHARME (&)
REMUNERATION (continued)

In current and prior years, certain directors were granted RAFERABFE @ BEBEARE) 2 BRE
share options under the share option scheme of the FHE - ETESERBRE  BEFEER
Company, further details of which are set out in note 39 to the B RERFT39 - FN - BETEEREEER
financial statements. During the year, certain directors were A ER B R AR 75 i AR SR PR 1 M AR (0 B2 B R T &)
granted awarded shares under Restricted Share Award EREZERG - AR EEHNI B mEM T
Scheme, in respect of their services to the Group, further 38 ZERAERERRG 2 A TFEDIRE
details of which are set out in note 38 to the financial HHMEE TEREBHEBEaRNE
statements. The fair value of these options and awarded R ENEERITHRBHE  HEHRD B
shares, which has been recognised in the statement of profit BEFFARFERBERR SR

or loss over the vesting period, was determined as at the
date of grant and the amount included in the financial
statements for the current year is included in the above
directors’ and chief executive officer’s remuneration

disclosures.
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8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S 8.
REMUNERATION (continued)

ESRITHARME (&)

(a) Independent non-executive directors (a) BIFHTES:

Salaries, Equity-

allowances settled share
and benefits option Total
Fees in kind expense remuneration

F& 2ER UREEHEZ
we BERE BRERX e
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AR®TT ARETT ARBTT

2014 —E-mF
Mr. Yu Hon To, David AER LA 263 17 - 280
Mrs. Eva Cheng Li Kam Fun ~ #33882%5 4+ 263 19 806 1,088
Ms. Tsou Kai-Lien, Rose* PBREL L 124 5 - 129
Dr. Liu Xiao Feng*™* E L=l 3 91 - - 91
™™ 41 806 1,588
2013 “T-=F

Mr. Wu Yinong** RIEFRE 91 4 - 95
Mr. Yu Hon To, David AEE LA 263 23 - 286
Mrs. Eva Cheng Li Kam Fun* B85+~ 153 13 566 732
Dr. Liu Xiao Feng Ell=A 3 219 23 - 242
726 63 566 1,355

HHAEXR L RBFHZ XL DR -F

Ms. Tsou Kai-Lien, Rose and Mrs. Eva Cheng Li Kam —mMENAL AR E— A — A

ZERARAIELIFHITES

Fun were appointed as independent non-executive
directors of the Company on 7 June 2014 and 1 June
2013, respectively.

BB+ RETEELESHIR T
ENANAR-—E—=FEEA=+/\AF
AR FBUINTEE -

>k

Dr. Liu Xiao Feng and Mr. Wu Yinong resigned as

independent non-executive directors of the Company
on 6 June 2014 and 28 May 2013, respectively.
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8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S 8. EERTHARME (&)
REMUNERATION (continued)

(a) Independent non-executive directors (continued) (a) BUFHTESE: (£
There were no other emoluments payable to the AR AVE AR E A BN T 0 IEH
independent non-executive directors during the year TEE e (ZFE—=F :8\) -
(2013: Nil).

(b) Executive directors, non-executive directors and the (b) BITES - FHTESERITHAR

chief executive officer

Equity-
seftled
Salaries Restricted
allowances Performance- Equity-settled Share Award Pension
and benefits related  share option Scheme scheme Total
Fees in kind bonuses expense  expenses contributions remuneration
NRHEEN
#e 28R WRREEZ  RekRG  BiEHE

e ENNE  RRRA BRERR REHEAX #R  Me4E
RMB'000  RMB'OO0  RMBOO0  RMBIOO0  RMBOO0  RMBOO0  RMB'000

2014 ZE-mE ARETT  ARETn ARETn ARETR ARETn  ARETn ARETR
Executive director: HEE:

Mr. Zhou Yun Jie BEALE - m 194 4,236 8,378 38 13,623
- 1 194 4,236 8,378 38 13,623

Non-executive directors: FInES:
Mr. Liang Hai Shan 2ELEE - 118 - - - - 118
Mr. Li Hua Gang* TERILE - 102 20 320 ] 10 862
Ms. Janine Junyuan Feng BERRL 60 10 - - - - 70
Mr. Gui Zhaoyu™ EBFRE - - - - - - -
Dr. Wang Han Hua TEEfET 219 12 - 726 - - 957
Ms. Tan Li Xia BEELL - 118 - - - - 118
Mr. Zhang Yong™ RERE™ 37 6 - - - - 43
316 366 20 1,046 1] 10 2,168
316 1,143 214 5,262 8,788 48 15,791
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8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S 8. EBRTHARME(#)
REMUNERATION (continued)

(b) Executive directors, non-executive directors and the (b) HBITEE - IPTESRITHARE)
chief executive officer (continued)

Equity- settled

Salaries Restricted
allowances Performance-  Equity-settled  Share Award Pension
and benefits in related  share option Scheme scheme Total
Fees kind bonuses expense  expenses  contributions  remuneration
NEREEN
g6 BER WRAgEZ  BMRR  RASHE

e EMilE  RREA BRERY REHERX fR WeEE
RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RWBOOO  RMWBOOD  RMBOOO  RMBOOO

2013 %= ARETT  ARETT AREBTT  ARETR AREfr ARETn  ARETR
Executive directors: QiEE:

Ms. Yang Mian Mian* BRRRL™ - 67 - - - 17 84
Mr. Zhou Yun Jig* BAERE - 690 160 320 - 3 1,206
Mr. Li Hua Gang* TERIE - 440 54 90 - 3 619
- 1197 214 40 - 87 1,908

Non-executive directors: HES:
Mr. Liang Hai Shan Pyt - 80 - - _ _ 80
Ms. Janine Junyuan Feng BELRT 60 2 - - - - 80
Dr. Wang Han Hua™ TEgEL 128 12 - 510 - - 650
Ms. TanLi Xia™ EEEfL™ - 13 - - - - 13
188 125 - 510 - - 823
188 1,322 214 920 - 87 2731
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8.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S
REMUNERATION (continued)

(b)

Executive directors, non-executive directors and the
chief executive officer (continued)

# Mr. Zhou Yun Jie is also the chief executive officer of the
Company since 18 March 2013.

## Ms. Yang Mian Mian retired as an executive director of
the Company on 25 June 2013.

Mr. Li Hua Gang resigned as an executive director of
the Company on 26 March 2014 and appointed as the
alternate director to Mr. Liang Hai Shan on 7 June 2014.

>k

Mr. Gui Zhaoyu is the alternate director to Ms. Janine
Junyuan Feng.

***  Dr. Wang Han Hua, Ms. Tan Li Xia and Mr. Zhang Yong
were appointed as non-executive directors of the
Company on 1 June 2013, 18 November 2013 and on
25 March 2014, respectively.

There was no arrangement under which a director or
chief executive officer waived or agreed to waive any

remuneration during the year.

8.

ESRITHARME (&)

(b)

HITES  FUTESRITERERE)

# EEREERE - FE—=F=H+/H
BT HEFR R ATTIRAGE ©

#** SRR TR —E—=F X NA-1H
HREERRAIBITEFRLT -

* FERAER -F-F=A =1
HREFARAPNTEEF TN -F
—PIENAEAEZERRGILEE
ZEEFEF -

v HEBFLAERBETRLAELE
X8

o TEEEA BEELTRKBLL
DR =ZF—=FNHA—H =F
—=F+—A+NAR=ZF—NF=
A=+ hAEZFEEARRIFNTE
go

FAMBEERTRART L NEL
RIEMEEAH M2 25 -



Annual Report 2014 &£ 3§

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
B RS R MR ()
31 December 2014 —ZE—MNF+_-A=+—H

9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 9. ILEESFMES
The five highest paid employees during the year included FRRAEZEaTWNEERRE —ZEE (%
one director (2013: four directors), details of whose — . URES) FEEE eSS
remuneration are set out in note 8 above. Details of the HAFYHEFs FRHTHE(—E—=
remuneration for the year of the remaining four (2013: one) £ —Z)RATEERSEMIES > B
highest paid non-director employees are as follows: SERELT
Grou -
P TEE
2014 2013
—E-NmEF —E—=%F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTRE AREBTE

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e ERMNEYAGS 2,499 601
Equity-settled share option expense DA AR 8 2 BRI 1,581 57
Equity-settled Restricted Share Award LA 25 45 B 0 R 5l 14 A% 1 228

Scheme expense IR 2,085 -
Pension scheme contributions RIS TR 127 12

6,292 670

The number of the highest paid non-director employees FEFERFHEEMSE TIETHER
whose remuneration fell within the following band is as ZANBIAT -
follows:

Number of employees
EEAH
2014 2013
—B-mOF —T-=F

Nil to RMB1,000,000 T = AR 1,000,000 7T - 1
RMB1,000,001 to RMB2,000,000 AR 1,000,001 TE

AR #2,000,0007C 4 _
Total gaxt 4 y
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10.

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (continued)

In current and prior years, these highest paid non-director
employees were granted share options under the share
option scheme of the Company, further details of which are
set out in note 39 to the financial statements. During the year,
these highest paid non-director employees were granted
awarded shares under Restricted Share Award Scheme, in
respect of their services to the Group, further details of which
are set out in note 38 to the financial statements. The fair
value of these options and awarded shares, which has been
recognised in the statement of profit or loss over the vesting
period, was determined as at the date of grant and the
amount included in the financial statements for the current
year is included in the above highest paid non-director

employees’ remuneration disclosures.

INCOME TAX

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5%
(2013:16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in
Hong Kong during the year.

Tax on profits assessable in Mainland China has been
calculated at the applicable PRC corporate income tax
(“CIT") rates. Certain subsidiaries of the Group are entitled to
preferential tax treatment of reduction in the CIT rate to 15%.

10.

hERSHHES (&)

RAFERARFE - REAQF 2 BRE
B REHEFERTHMESEREKR
% AEFBENTIEREAMEI - FA
ZEHEERRTMNRERRSRAASERE
PR TS M AR SRR B 1 A (0 S2 B =1 &1 1 5% 22 R
Bty - BRAFIBEHN Y B RARMEIS - %F
BREREBRN 2 A FEDNR L A HE
EUERFEBRERSRAMRER - £
EERaFMEEZHERBECBECFHA
REFPHRR T -

Fris®t
BEBNEHRIBBEFAREBEE 2 H5HE
AR EAIZ165% (ZE—=4F : 16.5%) 2
TR -

AR B A3t B AR T s M B 2 TRIR - ThiR
REAPECEMRGSHR ([ DEMSH])BE
AE - AREETHERARBEZANAR
BB RABNLEMESHEA5%EH -
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10. FiB#i (&)

Group rEE
2014 2013
—E-F ==
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AREFT
Current — Hong Kong BIVEA
Charge for the year — BHEFAZL 16,514 13,485
Current — Mainland China BNEA
Charge for the year — BRI FERT 652,503 677,246
Underprovision/(overprovision) in BAEFEREENR (BEEE)
prior years 13,599 (6,182)
Deferred (note 36) IRIE (Ff7E36) (31,803) (137,022)
Total tax charge for the year FARIAS HR%R 650,813 547,527
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10. INCOME TAX (continued) 10. FifEHi (&)

BRARBIREKE S WE R R AERDEER
ZEEMEGERBIRGN 2 HIA L - 81
REBHERFECRIEAXIH AR - ARE
AREBEVEENX) BERKE 2 HEMN
of the applicable rates (i.e., the statutory tax rates) to the N

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before
tax at the statutory rates for the jurisdictions in which the
Company and the majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to
the tax expense at the effective tax rates, and a reconciliation

effective tax rates, are as follows:

208

Group — 2014 AEBE ——F—NEF
Hong Kong Mainland China Total
B HE At @zt
RMB’000 %  RMB’000 %  RMB’000 %
AR®TR AR®T R AR®TR

Profit/(loss) before tax BEanEF (BR) (74,009) 3,239,924 3,165,915
Tax at the statutory tax rate REEMEFNEZTE (12,211) 165 809,981 250 797,770 25.2
Adjustments in respect of current & & i 7 BN 207 18

tax of previous periods fEd 2 % - - 13,599 0.4 13,599 0.4
Income not subject to tax FEABBA (8,752) 11.8 - - (8,752) (0.3)
Expenses not deductible for tax a1 EI % 37,469 (50.6) 6,938 0.2 44,407 1.4
Tax losses not recognised RERHBEEE 8 - 74,210 2.3 74,218 2.3
Lower tax rates enacted MHERBEMHZ

by local authorities BRIEH = - - (223,212 (6.9) (223,212 (7.1)
Tax losses utilised from PR SAHERR

previous periods - - (23,468) 0.7) (23,468) 0.7)
Realisation of timing differences @ KR 2

not previously recognised HRZE - - (23,749) (0.7) (23,749) (0.8)
Tax charge at the Group’s BREEZERFHR

effective rate SHEFBEYH 16,514 (22.3) 634,299 19.6 650,813 20.6
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10. INCOME TAX (continued) 10. FifEHL (&)
Group — 2013 KEB — =4
Hong Kong Mainland China Total
Bk FE A #at
RMB'000 % RMB'000 % RMB'000 %
ARETT ARETT ARETT

Profit/(loss) before tax BEANER/(BE) (13,793) 2,651,633 2,637,840
Tax at the statutory tax rate WEEMEHE 2B (2,276) 16.5 662,908 25.0 660,632 25.0
Adjustments in respect of current & &l & 7 BN #0718

tax of previous periods R 7 A% - - (6,182) (0.2) (6,182) (0.2)
Income not subject to tax FERBMA (5,707) 414 (2,722) (0.1) (8,429) (0.3)
Expenses not deductible for tax A0 5 20,422 (148.1) 10,375 0.4 30,797 1.2
Tax losses not recognised REATIBEE 313 (2.3) 70,982 26 71,295 2.7
Lower tax rates enacted whEREMmZ

by local authorities Sl - - (155482) (5.9)  (155,482) (5.9)
Tax losses utilised from A RESHIEER

previous periods - - (491) - (491) -
Realisation of timing differences & IBH KR

not previously recognised KHEEZE 732 (5.3) (45,345) (1.7) (44,613) (1.7)
Tax charge at the Group’s BRER 7 BERFR

effective rate FTEZBET N 13,484 (97.8) 534,043 20.1 547,527 20.8

11. PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE 1. RATRREGEF

COMPANY
Of the Group’s profit attributable to owners of the Company ERRAIRREGEARAERRMNARE
of RMB2,446,605,000 (2013: RMB2,036,882,000), a loss of 2,446,605000( —Z FE —=F: AR
RMB161,395,000 (2013: RMB87,737,000) has been dealt 2,036,882,0007C ) - B B A R ¥
with in the financial statements of the Company (note 40(b)). 161,395000L( Z T — = F: AR ®

87,737,000 T) EEA RN T Z M HRENE
1 (Fff3E 40(b)) °
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12.

13.

—mFE+=A=t+—H

DIVIDENDS 12. RE
2014 2013
—E-mE T =F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BTR ARBTFT
Proposed final — HK11 cents BRRERE — BB 11D
(2013: HK10 cents) =% B%109) 237,191 200,824
The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the F AR R BIAR B R AR A AR R FE 2 AR
approval of the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming RAFRE EHE -
annual general meeting.
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO 13. AAFEBERBREGCSRER
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY
The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount is BREARZN 2 SFBIRIBFRRNRGFERRK
based on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity %%E’EE?&T’IW&iWE%‘ﬁ‘EiLijJWf?éii’:J%(

holders of the Company, and the weighted average number
of ordinary shares of 2,653,867,520 (2013: 2,541,398,244) in
issue during the year.

The calculation of the diluted earnings per share amount is
based on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity
holders of the Company, adjusted to reflect the interest on
the convertible bonds and CEB. The weighted average
number of ordinary shares used in the calculation is the
number of ordinary shares in issue during the year, as used
in the basic earnings per share calculation, and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares assumed to have been
issued at no consideration on the deemed exercise or
conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares into
ordinary shares, and the contingently issuable shares.

2,653,867 520 ( — = — =4 : 2,541,398,244
fR)ETE -

BREERN s 2ERBFARARERE
ARAR R B R FETE - Eﬁﬂﬁéb{&ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁx
BEH R AR R A EBRESOF S - sHEAM
Rz EBRMETHER ARG EEGRER
BREFA s FRAEETEBREE - UK
BREBIET R A M EEEHEEBR A
TR AEZIT 2 EBRINETHE - A
MR T T2 R D
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13. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO 13. ZARREBERRREEESRER (F)
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

(continued)
The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share are BRERRBERIIRUATEIEANE
based on:
2014 2013
—B-NE  —T-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARBTF T
Earnings BF
Profit attributable to ordinary equity holders Rt EGREREF] 2
of the Company used in the basic PAYNSIE=SEY A ey ng
earnings per share calculation 2,446,605 2,036,882
Interest on convertible bonds AR E AT B 66,471 63,238
Interest on CEB AR K AR E S FLE 25,365 -

2,538,441 2,100,120
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13. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO 13. ZARREBERRREEESRER (F)

ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

(continued)
Number of shares
B8 E
2014 2013
—E—F —EF—=
Shares v

Weighted average number of ordinary shares B st EFREREF 2 FR
in issue during the year used in the basic BB 1T AR I O AR B
earnings per share calculation

2,653,867,520 2,541,398,244

Effect of dilution — weighted average BErE — TRRINETRE

number of ordinary shares:

Warrants AR R RE 5,220,480 12,714,138
Share options FE Rt 5,814,818 32,289,830
Awarded shares under Restricted Share B 161 14 i £ 22D AT 18 T &9
Award Scheme LR D 846,034 -
Contingently issuable shares* Al T EIT RGN 6,610,700 1,319,261
Convertible bonds AR & 55 100,000,000 100,000,000
CEB AR K ISR fE 5 55,735,965 -
174,227,997 146,323,229
Total 1Bzt 2,828,095,517 2,687,721,473
# The contingently issuable shares in 2014 included the # ZE—FEZ A TETZRGEIEAE

estimated number of shares to be issued to the non-controlling
shareholders of certain subsidiaries who entered into incentive
agreements with the Group. Further details of the incentive
agreements are included in note 31 to the financial statements.

The contingently issuable shares in 2013 included the
estimated number of shares to be issued to certain Haier
franchise store owners. These Haier franchise store owners
entered into management services agreements with the Group
and achieved the prescribed performance targets. Further
details of the management services agreements are included
in note 19 to the financial statements.

BT THAEE T BR H#EE THELR
AR FFFER AR R i st RID BB - B BF2E
Bl 2 — R IR TS IR M3 -

CECF A TR EEE A
ETHBNBEEHFAET GG RO E
B ZEGBMBEHEBAHELRERTT
ERRE % WENEEREAERE &
FEIRTE Wik 2 4 — L BRI ER K AT
$19e
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14. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 14. BAEALRS

In addition to the related party transactions detailed (a) BRUEHBMEEME D Fil 2 BHE
elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group had AT RGN - A& B R F A G 5 B

the following material transactions with Haier Affiliates BARIGETUATERRS :

during the year:

2014 2013
—E-mE —T-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R ARBTFT
Export sale of products HOEEEM 1,436,785 1,439,248
Domestic sale of products MNEEEEm 207,225 365,756
Purchase of finished goods FRIE R on 34,592,907 30,411,964
Purchase of raw materials R R 12,578,498 12,402,661
Purchase of equipment HRIERE 104,296 11,428
Printing and packaging fees ENfm & B 3 & 33,334 45,447
Mould charges BEBZH 187,517 163,222
Utility service fee LR E 114,794 116,805
Promotion fee EEEL T 38,395 77,000
Research and development service fees #1355 & B3RS = H 228,823 127,710
Other service fees HMRBE 310,120 338,915
Interest income FEU A 24,569 20,842
Interest expenses B 2,029 2,342
Other financial service fees HEib & piREE 7,086 7,219
Logistics service income W AR S UA 1,987,831 1,905,854
After-sale service income E & RIEUA 187,058 201,067
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14. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b)

Other transactions with related parties:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

During the year, the Group disposed of its
interests in a branch of Qingdao Goodaymart
Logistics Co., Ltd. (formerly known as “Qingdao
Haier Logistics Co., Ltd.”) to a fellow subsidiary of
the Company at a cash consideration of
RMB15,103,000, which was determined with
reference to the fair value of the net assets of the
branch.

During the year, a subsidiary of the Company
entered into a transfer agreement with a fellow
subsidiary of the Company to acquire a land use
right at a cash consideration of RMB37,000,000.
The consideration was determined after arm’s
length negotiation with reference to the property
valuation report prepared by an independent
property valuer.

During the year, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company and a fellow subsidiary of the Company
were jointly and severally granted general
banking facilities in the amount of USD55,000,000
by a third party bank. The bank facilities were
ultimately guaranteed by another fellow subsidiary
of the Company.

During the year, the Group acquired 100% equity
interest of Changchun Haier Development Co.,
Ltd. (“Changchun Development”) from Qingdao
Haier Development Co., Ltd. at a consideration of
RMB10,000,000. The consideration was
determined with reference to the paid-in capital
amount of Changchun Development. Qingdao
Haier Development Co., Ltd. is a fellow subsidiary
of the Company.

14.

BEALRS (E)
HEBEATZHMBRS

(b)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

FRN - AEELHEARESRAHA
IE¥IRBERAR (B[ 5888
iR BRARL) —@ED R RR)#E
@ TARA—FRRENMEAR -
BERERARE15103,000
T BN EZDRAINEE
FEMAFEET

FR - AQE—HEEBARER
NE—ERRWB ARG LR
Wik - DA — 38 1 fsh A
R e K E A/ ARK37,000,000
T REDERATFERILER
SYEGEMRE  YELER

HEE -

FRN - ARE—E2ENBARR
BARE—HRRANB AR HEE
RERIES = FRITEE — KRR
TR & - @ ¥ /55,000,000
JC o RITRMEHRARA S —HA
R A PR AR o

FR - AEBEMNSESEREER
RERARKBRESMESES
RERAR(KEZER]) 100%
iz - K E R AKY 10,000,000
Lo RENELREREERIE
TEABET SEEREXE
BARARAERDR—HER R
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14. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 14. BEAIXRZ (&)
(c) Compensation of key management personnel (including (c) AEEXEEBAE (BREARAES
the directors and chief executive officer of the NATBURE) 2 Fih

Company) of the Group:

2014 2013
—F-mE T =F
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTRE ARETET

Short term employee benefits EHEBRA 6,961 6,150
Pension cost RURIEFIRL AR 265 321
Equity-settled share option expense PARR A 455 2 BE AR i 2 8,798 1,999
Equity-settled Restricted Share VAR A 45 5 2 TR 1)1 AR 1
Award Scheme expense REE IR 12,325 -
Total compensation paid to key BENTEERABZENERE
management personnel 28,349 8,470
Further details of directors’ and chief executive officer’s EZRTHAE N 2 EMFBER
emoluments are included in note 8 to the financial B 7R R MIFES ©
statements.
The number of non-director and non-chief executive FEERIIEERTHRBR  TEEE
officer key management personnel whose remuneration ABMEETIIRELE AN Z AN
fell within the following bands is as follows: ™
2014 2013
—E-MF —E-=fF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTRT ARETE

Nil to RMB500,000 T x= AR¥500,0007T - 6
RMB500,001 to RMB 1,000,000 AR¥500,001 T2

AR #1,000,0007C 1 4
RMB1,000,001 to RMB2,000,000 AR% 1,000,001 &

AR ¥ 2,000,0007T 7 -

8 10

Except for item (c), the above related party transactions B (c)IEAN - i BAE A TR B IMER
also constitute continuing connected transactions or SEMRERFIHER S (EER LW
connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of HAETTHAE) -

the Listing Rules.
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31 December 2014 —ZE—MNF&+_-A=+—H

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. % - BERRE
Group rER
Tools,
Plant and furniture Motor  Construction
Buildings machinery  and fixtures vehicles in progress Total
I& R
BF HEREE R#EE RE RRIE -
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETr AR¥ETrn AR®Tn AR%TR  AR%TR
31 December 2014 —E-mEF
t=A=t-H
At 1 January 2014: RZZ-mE-A-R:
Cost A 1,177,712 937,734 40,148 112,457 193,272 2,461,323
Accumulated depreciation ZAHERAE
and impairment (309,513) (572,628) (21,952) (69,162) - (973,255)
Net carrying amount FRFE 868,199 365,106 18,196 43,295 193,272 1,488,068
Cost at 1 January 2014, net of RZE-EF—HA—H
accumulated depreciation and 2K Bk
impairment SHTERAE 868,199 365,106 18,196 43,295 193,272 1,488,068
Additions NE 5,562 4,308 5,137 12,312 738,843 766,162
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 41) Nt B AR (Fiit41) 12,830 16,235 745 6,550 - 36,360
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 42)  HERBAE (f1:£42) (27) (953) (38) - - (1,018)
Disposalsfwrite-off e/ W (2,129) (836) (408) (648) (4,244) (8,265)
Depreciation provided FRTERE
during the year (59,572) (67,937) (5,670) (12,842) - (146,021)
Transfers B 306,041 270,180 20,703 2,397 (599,321) -
Cost at 31 December 2014, netof  H=Z—[F
accumulated depreciation and +-A=+-H
impairment LR Bk
ZTERAE 1,130,904 586,103 38,665 51,064 328550 2,135,266
At 31 December 2014: RZE-MmE
TZA=+-R:
Cost A 1,499,390 1,215,280 62,325 122,250 328,550 3,227,795
Accumulated depreciation ZHMERNE
and impairment (368,486)  (629,177) (23,660) (71,186) - (1,092,509)
Net carrying amount FHFE 1,130,904 586,103 38,665 51,064 328,550 2,135,286
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 15. Y% BERRE (&)

Group (continued) TEB(E)
Tools,
Plant and furniture Motor  Construction
Buildings machinery  and fixtures vehicles in progress Total
IR KA
BF BRREES FES & ERIE @5t

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMBI000 RMBI000
ARETT  ARETT ARETT AREBTT ARETT ARETR

31 December 2013 “E-=f
t=A=t-A
At 1 January 2013: RZE-=F
—A-H
Cost A 734,202 843,277 35,661 101,384 464,697 2,179,221
Accumulated depreciation SHTERAE
and impairment (268,251) (522,837) (20,733) (58,594) - (870,415)
Net carrying amount FRFE 465,951 320,440 14,928 42790 464,697 1,308,806

Cost at 1 January 2013, net of R-E—=F—F—H
accumulated depreciation and 2R Bk

impairment LAMERAME 465,951 320,440 14,928 42,790 464,697 1,308,806
Additions #E 2,383 4,639 2,114 6,329 277,873 293,338
Acquisition of subsidiaries Wk B AT - 211 18 569 - 798
Disposalsfwrite-off &/ Wi - (1,173) (221) (14) - (1,408)
Depreciation provided ERTERE

during the year (41262) (57,004) (4,141) (11,059) - (113,466)
Transfers et 441,127 97,993 5,498 4,680 (549,298) -

Cost at 31 December 2013, netof RZ-F—=
accumulated depreciation and +-R=1-H

impairment ZHAR Bk

2t E R 868,199 365,106 18,196 43,29 193272 1488068
At 31 December 2013: RZF-=

T-A=+-R:
Cost AA 1,177,712 937,734 40,148 112,457 198272 2461323
Accumulated depreciation ZAMERAE
and impairment (309513)  (572628) (21952) (69,162) - (973,255)
Net carrying amount FEFE 868,199 365,106 18,196 4329 193272 1,488,068




Haier Electronics Group Co., Ltd.

SHEEBEMERA A

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
B RS R MR ()

31 December 2014 —ZE—MNF&+_-A=+—H

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 15. Y% BERRE (&)

218

All of the Group’s buildings are erected on land in Mainland
China and are held under medium term leases.

As at 31 December 2014, certain of the Group’s buildings
with an aggregate net book value of approximately
RMB933,296,000 (2013: RMB764,382,000) did not have
building ownership certificates registered under the names
of the respective subsidiaries of the Company.

With respect to the above properties, the Group’s investment
properties and prepaid land lease payments, in prior years,
Haier Corp issued three undertakings to the Company, which
agreed to provide other suitable properties to the Group to
ensure the operations of certain subsidiaries of the Company
are not disrupted and/or indemnify the Group against any
losses arising from the above defective property title issue.
The aggregate net book value of the Group’s buildings
indemnified by Haier Corp as at 31 December 2014
amounted to approximately RMB139,156,000 (2013:
RMB180,818,000).

In the opinion of the directors, the Group is entitled to lawfully
and validly occupy and use the buildings and investment
properties for its daily operations, notwithstanding the fact
that the related building ownership certificates have not yet
been obtained.

AEBREFRFHMNPEANN - BiRDH
BAOFA -

RZE—mHF+=ZA=+—H" zﬁ’ilﬁ@ﬁﬁ
HEFEL A AR 933,296,000 T(—ZF—=
F: AR®764,382,0007T) 25 ?@ﬂz?ﬁ
IARRFREMBRAT 2 BRB L2 FEHERE

Ko
[2hve

Wﬁt%%&ﬁﬁl&ﬁ%¥&ﬁﬁimﬁ
EXME RBEFE BREBAFTMA

Tﬁﬁ HAG  BREERQRIRERA
SERFEMEEYE  URERAAFET
M AR Al A A ISR i &SR E A
SERE LM AREY)EEERBESE 2R
B -RZZE—NF+=ZA=+—H ' 88

ERRBEASE  EFEEEFENOS
AE%w9wemmﬂ4f—£¢:AE%
180,818,0007T) °

EER5 BEDNARRSEAHEHERESE
HAREERA A RARME A RERET
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16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 16. REWHE
Group rEH
2014 2013
—E-mE —T-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R AREFT
Cost at 1 January, net of accumulated B—A—HZRAK
depreciation B RFHITE 13,531 14,723
Depreciation provided during the year FRITERE (1,192) (1,192)
Cost at 31 December, net of accumulated W+ —-A=+—8 2k
depreciation EHRERITE 12,339 13,531
At 31 December: W+-—A=+—8":
Cost D@ 18,894 18,894
Accumulated depreciation REHINE (6,555) (5,363)
Net carrying amount BREFE 12,339 13,531

All of the Group’s investment properties are erected on land
in Mainland China.

In the opinion of the directors, the fair value of the Group’s
investment properties was approximately RMB15,542,000 as
at 31 December 2014 (2013: RMB16,371,000). Property
rentals from investment properties for the year ended 31
December 2014 amounted to approximately RMB2,016,000
(2013: RMB2,016,000).

REE 2 EREMEDUR T E AR -

EERARE—OWF+ZA=+—H K
EEREMEZ2AFENABARE
155420007.( —Z & — = F: AR ®
16,371,000 ) e BE-F—WWF+= A
T+ —BLEFE BEMEIHERSNA
AR®2,01600T(ZFE—=F: AR
2,016,0007T) °
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16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 16. BREWHE(E)
The fair value measurements of the Group’s investment REEREMEZ NV EFENDERE=
properties are categorised within Level 3. The valuation ®o TEANGHESZRMBARSRESE
technique is the discounted cash flow method and the MR A EFERMEANEEH ASUEE]
significant inputs used in the fair value measurement are REEHSERE HSERREHEE -

estimated rental value, rent growth and discount rate.

As at 31 December 2014, none of the Group’s investment AZE—WNF+ZA=+—8  AEEZF
properties (2013: none) had building ownership certificates WEME(ZT—=%F : M) UWBMUAKRQF]E
registered under the names of the respective subsidiaries of HEMB AR CBRER I EHERES - K
the Company. The Group obtained an undertaking from Haier EEEESERERE T EHARREDESE
Corp in relation to this defective property title issue, details of EMIRE ARG - BRI B RERM T
which are set out in note 15 to the financial statements. 15 -
17. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS 17. FEFL#FEER
Group AEH
2014 2013
—E-NE —E—=
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTRT ARETE

Carrying amount at 1 January MN—A—BZEAEE 314,723 260,525
Additions NE 218,978 70,496
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 41) WM B N | (Afat41) 9,200 -
Disposals e - (8,723)
Recognised during the year FRER (11,746) (7,575)
Carrying amount at 31 December R+ A=+—RHZEAE 531,155 314,723
Current portion included in prepayments, FEATERFRIE ~ e R H A EIR

deposits and other receivables BRIR 2 mENER S (11,334) (7,710)
Non-current portion IERE B D 519,821 307,013

220
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17. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS (continued) 17. BERL#BEER(E)

The leasehold land is situated in Mainland China and is held HET AR R R BiZPEROEE -
under medium term leases.

As at 31 December 2014, certain parcels of the Group’s RZE—NF+—A=+—H0 ~EEAFK
leasehold land with an aggregate carrying amount of FEEH AR 242 433000t ( T — =4 :
approximately RMB242,433,000 (2013: RMB115,265,000) AR #115,265,0007T) 2 & THE T
did not have land use right certificates registered under the EUARNBEMBRARICBEER 2 LHfE
names of the respective subsidiaries of the Company, of i - BREEARERIELBEAR
which RMB45,178,000 was indemnified by Haier Corp (2013: ¥ 45178,000t( — T — =ZF: AR #
RMB46,762,000). Details of the undertakings granted by 46,762,0007T) - AR EE AR E@E
Haier Corp to the Company in relation to this defective title EMRMEA R BEL A 2 BRI
issue are set out in note 15 to the financial statements. HFEMIFES -
18. GOODWILL 18. @E
Group NEE
2014 2013
—Eg-mFE  —T=
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTRT ARETE

Cost at 1 January, net of impairment R—RA—RZEA  EHIRAEE 6,123 -
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 41) WEEM B AR (At 41) 68,407 6,123
Cost at 31 December R+tZA=+—HZKA 74,530 6,123
At 31 December: R+ZA=+—H":
Cost (DN 74,530 6,123
Accumulated impairment RETRE - -
Net carrying amount BREFE 74,530 6,123
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18. GOODWILL (continued)

Goodwill acquired through business combination is allocated
to two cash-generating units (the “CGU”") for impairment
testing, namely Qingdao Goodaymart Home Furnishing
Service Co., Ltd. (“Qingdao Furnishing Service”) and
Shanghai Boyol New Brothers Supply Chain Management
Company Limited (“Shanghai Beiye Supply Chain”), both of
which provide logistics and installation services under the
integrated channel services segment. The recoverable
amounts of the CGUs have been determined based on a
value-in-use calculation using cash flow projections based
on financial budgets covering a five-year period approved by
senior management. The discount rates applied to the cash
flow projections for Qingdao Furnishing Service and
Shanghai Beiye Supply Chain are 18.5% (2013: 15.4%) and
18.8%, respectively. The growth rate used to extrapolate the
cash flows of the CGUs beyond the five-year period is 3%.

Assumptions were used in the value-in-use calculation of the
CGUs for 31 December 2014. The following describe each
key assumption on which management has based its cash

flow projections to undertake impairment testing of goodwill:

Budgeted gross margins — The basis used to determine the
value assigned to the budgeted gross margins is the actual
gross margin of 2014 and the expectation on market
development.

Discount rate — The discount rate used is before tax and

reflects specific risks relating to the unit.

18.

B (E)
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19. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 19. HtEREE
Group rER
Patents Management
and services Customer
Software licences arrangements relationships  Trademark Total
B SANREHE EERMRH EFR& e act

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR  ARRTR ARBTR ARBTR ARMTR  ARETR

(note)
(Biz#)
31 December 2014 —2-IF
TZA=Zt+-H
At 1 January 2014: RZE-mE—F—-H:
Cost AR 42,345 2,429 70,000 6,167 - 120,941
Accumulated amortisation ZHEBRAE
and impairment (18,074) (2,429) (8,750) (1,233) - (30,486)
Net carrying amount REE 24,21 - 61,250 4,934 - 90,455
Cost at 1 January 2014, net of RZE-mF—A—H
accumulated amortisation 2R BNk
and impairment ZABELE 24,271 - 61,250 4,934 - 90,455
Additions during the year FRRE 2,060 - - - - 2,060
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 41) Ui Kt B AR (fizt41) - - 12,800 45,000 57,800
Amortisation provided FREHERE
during the year (2,138) - (3,500) (2,514) - (8,152)
Cost at 31 December 2014, netof  RZE—INF
accumulated amortisation +ZA=1-H
and impairment LKA Bk
B EERIE 24,193 - 57,750 15,220 45,000 142,163
At 31 December 2014: RZE-ME
T-A=1+-8:
Cost A 44,405 2,429 70,000 18,967 45,000 180,801
Accumulated amortisation ZHEBERAE
and impairment (20,212) (2,429) (12,250) (3,747) - (38,638)
Net carrying amount EmFE 24,193 - 57,750 15,220 45,000 142,163
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19.

OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued) 19. HiEBEE (&)
Group (continued) TEB(E)
Patents ~ Management
and services Customer
Software licences arrangements  relationships Trademark Total
B ENREE ERRBRH XPHfE Gl @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT  ARETR ARETR ARETT  ARETT  ARETn
(note)
(Hzt)
31 December 2013 —E-c=f
t=A=t-8
At 1 January 2013; n-E-=%-A—-H:
Cost AR 25,737 2,429 70,000 - - 98,166
Accumulated amortisation ZEBHELAE
and impairment (15,830 (2,429) (5,250 - - (23,509)
Net carrying amount REFE 9,907 - 64,750 - - 74,657
Costat 1 January 2013, netof ~ RZZE—-=%—-F—H
accumulated amortisation 2 BNk
and impairment ZEHEHELAE 9,907 - 64,750 - - 74,657
Acquisition of subsidiaries WEHBAR 16,608 - - 6,167 - 22775
Amortisation provided FREHEE
during the year (2,244) - (3,500) (1,233) - (6.977)
Cost at 31 December 2013, netof MZF—=%
accumulated amortisation +ZA=1t-H
and impairment LA B
S ABRAE 24,271 - 61250 4,934 - 90,455
At 31 December 2013: RZZ-—=%
TZA=+-8:
Cost A 42 345 2429 70,000 6,167 - 120,941
Accumulated amortisation ZHEERAE
and impairment (18,074) (2,429) (8,750) (1,233) - (30,486)
Net carrying amount ERFE 24,271 - 61,250 4,934 - 90,455
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19. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued) 19. HMEFEE(E)
Company b NN

Management services
arrangements (note)

EEBRB R (M)
2014 2013
—E-mE T =F
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥TRE ARETE

At 1 January: ®n—H—A8:
Cost DE 70,000 70,000
Accumulated amortisation RETEEE (8,750) (5,250)
Net carrying amount BREFE 61,250 64,750
Cost at beginning of year, net of REXZA - Bk 2Tl
accumulated amortisation 61,250 64,750
Amortisation provided during the year FRNHEHEE (3,500) (3,500)

Cost at end of year, net of accumulated RERZKA - Bk 2585

amortisation 57,750 61,250
At 31 December: R+=—A=+—H":
Cost D@ 70,000 70,000
Accumulated amortisation BET#H (12,250) (8,750)
Net carrying amount B FE 57,750 61,250
Note: The cost related to the original fair values of the management Bifat - £ 7K 5 (B3 LA B 4F J2 R Y TR IR T 17 7
services agreements acquired by the Group in prior year MR A FEEBHHOK T EFARK
amounting to RMB70,000,000, which are amortised over the 70,000,000 * A 54 82 T3 R & 22 IR 75 1%
tenure of the management services agreements. According to BHAE REBEERRS i - AEEH
the management services agreements, the Group is entitled to BRNNREREE AXHLIHERETE
receive management fees broadly equal to 2% of the annual B0 BE I ) F B BB AT B (2 2218 1E) 1 2%
purchasing orders (in monetary value) for 2011 to 2018 and (B =F——FE2=_F—NF)R1% (5=

1% for 2019 to 2030 from certain Haier franchise stores. FE-NFE-FT=ZFF)o 275
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20. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 20. RMIBARIZKRE
Company b NN
2014 2013
—E-mE —T-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTRT AREBTET

Unlisted investments, at cost FELTIRE LK 3,084,504 1,989,881
The amounts due from and to subsidiaries included in the STARARFERBEENIERB B EZ B
Company’s non-current assets and non-current liabilities of LESHBRABFRESNAEARK
RMB510,009,000 (2013: RMB430,076,000) and 510,009,0007T( = & — =Z F: AR ¥
RMB61,664,000 (2013: RMB68,456,000), respectively, are 430,076,0007T) & A R # 61,664,000 7T (=
unsecured, interest-free and not repayable within one year. T—=4F : AR¥E68,456,0007T) BEI -

RREN—FRBAEER

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: FEMBRARZERDT ¢
Place of
incorporation/ Percentage of equity
registration and Issued ordinary/  directly attributable to
Name business registered capital the Company Principal activities
EMRYL M BERTEER/ APREEES
A% REXHH EMEREE RERDL TEXH
Direct Indirect
=8 i
Qingdao Haier Washing PRC/ RMB238,610,000 - 94 Manufacture and sale of
Machine Co., Ltd.* Mainland China washing machines
BEBRAKBERAR" HE /R E R AR 238,610,000 70 FERHERKHE
Foshan Shunde Haier Electric PRC/ RMB48,800,000 - 60 Manufacture and sale of
Co., Ltd.* Mainland China washing machines
BLmIEEERERERAA" HE/RE N, AR 48,800,000 7 FERHERRE
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INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 20. RMIBARZERE(E)
Place of
incorporation/ Percentage of equity
registration and Issued ordinary/  directly attributable to
Name business registered capital the Company Principal activities
ML BERTEER/ ANFHEER
A% REXHH EMEREE RERDL TEXH
Direct Indirect
=k %
Hefei Haier Washing Machine PRC/ RMB92,000,000 - 99  Manufacture and sale of
Co., Ltd.¥ Mainland China washing machines
AEEREREARAR" B/ RER AR 92,000,000 7 FERHERTHE
Qingdao Jiaonan Haier PRC/ RMB10,000,000 - 95  Manufacture and sale of
Washing Machine Co., Ltd.** Mainland China washing machines
EEBEERARKBERLR HE /R E R AR¥10,000,0007T EERBERKHE
Chongaing Haier Washing PRC/ RMB25,000,000 25 74 Manufacture and sale of
Machine Co., Ltd.* Mainland China washing machines
ERSEAKBAERAR" HE/HER AR 25,000,000 70 FEREERKHE
Foshan Shunde Haier Intelligent PRC/ RMB20,000,000 25 74 Manufacture and sale of
Electronics Co., Ltd.* Mainland China accessories for
electrical appliances
BLTIEEEREEEFERAR  HE /PR AR 20,000,0007C EERHEEREN
Qingdao Goodaymart Lejia PRC/ RMB195,700,000 - 100  Sale of home electric
Trading Co., Ltd.** Mainland China appliances
EBERIRERESBERAF B/ REN AR K 195,700,000 7T HERE
Qingdao Haier Drum Washing PRC/ USD12,000,000 - 100  Manufacture and sale of
Machine Co., Ltd.*** Mainland China washing machines
EEERRAAKBERR A HE /BRI 12,000,000 7T EERBERKE
Chongaing Haier Drum Washing PRC/ RMB250,000,000 - 99  Manufacture and sale of
Machine Co., Ltd.** Mainland China washing machines
ERSRREARBAERRR hE/HmEA AR 250,000,0007C HEREEAKHE
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20. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 20. RMIBARZERE(E)
Place of
incorporation/ Percentage of equity
registration and Issued ordinary/  directly attributable to
Name business registered capital the Company Principal activities
ML BERTEER/ ANFHEER
A% REXHH EMEREE RERDL TEXH
Direct Indirect
=k %
Qingdao Economy and PRC/ RMB120,000,000 - 100 Manufacture and sale of
Technology Development Mainland China water heaters
Zone Haier Water Heater
Co., Ltd.**
EERERNRERIEA B/ RERL, AR 120,000,000 FERHERKSE
HKERRAR]
Wuhan Haier Water Heater PRC/ RMB50,000,000 - 100 Manufacture and sale of
Co., Ltd.*** Mainland China water heaters
REEMAKBERAF ™ HE/HhEA AR 50,000,000 70 FERHERKE
Chongaing Haier Water PRC/ RMB10,000,000 - 100 Manufacture and sale of
Heater Co., Ltd.** Mainland China water heaters
BRERAKEERAF e/ BN AR 10,000,000 7 FERFEHKE
Foshan Haier Drum Washing PRC/ RMB150,000,000 - 99  Manufacture and sale of
Machine Co., Ltd.** Mainland China washing machines
BILBRRAAREERRAF HE /Bl R AR 150,000,000 7T K ERIHERKHE
Chongging New Goodaymart PRC/ RMB5,000,000 - 100 Sale of home electric
Electronics Sales Co., Ltd.*** Mainland China appliances
ERMARIRREHEARAR ™ HE/PERKM AR 5,000,000 HEXE
Haier Electronics Sales (Hefei) PRC/ RMB5,000,000 - 100 Sale of home electric
Co., Ltd.™** Mainland China appliances
BRERME (AR)ARAR™ FE/REKM ARH5,000,0007 HERE
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20. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 20. RMIBRATAZRE (42)
Place of
incorporation/ Percentage of equity
registration and Issued ordinary/  directly attributable to
Name business registered capital the Company Principal activities
EMRYL M BRTEER/ ADREERER
A% REEHE EMEREE RERDL TEEH
Direct Indirect
=8 %
Qingdao Haier Electronics Sales PRC/ RMB5,000,000 - 100  Sale of home electric
Service Co., Ltd.** Mainland China appliances
EEEMERHERBEARLRA " BB/ PERM AR#5,000,0007T HERE
Qingdao Goodaymart Logistics PRC/ USD63,439,000 - 90  Provision of logistics
Co., Ltd.** Mainland China service
EERBIEYRERAR HE/REN, 63,439,000 T R R
Beijing Haier Logistics PRC/ RMB1,000,000 - 90  Provision of logistics
Co., Ltd.* Mainland China service
EREBYRERRE HE/HER AR#1,000,0007 REIT IR
Qingdao Goodaymart Supply PRC/ RMB 10,000,000 - 90  Provision of logistics
Chains Co., Ltd.** Mainland China service
EEHBIRHERERAR B/ BN AR 10,000,000 7 R IRE
Hefei Goodaymart Logistics PRC/ RMB1,000,000 - 90  Provision of logistics
Co., Ltd.** Mainland China service
AERRIEMRERAR /BN AR 1,000,0007C R IRE
Chongaing Hairi Logistics PRC/ RMB500,000 - 90  Provision of logistics
Co., Ltd.** Mainland China service
ERFRMRERLR HE/ BN AR#500,0007C R IRS
Qingdao Goodaymart Electronics ~ PRC/ RMB20,000,000 - 100 Provision of after-sale
Service Co., Ltd.** Mainland China services
EERRIEERREARAR B/ BN AR 20,000,000 7 RUERRS
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20. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 20. RMIBARZERE(E)
Place of
incorporation/ Percentage of equity
registration and Issued ordinary/  directly attributable to
Name business registered capital the Company Principal activities
ML BERTEER/ ANFHEER
A% REXHH EMEREE RERDL TEXH
Direct Indirect
=k %
Shandong Goodaymart Electric PRC/ RMB20,000,000 - 51 Sale of home electric
Appliance Co., Ltd.* Mainland China appliances
IWRABEERERAR B/ BN AR 20,000,000 7 HERE
Chengdu Haixin Goodaymart PRC/ RMB9,800,000 - 51 Sale of home electric
Electric Appliance Co., Ltd.** Mainland China appliances
RSB RIBERERAA HE/RE R, AR#9,800,000 7T HERE
Yantai Goodaymart Electric PRC/ RMB30,000,000 - 51  Sale of home electric
Appliance Co., Ltd.** Mainland China appliances
EABRIEERERDE HE/HER AR 30,000,000 70 HERE
Hefei Goodaymart Electric PRC/ RMB20,000,000 - 51 Sale of home electric
Appliance Co., Ltd.** Mainland China appliances
AEARIEERERAF B/ BN AR 20,000,000 7 HERE
Hunan Goodaymart Electric PRC/ RMB10,000,000 - 51  Sale of home electric
Appliance Co., Ltd.** Mainland China appliances
HEABIEERERAR RE /R E R AR 10,000,000 7T HERE
Xuchang Goodaymart Electric PRC/ RMB10,000,000 - 51 Sale of home electric
Appliance Co., Ltd.** Mainland China appliances
FERRIRERERAF HE/ BN AR¥ 10,000,000 70 HEXE
Suzhou Goodaymart Electric PRC/ RMB10,000,000 - 61  Sale of home electric
Appliance Co., Ltd.** Mainland China appliances
HNABIEERARAR hE/EN AR#10,000,000 7 HERE
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20. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 20. RMIBARZERE(E)
Place of
incorporation/ Percentage of equity
registration and Issued ordinary/  directly attributable to
Name business registered capital the Company Principal activities
ML BERTEER/ ANFHEER
A% REXHH EMEREE RERDL TEXH
Direct Indirect
=k %
Fujian Goodaymart Electric PRC/ RMB9,800,000 - 51  Sale of home electric
Appliance Co., Ltd.* Mainland China appliances
BEARIEERERAR B/ BN AR 9,800,000 7T HERE
Wenzhou Goodaymart Electric PRC/ RMB6,000,000 - 51 Sale of home electric
Appliance Co., Ltd.** Mainland China appliances
BB BIEERARAR HE/RE R, AR 6,000,0007T HERE
Liaoning Goodaymart Trading PRC/ RMB10,000,000 - 51  Sale of home electric
Co., Ltd.* Mainland China appliances
BREHREREEROA HE/HER AR 10,000,000 70 HERE
Jiangsu Subei Goodaymart PRC/ RMB10,000,000 - 51 Sale of home electric
Electric Appliance Co., Ltd.** Mainland China appliances
IHHLABEERERAR B/ BN AR 10,000,000 7 HERE
Tangshan Goodaymart Electric PRC/ RMB6,000,000 - 51 Sale of home electric
Appliance Co., Ltd.** Mainland China appliances
EILABESRARAR R/ REN AR#6,000,0007C HERE
Shanxi Goodaymart Electric PRC/ RMB10,000,000 - 51 Sale of home electric
Appliance Co., Ltd.** Mainland China appliances
\WEAEEIEESARAR HE/ BN AR¥ 10,000,000 70 HEXE
Wuhan Goodaymart Electric PRC/ RMB10,000,000 - 51 Sale of home electric
Appliance Co., Ltd.** Mainland China appliances
RERBEERARAA hE/EN AR#10,000,000 7 HERE
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20. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 20. RMIBARZERE(E)
Place of
incorporation/ Percentage of equity
registration and Issued ordinary/  directly attributable to
Name business registered capital the Company Principal activities
ML BERTEER/ ANFHEER
A% REXHH EMEREE RERDL TEXH
Direct Indirect
=k %

SHC International (HK) Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 - 63  Export sales of small
home electric
appliances

mERR (FE)BERAR BE 1,000,000/ 7T HAHENKE

Ocean Vast Enterprises Limited British Virgin Islands/ USD50,000 - 51 Export sales of small

Hong Kong home electric
appliances

BREEERAF RERAEE/ 50,000% 7T HAHENRE

i
Sunlit Enterprise International British Virgin Islands/ USD200,000 - 51 Export sales of small
Limited Mainland China home electric
appliances
BREEERERAR RERAEE/ 200,000%7T HA#HENKE
R
Haier International Business Hong Kong HK$10,000,000 - 100 Export sales of small
Corporation Limited home electric
appliances

BRERELERAF BE 10,000,000 7T HA#HENKE

Haier Group E-commerce PRC/ RMB37,500,000 - 80  Online sales of Haier

Co., Ltd.** (note) Mainland China branded home
electric appliances

BREETTEBERDA" B/ R E R AR H 37,500,000 7 BIHEBARERE
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INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 20. RMIBARZERE(E)
Place of
incorporation/ Percentage of equity
registration and Issued ordinary/  directly attributable to
Name business registered capital the Company Principal activities
ML BERTEER/ ANFHEER
A% REXHH EMEREE RERDL TEXH
Direct Indirect
=k &
Zhucheng Goodaymart Electric PRC/ RMB2,000,000 - 26" Sale of home electric
Appliance Co., Ltd.* Mainland China appliances
FMBBIREREREEAA B/ B, AR 2,000,000 HERE
Yanzhou Goodaymart Electric PRC/ RMB2,000,000 - 26" Sale of home electric
Appliance Co., Ltd.** Mainland China appliances
ZNBBIEERERAF B/ RE R AR 2,000,000 HERE
Heroic Plan Global Limited Hong Kong USD5 100 - Holding company
ERIRIFARAF e 5%TT el ¥N
Partner Century Holdings Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100 Holding company
REERBRAF EN 10,000/7C il YN
Rizao Lingyun Goodaymart Electric ~ PRC/ RMB2,000,000 - 26*  Sale of home electric
Appliance Co., Ltd.** Mainland China appliances
RRZZRAIEERERAF " B/ RE R AR 2,000,000 HERE
Jining Goodaymart Electric PRC/ RMB2,000,000 - 26" Sale of home electric
Appliance Co., Ltd.** Mainland China appliances
EZEARIEERERAR HE/HREA, AR# 2,000,000 7 HEXE
Taian Goodaymart Electric PRC/ RMB2,000,000 - 26" Sale of home electric
Appliance Co., Ltd.* Mainland China appliances
FZABIRERBRARA B/ B, AR 2,000,000 HERE
Jinan Goodaymart Trading PRC/ RMB2,000,000 - 26*  Sale of home electric
Co., Ltd.* Mainland China appliances
EHEBEHEERAT " L/ RERL, AR 2,000,000 7T HERE
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20. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 20. RMIBARZERE(E)
Place of
incorporation/ Percentage of equity
registration and Issued ordinary/  directly attributable to
Name business registered capital the Company Principal activities
ML BERTEER/ ANFHEEER
£ REXHH EMEREE RERDL TEXH
Direct Indirect
B &
Qufu Goodaymart Electric PRC/ RMB2,000,000 - 26" Sale of home electric
Appliance Co., Ltd.* Mainland China appliances
hEHAEERERAR" B,/ AN AR 2,000,000 WERE
Qingdao Yatai Goodaymart PRC/ RMB2,000,000 - 26" Sale of home electric
Electric Appliance Co., Ltd.** Mainland China appliances
BEERARIRERERERAA" HhE/HEAL AR 2,000,000 HEXE
Laiwu Goodaymart Electric PRC/ RMB1,000,000 - 26*  Sale of home electric
Appliance Co., Ltd.** Mainland China appliances
REMAREERER AR B/ RE R AR 1,000,000 7T HERE
Zibo Xinxing Goodaymart Electric PRC/ RMB1,980,000 - 26" Sale of home electric
Appliance Sales Co., Ltd.* Mainland China appliances
MBHEEDRERHEARAR " PE/PEN AE#1,980,0007C HEXE
Yuncheng Sanlian Home Appliance  PRC/ RMB2,000,000 - 26" Sale of home electric
Co., Ltd.* Mainland China appliances
BH-HREARDA HhE/HEAL AR 2,000,000 HEXE
Changshu Suchang Electric PRC/ RMB3,000,000 - 31%  Sale of home electric
Appliance Sales Co., Ltd.* Mainland China appliances
EATHEEREEARAA B/ R E R AR 3,000,000 HERE
Qingdao Goodaymart Home PRC/ RMB21,000,000 - 90  Provision of furniture
Furnishing Service Co., Ltd.* Mainland China installation and
logistics services
BRAERERERBERAF " HE /R E R AR 21,000,0007 REEEZERDRRE
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INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 20. RMIBARZERE(E)
Place of
incorporation/ Percentage of equity
registration and Issued ordinary/  directly attributable to
Name business registered capital the Company Principal activities
ML BERTEER/ ANFHEEER
A% REXHH EMEREE RERDL TEXH
Direct Indirect
B %
Qingdao Haier New Energy PRC/ RMB150,000,000 - 100 Manufacture and sale of
Electronics Co., Ltd.™** Mainland China water heaters
EEEBFERERARLT ™ B8/ FEML AR 150,000,000 7T EERFEIKE
Designwelt Limited™** PRC/ Euro2,670,000 - 100 Furniture design and
Mainland China E-commerce
appliances
AR R R (L8 ERAF ~ Bl /B 2,670,000 87 - 100 RARAREFHEY
Suzhou Haipeng E-commerce PRC/ RMB5,000,000 - 56  Online sales of home
Limited™ Mainland China electric appliances
gENmERETEBERLAD e/ BN AR#5,000,0007T BEHERE
Qingdao Goodaymart Lejia Jiaju PRC/ RMB25,000,000 - 100  Sale of home furniture
Trading Co., Ltd.** Mainland China and other products
HERRELRFEZHERAF " B/ FENM AR 25,000,000 HERAREMER
Jiangsu Goodaymart Huadong PRC/ RMB 10,000,000 - 54 Provision of logistics
Logistics Co., Ltd.* Mainland China service
IHRARIBERMTARRR HE/HREA AR¥ 10,000,000 70 R IRS
Shanghai Boyol New Brothers PRC/ RMB42,400,000 - 54 Provision of logistics
Supply Chain Management Mainland China service
Co., Ltd.*
DERERAHRERERARAR FE/ HEK AR 42,400,000 7 REDRRSE
Foshan Boyol New Brothers PRC/ RMB500,000 - 54 Provision of logistics
Logistics Co., Ltd.** Mainland China service
BLTAERARMRERAD " RE /PR AR 500,0007C R RH
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20. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 20. RMIBARZERE(E)
Place of
incorporation/ Percentage of equity
registration and Issued ordinary/  directly attributable to
Name business registered capital the Company Principal activities
ML BERTEER/ ANFHEEER
£ REXHH EMEREE RERDL TEXH
Direct Indirect
B &
Suzhou Boyol New Brothers PRC/ RMB5,000,000 - 54 Provision of logistics
Logistics Co., Ltd.** Mainland China service
FINBEFARDRBERAR " hE/HE R AR 5,000,000 R R
Guangzhou Boyol New Brothers PRC/ RMB1,000,000 - 54 Provision of logistics
Supply Chain Management Mainland China service
Co., Ltd.*
BINAEFAAHEEER hE/ R AR 1,000,000 REMRRS
BRAR ™
Beijing Beixin Supply Chain PRC/ RMB1,000,000 - 54 Provision of logistics
Management Co., Ltd.** Mainland China service
TREFHEREREBRAR HE /PRI AK#1,000,0007T R ARTS
Qingdao Lejia Electric PRC/ RMB10,000,000 - 97  Sale of home electric
Appliance Co., Ltd.** Mainland China appliances
EREXERBRAA" hE/E AL AR# 10,000,000 70 HERE
Qingdao New Goodaymart Logistics  PRC/ USD49,000,000 - 100 Holding Company
Service Co., Ltd.™* Mainland China
EBHBRIRYRREERAR ™ FE/ RERK 49,000,000%7T BIRAR

*

under PRC law

*%

Registered as a sino-foreign equity joint venture enterprise

RIEPEEERMETINRG B BB

Registered as a domestic limited liability company under PRC > REPELEAMAFEBREFAA

law
Registered as a wholly-foreign-owned enterprise under PRC o RIBRBDEEF MR E B A E
law

FZERBRBELRFIELEN B L A2 &
VTN €9/ NTET PRy NI el )
BmIERE R A -

# These are subsidiaries of non-wholly-owned subsidiaries of the #
Company and, accordingly, are accounted for as subsidiaries
by virtue of the Company’s control over their holding
companies.
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INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Note: In June 2011, Qingdao New Goodaymart Logistics Service
Co., Ltd. (“Qingdao NG”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Group, entered into structure contracts, including a loan
agreement, option agreement, exclusive business cooperation
agreement, equity pledge agreement and power of attorney,
with Haier Corp and Haier Group E-commerce Co., Ltd.
(“E-commerce”), a then wholly-owned subsidiary of Haier
Corp. According to the structure contracts, Qingdao NG
agreed to grant to Haier Corp an interest-free loan of
RMB30,000,000, which is secured by the equity interests in
E-commerce held by Haier Corp. Qingdao NG has then been
granted an exclusive irrevocable option to purchase part or all
of the equity interests in E-commerce. Haier Corp entrusts all
of its shareholder’s right in E-commerce to Qingdao NG. The
Group has contractual rights to exercise its power over
E-commerce’s operation and has rights to obtain the economic
benefits from E-commerce, as well as exposes its risks
incidental to the activities of E-commerce. Accordingly,
E-commerce is accounted for as a subsidiary by virtue of the
Group’s control over it.

In September 2012, Qingdao NG, Haier Corp, E-commerce
and an independent third party entered into a capital
subscription contract. According to the capital subscription
contract, E-commerce increased its registered capital from
RMB 10,000,000 to RMB37,500,000, of which an additional
RMBZ20,000,000 was contributed by Haier Corp, which was
financed by Qingdao NG through an interest-free loan of the
same amount, and RMB7,500,000 by the independent third
party. Accordingly, the interest of E-commerce controlled by
Qingdao NG was reduced to 80%.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results
for the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets
of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in
the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive

length.
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20.

RMEBARZRE (&)

Wit  R-FB——FNH REHZ 2 ENER
AESHAAIEYRREFRARES
#E BN ) 826 7 4 8] 1 7] R 6 /8 5 [F 2
AERZ T EWE L RSB EREFEE
BRAF([EFBEH] T LAERK (B
Bk  BIKEG#  BREHEGT
# o RIBERGHRREZTE) - RIEMRE
HBEK - EBHMAANERERL2EER
A B 30,000,000 /8B EE A %
BEKEREB LR IFHZEFEDS
REEREN - EBMALAIRE#ER—E
THBEZ BEERE  KEAETEHE
2 BB 17 2 2 BRARHE - /5 R 4 B 1 Al AR R
EFHBE AR RENZATEEHH
FJE - REBAEEKENATHEF B
ZEEBTRAEEN VEEERKEET
BB ZEHNzm  TEeAZEFHBEER
i a2 g - Bt - EF R 5 E R EE
B E G H T TR EE A -

R-ZFE—ZFNA EEXFHANE 8
FERF]  EFEFE—EBIE=FE
UELXRBBEH - REZLXRESH &
F B 515 B 2 A K B A R % 10,000,000
T IE A B 37,500,000 © EHAE
1 20,000,000 7T K A R 7,500,000 7T 53 5
HEREB AN (ZEF A EBESH A
Al —EZ5H % 8 BHIEHED) A RZE
VE=ZDFEA AU HESH A BNEE
# 2 EF BB ZE 80% °

ERFAVNZARTMBARINEERR/TE
FEARBAFE 2 RESANA KRB EE
FETZHOZHMBRAR - EFERR - 77
HifBARSEEHATBNIE -
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21. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 21, THEERE
2014 2013
—E2-mE —T=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BTR ARBTFT
Unlisted equity investments, at cost FELMRARE - AR 2,925 2,925
As at the end of the reporting period, all of the Group’s RBERR AEBE 2P HREERETHIZ
available-for-sale investments were stated at cost less AR MRETE - REREFEEAT
impairment because the range of reasonable fair value BZREERKN BEBFRAEATETRIE
estimates is so significant that the directors are of the opinion HFHE - AEEEBENTABREEZER]
that their fair values cannot be measured reliably. The Group HIPERE o
does not intend to dispose of them in the near future.
22. INVENTORIES 22, EFE
Group AEH
2014 2013
—EF-mE  —T=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BT T AREFT
Raw materials R 60,825 50,677
Work in progress TR 22,470 35,695
Finished goods SR T 3,584,772 2,805,215

3,668,067 2,891,587

At 31 December 2014, none of the Group’s inventories was
pledged. At 31 December 2013, certain inventories with a
carrying amount of RMB61,540,000 were pledged as security
for the Group’s borrowings as further detailed in note 29 to

the financial statements.

R-ZE—MFE+-_A=+—8 AEEFE
PR 3 o LN B RS SRR I s 203 — 25
Fill RZE—=F+-"A=+—H &X&
EREE A ARK 61,540,000 THFEE1E
RAEBEEENEKRRELIF -
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23. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 23. EWRARREE
Group rER
2014 2013
—E-mE —T-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARBTIT
Trade and bills receivables YRR E R 6,866,391 7,563,356
Impairment A (18,006) (4,436)
6,848,385 7,558,920

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly on
credit, except for new customers, where payment in advance
is normally required. The credit period is generally one
month, extending up to three months for major customers.
Each customer has a maximum credit limit. The Group seeks
to maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables to
minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are reviewed
regularly by senior management. In view of the
aforementioned and the fact that the Group’s trade
receivables relate to a large number of diversified customers,
there is no significant concentration of credit risk. The Group
does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements
over its trade receivable balances. Trade receivables are

non-interest-bearing.

KE ERETEFEZENESBRIUEEER
CEFEPAIIN BEREPABMNR
cEEHMBEA—MA FBRFZEER

%ﬁﬂiyﬂkizﬂﬂ c BEPHBREEHL

o AN B B0 PO BR AR S R 1A AR U (Bl R Ui B

FLOUREEERR - @EARBE S REEE

TEHRZEE o 4850 bl A Ko AN 52 [ B LA BR e

BEZTEFPBR  MUBEEREFTHE

BRES - NEBWERZERBIR R EHT

BEAER RS EMEERA GG - BUER

RIETE o
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23. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued) 23. EWERRRERE(A)
An aged analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the RIS BARERIRR 2 RIRIZEHZ A O
reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows: U N
Group A EE
2014 2013
—E-mE —T-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TRT ARETE

Trade receivables: FEMAR SR
Within 1 month 1EAR 1,866,449 1,615,539
1 to 2 months 122 A 521,670 479,679
2 to 3 months 2ZE 3@ A 134,292 255,945
Over 3 months BB 3EA 190,109 145,430
2,712,520 2,496,593
Bills receivable W =B 4,135,865 5,062,327

6,848,385 7,558,920
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TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued) 23.

The movements in provision for impairment of trade
receivables are as follows:

FEVRRR R R (&)

FEUSRFURER B ZFNT

Group ZN S
2014 2013
—E-mF —E—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBFIT
At 1 January ®n—H—H 4,436 -
Impairment losses recognised (note 6) EHERRMEEE (Mite) 18,811 4,436
Amount written off as uncollectible TER TR B - S 58 (3,030) -
Impairment losses reversed (note 6) B EREEE (#iF6) (2,211) -
As at 31 December Wt+—_A=+—8 18,006 4,436

Included in the above provision for impairment of trade
receivables is a provision for individually impaired trade
receivables of RMB6,571,000 (2013: RMB4,436,000) with a
carrying amount before provision of RMB7,316,000 (2013:
RMB23,343,000) and general provision for impaired trade
receivables of RMB11,435,000 (2013: nil) with a carrying
amount before provision of RMB20,256,000 (2013: nil).

The individually impaired trade receivables relate to

customers that were in financial difficulties and only a portion

of the receivables is expected to be recovered.

ETALA LR AR RORE B E A AR B R E '
WBR SR B A R#6,571,0000 (=T —=
F: AR 4,436,0007T) - HEER 2 RE®
BAEARKE7316,000L(ZF—=F : AR
#% 23,343,000 7T ) * MA R BEE RE B W R X
7 — B AR 11,435,000 0 (ZE—=
F:T) HEBBIAZ2EEEARARY
20,256,000 L (ZE—=F : &) »

BRI RIEZ B S EURR ) B IF £ 8 5
HoRPAR  EHERISDEUERAT

Y[ -
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23. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)

The aged analysis of the trade and bills receivables and the

23. EWRRKRERE(E)

JE U BR 7 B SR 4B 2 B e Ko B B DR 1BL 0 A 40

corresponding impairment is as follows: N
Group rEE
2014 —E-NF Impaired
2RE
Carrying
amount of
trade
receivables
before
Not impaired provision Provision Total
FEWBR =X
BERIZ
REE BREE B et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ETRT AR®BTR AR¥TRT AR%TrR
Not past due RAHA 6,782,469 - - 6,782,469
Less than 1 year past due BELR 50,002 10,265 (3,404) 56,863
1 to 2 years past due BH—EWE 6,348 17,307 (14,602) 9,053
6,838,819 27,572 (18,006) 6,848,385
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23. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued) 23. EWEREREERE(E)
Group (continued) TEB(E)

2013 —E-=fF Impaired
2RE
Carrying

amount of

trade

receivables

before
Not impaired provision Provision Total

FEABR TR

BtEp 2
ARE BRE(E ] a5
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AR¥ETFT ARBTRT AR%ETR

Not past due R HA 7,436,417 - - 7,436,417
Less than 1 year past due BER DN —1F 97,811 23,343 (4,436) 116,718
1 to 2 years past due BE—EWE 5,785 - - 5,785
7,540,013 23,343 (4,436) 7,558,920
Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to SR ER N AR RE 2 e Y RO B 5 BRI £ R R
customers for whom there was no recent history of default. W EERR -
Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a @B ERRE BB GRIE R Z AR A EE
number of customers that have a good track record with the FREHRRIFCEP AR - BEBALR -
Group. Based on past experience, the directors of the KAREERERZSERIELRERE
Company are of the opinion that the provision for impairment TR FAAEEEZWESEAEE mMzE
is adequate in respect of these balances as there has not HERR DR AT 2 EURE -

been a significant change in credit quality and the balances

are still considered fully recoverable.
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23. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued) 23. EWEREREERE(E)
Included in the Group’s trade and bills receivables are REE 7 YRR EERBE RSB
amounts due from Haier Affiliates amounting to NAEl B AEHAREEII7277,000L( ==
RMB937,277,000 (2013: RMB898,354,000), which are — =% : AR#¥898,354,0007T) ' :Z7IBAE
repayable on similar credit terms to those offered to the major REETAEEXIERFP 2 EERIEEZ
customers of the Group. Further details of the sales to these EERREE BHRNZEEEATHEEY
related parties are set out in note 14 to the financial HFFEER M EmRMTE 14 -
statements.
At 31 December 2014, certain of the Group’s bills receivable RZE—NF+=—A=+—H0 XEEET
of approximately RMB77,271,000 (2013: RMB76,842,000) JERERHNARE 77,271,000 (ZF—=
were pledged to secure certain of the Group’s bills payable F: AR¥76,842,000 7T ) EE 3F - DA I
(note 27). REEETRMNER (MF27) -
24. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 24. FERRIE - BRERHEAMERERR
RECEIVABLES
Group Company
rEE ¥ YN
2014 2013 2014 2013

—EF-mFE T ZE-mFE T =F
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR  ARETT ARETR ARBTL

Prepayments R 1,456,878 1,069,641 268 250
Deposits b 30,560 24,627 627 633
Other receivables H b e AR X 527,765 440,461 46,122 23,424
2,015,203 1,534,729 47,017 24,307
Impairment A (4,058) (11) - -
2,011,145 1,534,718 47,017 24,307
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24. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 24, FEMNRE- - ReREMEBERER(E)
RECEIVABLES (continued)
TE - FRIA B F A I AR ROR B 1 8 < B 1

The movements in provision for impairment of prepayments

and other receivables are as follows: N
Group Company
r&EE NS
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-mE —T-=F ZEBE-MF _—T-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRE AR®TT AR¥ETR ARBTT
At 1 January w—A—H 11 13,669 - -
Impairment losses recognised BRREEE(Mite)
(note 6) 4,047 - - -
Impairment losses write-off WA EE B - (13,658) - -
As at 31 December RN+=-—A=+—81 4,058 11 - -

B b 4 BR P B 18 2 TEA 38 K H At B UBR
HORNABARE1912000T(ZTE—=4:
#) K ANR¥2146000C( ZFE—=
11,0007L) 5h - EilEESED @ E R
B o B bl 2 BB EURBR AN - Ll
BRFTBLIE 2 B 75 A E E A AR B R R AR 8 2
FEUBR SR R TES SR IB B -

Except for prepayments and other receivables amounting to
RMB1,912,000 (2013: Nil) and RMB2,146,000 (2013:
RMB11,000) respectively, none of the above assets is either
past due or impaired. Other than the aforementioned
impaired receivables, the financial assets included in the
above balances relate to receivables and prepayments for
which there was no recent history of default.

REE 2 BMNFE - e MEMEURERRE
FEKESRBMBEARARERBARK

Included in the Group’s prepayments, deposits and other
receivables are amounts due from Haier Affiliates amounting
to RMB909,323,000 (2013: RMB540,731,000), which are
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

909,323,000 C( Z BE —=4F: AR ¥
540,731,0007T) - A REEE RE K
HBAEE -
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25. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 25. RERALSEHEER
Group Company
EE bNNE
2014 2013 2014 2013
—B-mE —T-=fF ZB-mF —T-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARBTRT AREFT AR¥TR AR®TR
Cash and bank balances He RIBITHES 2,743,446 5,167,110 29,136 154,025
Time deposits ERER 8,291,538 1,877,562 1,736,966 785,003
11,034,984 7,044,672 1,766,102 939,028
Less: deposits pledged for bills A BN R R
payable (note 27) T (kat27) (101,459) (220,350) - -
Deposits pledged for the FRIRTTIERE IR
bank guarantee (3,637) - - -
(105,096) (220,350) - -
Cash and cash equivalents RBehReEEEER 10,929,888 6,824,322 1,766,102 939,028

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank
balances and time deposits of the Group denominated in
RMB amounted to RMB9,734,384,000 (2013:
RMB6,704,016,000). The RMB is not freely convertible into
other currencies, however, under Mainland China’s Foreign
Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of
Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for

other currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign

exchange business.

RRER  AEEUARBHEZERE R
BTEBALREHTFRAEARYE
9,734,384000L( Z T —=F: AR®
6,704,016,0007T) - ARBT BB ALIRA
Hiv &% - BREH B R 2 SMNE S I
MEETE - EERMNEEERE)  AEEA
FRERTETINEEB 2 RITHARKE R
BRREME



25.

26.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (continued)

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made for
varying periods of up to one year depending on the
immediate cash requirement of the Group, and earn interest
at the respective short term time deposit rates. The bank
balances and pledged deposits are deposited with
creditworthy banks or financial institutions with no recent
history of default.

Included in the Group’s cash and cash equivalents are
deposits of approximately RMB786,586,000 (2013:
RMB732,396,000) placed with Haier Group Finance Co., Ltd.
(“Haier Finance”), a financial institution approved by the
People’s Bank of China. The interest rate on these deposits
ranged from 0.385%-3.9% per annum. Further details of the
interest income attributable to the deposits placed with Haier
Finance are set out in note 14 to the financial statements.

DEPOSITS FOR BANK FINANCIAL PRODUCTS

Deposits for bank financial products carry a fixed interest

rate of 4.18% per annum and will mature on 6 April 2015.
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25.

26.

RERBEELSEER (B)

BFRIRITZASREE ARITERMN LT
BRI ERHEBAE - RHERFREFAEE
ZABREFTRMD R/ —FARAZTRAEFR
HY - I AR R AR B E BT SR R BRER A B - $R
TTRERR 2 BB 317 BT DO I 8 3T HR R SR 4D
B2 EBRIFRITHR SRS -

AEBZRS KESEEEB REFHING
BEEVEERETQAR(ERUE) 27
AR 786,586,000 C(ZFE—=4F: A
R#732,396,0007T)  BEVEATEAR
RITRA Z I - ZFTFRZFREN
T HR0385EE39E - BEFHNER
B2 7R 2 F SR A H A F B E R 75
WMERMFE14 o

RITEMERETER

RITIE B EE 7 SKIR B E F M K 4.18% 51
B WHR-ZZE—hFMHARBEEH-
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27. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

An aged analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

27.

BNERARRE

RREPRENERZRRIZER BN
L

Group EE
2014 2013
—E—MF —T—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARBF T

Trade payables: FERTERSR
Within 1 month 1E AR 2,400,042 2,080,386
1 to 2 months 1221 A 147,604 539,491
2 to 3 months 22 3{dAH 34,780 114,846
Over 3 months BB 31E A 356,667 183,361
2,939,093 2,918,084
Bills payable e EIR 170,345 284,217

3,109,438 3,202,301

The trade and bills payables are non-interest-bearing and
are normally settled on credit terms ranging from 30 to 180
days.

Included in the Group’s trade payables are amounts due to
Haier Affiliates amounting to RMB1,506,100,000 (2013:
RMB1,669,880,000), which are repayable on similar credit
terms to those offered by other similar suppliers of the Group.
Further details of the purchases from these related parties
are set out in note 14 to the financial statements.

Certain of the Group’s bills payable are secured by the

pledge of the Group’s bank deposits amounting to
RMB101,459,000 (2013: RMB220,350,000) and the Group’s
bills receivable amounting to RMB77,271,000 (2013:
RMB76,842,000).

FEMEBRF M EER T FE - W—AEN T30
Z180AZEEHEE -

ANEEZ ENERREERMNERE B QRN
1H A8 A R#1,506,100,0007t( =T — =
F: ANR#1,669,880,0007T) * ZAIBER
HEMEEHESGETAEBERE 2 EER
HEE - ERRZSEEATEE 2 LM
BER I ERERMTE14 -

REEBETREASEEARER ZRITHERA
R¥101,450000 (= —=F : AR¥
220,350,00070) RANEE 2 B EE AR
77271,0000( —Z & — = F: AR &
76,842,000 7 ) YEHE I8 -
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28. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 28. Hitb B AR R ERH A B

Group Company
EE bNNE

2014 2013 2014 2013
—B-mE —T-=fF ZB-mF —T-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARBTRT AREFT AR¥TR AR®TR
Other payables HoAth FE1T AR R 6,882,004 6,147,009 148,865 131,825
Accruals EstEE 1,825,641 1,629,244 - -
8,707,645 7,776,253 148,865 131,825

HtEMERTANELFEEERS=R
average credit term of three months. A

Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have an

AEBE 7 EMENERRETTAEBEREN
BB A R 518 A AR ¥ 889,441,000 7T

Included in the Group’s other payables and accruals are
amounts due to Haier Affiliates amounting to

RMB889,441,000 (2013: RMB924,066,000). These amounts —ZT—=%: ARE¥924,066,0007T) ° %
are unsecured, interest-free and are repayable on demand. EHELEERN 2R RIKBAEE -
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29. INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS 29. FrEfEE
Group rEH
2014 2013
—Z-|mE =%
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate (%) Maturity  RMB’000 rate (%) Maturity RMB'000
BERAE% I AR®TR ZREAE% 38 AR®ETT
Current TE
Bank loans — unsecured  $RITE G — MIKIF - - - 174180 2014 81,568
Other loans — unsecured ~ H it B — EiKA - - - 1.96-2.04 2014 41,065
Other loans — secured HpED — HHEE - - - 6.00 2014 37,000
- 159,633
2014 2013
—F-mE T =F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® TR AREET T
Borrowings repayable: AR TRBABEZEER -
Within one year or on demand —F AR R - 159,633
Note:  The Group’s other loans in 2013 were secured by floating Wiat - AEEH = F—=F 2 AMERTIAKREE
charges over certain of the Group’s inventories totaling HAEE A AR H61,640,000 T2 &5 TIFEE
RMB61,540,000. HF B HER o
30. DUE TO A NON-CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER 30. ER—RFZEBRBRERNIE
The loans borrowed from a non-controlling shareholder are M—FRKIFERBREAZERAEERT - &
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. BRBREREE -
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31.

32.

PUT OPTION LIABILITIES

In prior years, the Company entered into incentive
agreements with the non-controlling shareholders of certain
subsidiaries pursuant to which the non-controlling
shareholders agreed to meet the prescribed financial and
operational performance targets of the non-wholly-owned
subsidiaries laid down by the Company and the Company
had agreed to grant put options to these non-controlling
shareholders in return. In accordance with the terms of the
incentive agreements and subject to the fulfilment of the
prescribed financial and operational performance targets at
the relevant financial year ends during the tenures of the put
options, these non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries
would be entitled to exercise the put options to require the
Company to purchase part of or the entire equity interests
(not already owned by the Group) in the non-wholly-owned
subsidiaries at prices to be determined based on the agreed
formula.

The put option liabilities are carried at fair value. The
subsequent change in the carrying amount of the put option
liabilities is adjusted against the put option reserve.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT LIABILITIES

In prior year, eight management members of E-commerce
(the “E-commerce Management”) were granted 9% equity
interests in E-commerce under certain conditions, including
three-year service contracts with E-commerce. Upon the
fulfilment of the prescribed financial targets by E-commerce,
the E-commerce Management has the right to sell their
granted equity interests in E-commerce to the Group at
prices to be determined based on the agreed formula.

The share-based payment liabilities and the corresponding
costs are measured by reference to the fair value of the
equity interests granted, and are recognised over the period

in which the performance and/or service conditions are
fulfilled.
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31.

32.

LA E
RARTEE - AR A EE T M B Q5 FFER
BERRT BB 955 - UL - BT A B SRR
BRAZERARAGFIZIFEENB AT
ZEIRM T MEERRBR - MARRAR
BRI S IR B R B R B2  IRIBA
T 0n % 165K S B 155 AR B AR P 2 4B R
S FEREREKF R REERARB
12 ZEMBARHERRRARITER
A Z KA R RRIRBEHEAXNEENE
RBEAEEHARER ZF2EH BRI
#B > 2k = HRARAE

RAHRAREAFER - REHEEE
REEZ HREHNAEHREHERR -

URBARERZNREE

DHER  BTEEH \BERERE (T
IHBEREBEETHE (BERET
BB AR FZREA 0 REETHE
2 9% I - INB T RIS M I8 A1 B
2% BTHHERELERERERE
2 AR TR 2 W AR R
52 B TEHME -

PARAD A B0 2 R B B M AR R R AR T 4
SDERBEREZ AVEFE - YRNERER
KRB R HR G < BRI AT ARER -
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33.

—mFE+=A=t+—H

CONVERTIBLE BONDS

On 24 August 2011, the Company issued 100,000,000 3%
convertible bonds with the exercise price of HK$10.67 per
share for a nominal value of HK$1,067,000,000 (equivalent to
RMB874,375,000), plus 40,000,000 warrants with the
exercise price of HK$11.20 each. There was no movement in
the number of these convertible bonds during the year. The
bonds are convertible into 100,000,000 ordinary shares of
the Company at the option of the bondholders on or after 18
months after the issue date and up to seven days prior to the
fifth anniversary of the issue date. The bonds carry interest at
a rate of 3% per annum, which is payable half-yearly in
arrears on 30 June and 31 December.

The fair value of the liability component of convertible bonds
amounting to RMB665,426,000 was estimated at the
issuance date using an equivalent market interest rate for a
similar bond without a conversion option and warrants
granted. The residual amount was assigned as equity
component of convertible bonds amounting to
RMB149,249,000 and warrant reserve amounting to
RMB59,700,000 respectively and is included in shareholders’
equity.

During the year, the entire 40,000,000 warrants were
exercised at the price of HK$11.2 each for subscription of
the Company’s share of HK$0.1 each.

33.

AR ES
RZE——F N/ Z+WMHE KNRQF)ZETT
100,000,00017 F B3E R BRITHEE A
10678 T2 2R ES BEA
1,067,000,000% 7T( #H & BN A R &
874,375,0007T) * HHMNREETT 40,000,000 17
BHITEEH11.208 THRRIEE - £
ZEABMRESF S EMELCAED - ES
BEATEERETRASBR18MEAZ
ZHRZBREZRTABZ FRABATLES
HAIEHAILE BZEEHFERABERRQT
100,000,000 [ & Bz - ZEEHIEF B3
EF B RHZFBEERASNA=+TREETZ
A=Z+—B8¥FX[H—K-

AMRESFZEBBETD 2 AFERARY
665,426,0007C * IR EITH BT EB R
BmEERE BOUESRER D RREE 2HE
EMSFEMEE - RSB RIBERTR
& &5 56 A R 149,249,000 7T & 53
PRCHEE 75 fv 5 A R 5 59,700,000 7T+ I 5t AR
R o

FR -
1128 T 2 BRITE - A
BEO0.1B T 2%t »

:.,\4ooooooofﬁmﬂ & fzif
REBARB SR



33. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued)

The movement of the liability component of convertible bonds

is as follows:
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33. WMRES(E)
ABRER CBESY ZEBIT

2014 2013

—F-mFE T =F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETR ARBTFT

At 1 January ®n—H—H 716,835 699,643
Interest expense (note 7) MBEXE (HaE7) 66,471 63,238
Interest paid EARFE (25,433) (25,375)
Exchange realignment M 5, B 18,446 (20,671)
At 31 December W+-—A=+—H 776,319 716,835
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34. CONVERTIBLE AND EXCHANGEABLE BONDS 34, MHRERATERESZ(THRRRTERE

254

(“CEB”)

On 6 December 2013, the Group and the Alibaba Group
agreed on a strategic collaboration through the Strategic
Investments Agreements to further develop the Group’s
logistics business carried out by Qingdao Goodaymart
Logistics Co., Ltd. (formerly known as “Qingdao Haier
Logistics Co., Ltd.”) (“Qingdao Logistics”), a subsidiary of
the Company. On 20 March 2014, according to the
Convertible and Exchangeable Bond Agreement entered into
between the Group and Alibaba Group, the Company issued
CEB to the Alibaba Group with the principal amount of
HK$1,316,036,000 (equivalent to RMB1,055,023,000). The
CEB is interest-bearing at a rate of 1.5% per annum and is
due to mature on 20 March 2017. The CEB is convertible into
ordinary shares of the Company at a conversion price of
HK$19.334 per share (“Conversion Right”) or exchangeable
into the ordinary shares of a subsidiary of the Company
("Exchange Right”), at the options of the CEB holders. If the
conversion right for the ordinary shares of the Company is
exercised, all interests accrued up to the date of the
conversion will be payable and taken into account in arriving
at the number of convertible shares. If the exchange right for
shares of the subsidiary is exercised, no interest will be
payable by the Company.

The fair value of the liability component of CEB amounting to
RMB1,000,185,000 was estimated at the issuance date using
an equivalent market interest rate for a similar bond without
conversion and exchange options. The residual amount was
dealt with differently in the Group’s financial statements and
the Company’s financial statements.

%)
R-E—=F+-A B AEFEMED
EEERE S BER IR E B TEE
BIE NE— T EHRALARAINBARES
BEIEMRBRAR(NEISES8BYR
ERARD ((BE8MRICEZAEE Y
MEF -RZZT—NF=A=+H " RBEX
S E HEM EEEEBER 2 AT AR & AT R
B ARRRMEEEEEETAS
42 %8 /51,316,036,000% 7T (#HE 7 A R
1,055,023,000 7T ) 89 AT 42 [A% [z Pl B4R E 5 o
MR R EIRERIEFE15%E - I
RZZ—tF=A =+ BEHER - ATk
AR ES AR A AR R A IR E A E
ANBENRREGRKR1934BTHEHILS
RAEE AR ([HRRRHE ) i A AR R FIHT
BAmzEmk(TEmE]) - WMARTER
Bz BT T BEBRARCATERE
EEFB S T A AT WA 2 BUR R AR (5 2B B
TAZE - W B A RRMD 2 ERERTT
F AARBASHFE -

AR EAERES BTS2 AFER
AR #1,000,185,0007t + Ty 847 H EA LA
TEBRRREREERE 2 HUESF 2ES
TMHEHEGE - FHRSER AN EBY B RE
ARG BREZEBEAREE TR -
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34. CONVERTIBLE AND EXCHANGEABLE BONDS 34, AR RAHRES([ARRR THIRE
(“CEB”) (continued) F1(#&)
Group rER
The components of CEB on the issuance date were split into MRETAE - AT R AT ERESSIFAIN
as follows: TE S
2014
—E-MEF
Notes RMB’000

ES ARBTRT

Liability component BESBD 1,000,185
Equity component EzmE 54,838
including: Conversion Right B - iR (a) 32,034
Exchange Right g (b) 22,804
1,055,023
Company P YN

The components of CEB on the issuance date in the REITRE - AR N AR E SN ARE

Company’s financial statement were split into as follows: R ERDTABATES ¢
2014
—E-OF
Notes RMB’000

it AR®TR

Liability component A&y 1,000,185

Derivative financial instrument TTEERIE
— Exchange Right — W (b) 32,034
Equity component — Conversion Right WD — AR (a) 22,804
1,055,023
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34. CONVERTIBLE AND EXCHANGEABLE BONDS 34.
(“CEB”) (continued)

Notes:

(a)  The Conversion Right was assigned as equity component of
the CEB and included in shareholder’s equity in both the
Group’s and the Company’s financial statements.

(b)  The Exchange Right was assigned as equity component of the
CEB and included in shareholder’s equity in the Group’s
financial statements. With regard to the Company’s financial
statements, the Exchange Right was recognized as a
derivative financial instrument measured at fair value. The
subsequent change in fair value is recognized in the statement
of profit or loss. The fair value of the derivative is determined
using valuation techniques and is categorized within Level 3.
The carrying amount of the derivative financial instrument as at
31 December 2014 was RMB24,246,000.

The movement of the liability component of CEB is as follows:

TRRETERES(TRRRTERE

F1(#&)
A3 -
(@)  HRIEHEE B IR TS %

(b)

aJ
T

H5  WHAFEBRAR A HHEZ
RS -

PR R AR R AT R &5 e
5 - WET AR EEI I RE (s o
MARFZHBREME - BREERS
BAFEAEZILECHTA BEEZR
FEEZHRIBm X ER  ITELTRZAF
ERAEELZET  WHBAFE=R -
PSR TAR - E—mME+_—H=—+—
H 2 BREHE AN R ¥ 24,246,000 7T °

M kAEREFZBEBY ZEEHM

2014 2013
—ZT-{F —E—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AREET T

Liability component at the issuance date RETRBZEBESS 1,000,185 -
Interest expense (note 7) MERZ (MHiE7) 25,365 -
Exchange realignment BEE 5, 3 B (1,168) -
At 31 December R+—_A=+—H 1,024,382 -
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35. PROVISIONS 35. BiE
Group rER

Product warranties and
installation
EmRERZE
2014 2013
—F-nmE T =F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Kzt ARBT T AREFT

At 1 January n—HA—H 840,135 801,215
Additions iz 6 705,033 688,788
Amounts utilised during the year FREOEHEEE (707,984) (649,868)
At 31 December R+—A=+—8H 837,184 840,135
Portion classified as current liabilities SMERESBEZ Y (517,788) (537,244)
Non-current portion IEmENEL 319,396 302,891

The Group provides installation services and warranties of REEREFPEREZERBRAR=-2\F

three to eight years to its customers on washing machines R REKRRE - EREZERAE

and water heaters, under which faulty products are repaired HERFER  REBREBSEIREE RATEM

or replaced. The amount of the provision for the warranties is IRELRERE - 18 RREKFEEF - 5T

estimated based on sales volume and past experience of the BERERERE - WHEEREDEE -

level of installation services rendered, repairs and returns.
The estimation basis is reviewed on an ongoing basis and

revised where appropriate.
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36. DEFERRED TAX 36. EEBIIE
The movements in deferred tax assets and deferred tax FR - BEERBEBEENRELEHBEEZES W
liabilities during the year are as follows: I
Deferred tax assets BEEBIBEEE
Group AEH
2014
—2-QmF
Accruals Unrealised
and payables  Provisions profits Others Total
EBER
R ERER BE  REREN Hitr @

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR  ARBTR ARBTR ARETR ARETx

At 1 January m—R—H 422,997 76,743 58,680 34,236 592,656
Deferred tax credited/(charged) to the FNERERER/ (1K)
statement of profit or loss during the year,  ZEIEHIE - %48

net (note 10) (Hz#10) (1,189) 1,082 8,124 22,875 30,892
At 31 December R+ZA=+—H 421,808 77,825 66,804 57,111 623,548
2013

e

Accruals Unrealised
and payables Provisions profits Others Total

EERER

FENERR B EFEN Hity @t

RMB000 ~ RMBO00 ~ RWMBO00 ~ RMBOOO  RMB00O
ARBTL  AREBTT  AREBTT  AREBTT AREBT:R

At 1 January »—HA—H 344,715 101,233 - 9,686 455,634
Deferred tax credited/(charged) to the ERNFERERER/ ()

statement of profit or loss during ZEEFIE - F8

the year, net (note 10) (BsE10) 78,282 (24,490) 58,680 24,550 137,022
At 31 December R+-B=1+-R 422997 76,743 58,680 34,236 592,656
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36. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 36. EZEBLIE ()

Deferred tax liabilities EEBIESE
Group rEH
2014
—E-E
Fair value
adjustments
arising from
acquisition of ~ Withholding
subsidiaries taxes Total
WEEME QA
|34
NEEHRE ek BEr
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R ARBTR ARBF T
At 1 January ®n—A—H - 8,503 8,503
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 41) Ur BT B AR (Mf5E41) 7,793 - 7,793
Deferred tax credited to the statement of ~ FREERER L
profit or loss during the year, net BRAET B F R
(note 10) (K1zF10) 911) - 911)
Exchange differences PEH =58 - 217 217
At 31 December W+=ZA=+—H 6,882 8,720 15,602
2013
—E—=%F
Fair value
adjustments
arising from
acquisition of Withholding
subsidiaries taxes Total
WK B A
EEZ
NFHEAE BB HEt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT ARBFT AREBFT
At 1 January w—HA—H - 8,755 8,755
Exchange differences PE =% - (252) (252)
At 31 December R+-—A=+—H - 8,503 8,503
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36.

DEFERRED TAX (continued)

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of
RMB46,948,000 (2013: RMB59,450,000) that are available
indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable profits of the
companies in which the losses arose. The Group also has tax
losses arising in Mainland China of RMB890,865,000 (2013:
RMB757,239,000) that will expire in one to five years for
offsetting against future taxable profits. Deferred tax assets
have not been recognised in respect of these losses as they
have arisen in the Company and subsidiaries that have been
loss-making for some time and it is not considered probable
that taxable profits will be available against which the tax
losses can be utilised.

Pursuant to the PRC CIT Law, a 10% withholding tax is levied
on dividends declared to foreign investors from the foreign
investment enterprises established in Mainland China. The
requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to
earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding tax
rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty between Mainland
China and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors. For the
Group, the applicable rate is 10%. The Group is therefore
liable to withholding taxes on dividends distributed by those
subsidiaries established in Mainland China in respect of
earnings generated from 1 January 2008.

Except for the deferred tax liabilities of RMB8,720,000 (2013:
RMB8,503,000), which represent the withholding taxes for
the earnings of the PRC subsidiaries to be remitted, as at 31
December 2014, no deferred tax has been recognised for
withholding taxes that would be payable on the unremitted
earnings that are subject to withholding taxes of the Group’s
subsidiaries established in Mainland China. In the opinion of
the directors, it is not probable that these subsidiaries will
distribute such earnings in the foreseeable future. The
aggregate amount of temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries in Mainland China for which
deferred tax liabilities have not been recognised totaled
approximately RMB10,309,295,000 at 31 December 2014
(2013: RMB7,829,214,000).

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the
payment of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

36.

EERE (&)
AREBREBELEZHRBEERAARE
46,948000L( — T — =Z F: AR ¥

59,450,0007T) * Al ER BRI IEZ S E £
EiE 2 AR BEERBET - AEBRA
IHEEE A 2 B TE E5 18 A A R 5 890,865,000
T(ZZ—=%: AR¥757239,0007T) *
BR—Z2RAFANEMAKEBEERB R
o ARNRERIBEBEERBARRGREES
B2 WEBAR Bt ERZSESBERE
ERRIEEE  MARRRAEARERER TH
FA 2 FERRFLE R AR S 7] ) < B TEE I8 o

RIBHFEGERSTOE - RPBERMAAT
SMNERELEMIEREETIRZKRE A
1 10% 2 R ERRIAHTR - ZHREE T
NF-—A—BEER WEAR -_TTLF
TZA=1+—B®&Z&H - W+ BALES
BIREEMERAERE R R HE - Al
AERAREZ AR E - AEB ZERHREK
B10% © Bt - NEBAREF BRI
ZHBARBE _ZETNF-A—HRELZ
BRI 23k 2 B B BN TR0 o

BIEERIBEEEARKS 7200000 (==
— =4 : AR#¥8,503,0007T) N (;ZRIEE
PEIMEB A BESEMN AN R
T—MFE+-_A=+—08 BEZAEER
R A S 2 BB A R ZBEUS TR R 2 R
[EZ AR RN 2 BINHERELERE - &%
RE - ZEMBRARTARTEER A RANR
DIRZERTF) - MR EAHHE AR 2
EHEBEMECHEABNRAERCERNER
MEN_—_E-NE+_A=+—B&aH#HA
AR #10,309,295000 L ( —E—=4F: A
R#7.829,214,0007T) °

AR B[R E B SRR A 2 e B B A Y s A e P
BHRER -
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ISSUED EQUITY 37. BER{THER
Group rEH
Issued equity
ERITHER
RMB’000
ARBETIT
At 1 January 2013 R-E—=F—H—H 2,501,181
Exercise of share options 1715 B AL A 195,676
Exercise of warrants TR RARAEE 37,049
Issue of shares BTRG 27,848
At 31 December 2013 and 1 January 2014 R-E—=F+-_A=+—HK
—E—NF—H—H 2,761,754
Exercise of share options 1T{E R A i 103,239
Exercise of warrants TR R AERE 421,428
Issue of shares BT D 801,562
Transfer to capital reserve ERESEAGEE (2,224,521)
At 31 December 2014 RZE—NF+=-A=1+—H 1,868,462
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37.

ISSUED EQUITY (continued)

37. BEBTEZ(E)

Company AT
2014 2013
—E-mF —E-=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
Shares [gviy FTHET FAT
Authorised: VETE
30,000,000,000 30,000,000,000 &
shares of HK$0.1 each BREEC1BITZRG 3,000,000 3,000,000
2014 2013
—E-IF =%
HK$°000 RMB’000 HK$'000 RMB’000
TET ARWTR FET AR®ETR
equivalent equivalent
%8 %8
Issued and fully paid: EETEHR -
2,686,806,143 2,686,806,143 1%
(2013: 2,571,958,015) (Z2—=%:
shares of HK$0.1 each 2,571,958,015 %)
BREEO. 1B T2 KH 268,681 266,732 257,196 257,524
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37. CRTHER(F)

RERARRBDETRAZZZHEBLT

ISSUED EQUITY (continued) 37.

The movements of the Company’s issued share capital
during the year are as follows:

Number of Issued Share
shares share premium
in issue capital account Total
28T
BROBE ERTRE  ROBER met
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARETT ARBTRT ARETR
At 1 January 2013 R-ZE—=%—H—H 2,448,614,277 247,686 1,973,786 2,221,472
Exercise of share options 1TERERE 50,455,200 3,996 191,680 195,676
Exercise of warrants TR 70,000,000 5,613 31,436 37,049
Issue of shares BITRD 2,888,538 229 27,619 27,848
At 31 December 2013 and W_E—=F+-"A=1+—H
1 January 2014 NZE-mFE—-HF—H 2,571,958,015 257,524 2,224,521 2,482,045
Exercise of share options (note j)  {T{@EER&HE (ff5ti) 20,344,500 1,610 101,629 103,239
Exercise of warrants (note ii) 1T RARAER (Matii) 40,000,000 3,230 418,198 421,428
Issue of shares (note iii) BTG (B atiii) 2,113,632 168 28,060 28,228
Issue of subscription shares BITRERG (Mativ)
(note iv) 52,389,996 4,200 769,134 773,334
Transfer to contributed surplus EBREGARG (HiFv)
(note v) - - (2,224,521)  (2,224,521)
At 31 December 2014 R-Z—F
+ZA=+—H 2,686,806,143 266,732 1,317,021 1,583,753
Notes: Bat -
(i) The subscription rights attaching to 20,344,500 share options (i) 20,344,500 17 FE IR 1E BT [T 2 3R BE B R E

were exercised during the year, resulting in the issue of
20,344,500 shares of HK$0.1 each for a total cash
consideration of HK$96,293,000 (equivalent to
RMB76,198,000). An amount of RMB27,041,000 was
transferred from the share option reserve to the share premium
account upon the exercise of the share options.

P IETTIE - ZEEE7T 20,344,500 % & % [E]
EO1B T Z R #BEZHER
96,293,0008 7T (15 A K # 76,198,000
TT) o REARKE 27,041,000 7T FEE IR
TTIERF E R IEF PR E IR0 5 BAR -
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37.

ISSUED EQUITY (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

40,000,000 shares of HK$0.1 each were issued for cash at a
subscription price of HK$11.2 per share pursuant to the
exercise of the Company’s warrants for a total cash
consideration of HK$448,000,000 (equivalent to
RMB361,728,000). An amount of RMB59,700,000 was
transferred from the warrant reserve to the share premium
account upon the exercise of the warrants.

The Company issued 2,113,632 shares of the Company for
RMB28,228,000 to certain Haier franchise store owners who
entered into management services agreements with the Group
and had achieved the prescribed performance targets. Further
details of the management services agreements are set out in
note 19 to the financial statements. An amount of
RMBZ28,228,000 was transferred from share-based payment
reserve to the issued share capital and share premium
account upon the issuance of these shares.

On 6 December 2013, the Group and the Alibaba Group
agreed on a strategic collaboration through the Strategic
Investments Agreements to further develop the Group’s
logistics business carried out by Qingdao Logistics. According
to the Share Subscription Agreement, the Company agreed to
issue 52,389,996 ordinary shares of the Company of HK$0.1
each (“Subscription Shares”) to the Alibaba Group at a
subscription price of HK$18.413 per share, representing a
discount of approximately 1.11% to the closing price of
HK$18.62 per share on 5 December 2013. The above
transaction was completed on 20 March 2014 and the
proceeds from the share subscription amounted to
HK$964,657,000, equivalent to approximately
RMB773,334,000.

On 6 June 2014, by a special resolution of the annual general
meeting, the share premium of the Company amounting to
RMB2,224,521,000 was transferred to contributed surplus. The
share premium and contributed surplus were included in the
accounts of issued equity and capital reserve respectively in
the consolidated financial statements of the Group.

Share options

Details of the Company’s share option scheme and the share

options issued under the scheme are included in note 39 to

the financial statements.

37.

5

iTHER ()

et - (&)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

B2 BIFRAR BT TIE - $K11£ 40,000,000
REZREEO. 182 17 E &R 11.28
TCREBUE S #ET BED
18 %448,000,000/& T (HHERA R ¥
361,728,000t ) ° A& A K # 59,700,000
TR RIRBEEETT(E 05 B A1 38 R BEFE 1
B R 5 (BAR o

K e BN EF AT BRI i I i
FIfEEREEIECE FHBINBEIEHEA
772113632 AN aAlR1n » £ EBAAR
#:08,008,000T - B E R % #
—HHIBHRUEREN T 19 BEAR
#08,028,000 7T IR iZ F i 17 F 1705 B A1 LA
BOABERT I FEBEREEEETRAM
BR17 i (B ©

R-IFE—Z4F+=-HNNA  KNEEFLEE
EEEERSFBEKERERALETE
BEIEAIE  HiE— A BEAEEY RN E
CAEEZ YR o IRIEIRG R R
AR E]EZIRFRAEE AL 18.4138 7T (AR
DR -ZE—=ZF+_HARAZKTEZR
18.62 8 LW 3E#91.11%) [ ] B (2 (1 £ 5
7T 7] 52,389,996 R R 01872 &
BR([FBERGD)) o LRXZR-_F—M
FZAZF+HZHKRRGREZATE
X IB % 964,657,000 7T (10 RAIA R B
773,334,00075T) °

R-FE—WENANA  KRFRGFEE
AR #22024,521,000T 2 R FHFEXS
BRIk REE T HARR - RDEE
RBMABBERETEBG A BEREAS
St A B BITHER R AR FHEZFRATE -

B

BREARRZ BT 8 MR 8117
Bt 2 FEIR RN A 5 R P RE B9 ©



38. SHARES HELD FOR RESTRICTED SHARE AWARD

SCHEME

The Group has set up a Restricted Share Award Scheme
(“Award Scheme”) in April 2014, which replaced the
Restricted Share Incentive Scheme adopted by the Company
on 9 August 2012. The Award Scheme aims at providing
incentives to employees and optimize the remuneration
structure of the Group, pursuant to which the Company may
purchase the scheme shares in the open market and the
purchased shares be held in the Share Award Scheme Trust
for the relevant selected employees until such shares vest or
issue and allot new scheme shares to the trustee. The board
of the Company has discretion to decide whether the
awarded shares are to be purchased or subscribed.

During the year, the Award Scheme acquired 5,873,000
(2013: 801,000) ordinary shares of the Company of HK$0.1
each in the open market at an aggregate consideration of
HK$110,362,000 (2013: HK$9,936,000), equivalent to
RMB88,598,000 (2013:RMB7,863,000). As at 31 December
2014, the carrying amount of shares held for the Award
Scheme was RMB96,461,000 (31 December 2013:
RMB7,863,000).

During the year, 4,110,000 awarded shares were granted
with a vesting period from 15 April 2015 to 15 April 2016, out
of which 2,250,000 awarded shares were granted to Mr.
Zhou Yun Jie, the chief executive officer and executive
director of the Company. The subscription price of each
share is HK$9.685. The fair value of the awarded shares
granted during the year was approximately RMB31,981,000

(RMB7.78 each), of which the Group recognised a Restricted
Share Award Scheme expense of RMB15,304,000 during the
year.

Annual Report 2014 &£ 3§

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

31 December 2014 — =&

38.

B FE IR AR Y AE ()
—mE+=RA=+—H

PRA&IMERR t RB ST BIFT IR 2 R 47

AREBNRN =T —NFP A RILZRHER D
REETE ([ 2R El)) BRARRN=-ZF
—ZFNANBERAZRBERD BB
2 - BRI EREBREHERMELR
SEZFHMRE - BUARR AR AFETES
BERTEIR - WAL BT EIEFETER
KEREEEETREFERAHACTBERND
BEEZEBRMNBBTIEARMZEARLT
RECEF BN - ARRBEFGAIRIBER
EBENRBREBRD -

FR- EERAERAAMBURERE
110,362,000 7T (= ZF— =4 : 9,936,000/
70) (FAEM AR 88,598,000t (= F—=
F: ARM7,863,0007T)) 85,873,000 %
—ZT—=4 :801,000/%) FREEO1ET
ZARBERER - RZE—NUF+ A
=+—0B  ZEFEBEIROEEBEAA
R #96461000( =T — =%+ — A
=+—H: AR¥7,863,0007T) °

FR RZZE—RAFNA+THEAE-ZT—X
FUA+HABBEREE 4,110,000 f% 88
A% 15 - E 2,250,000 B 22BN I 15 35 F AN

NATHBH RPN TESAERN L - RE
BEAENR.685E T - FALC KM EER MK
2 NEX A AR 31,981,000 7T (BRI &8
ARM¥ET7.787T) - HPAEEF A ERR G
MR 1 22 EDET B S AR 15,304,000 7T ©
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38. SHARES HELD FOR RESTRICTED SHARE AWARD 38. MREIMERDEBIEMSEZREG (A
SCHEME (continued)

The fair value of the awarded shares was estimated using the IR B2 SRER G A EFER ZERE
binomial pricing model as at the date of grant, taking into BEEREAGE  WERRTDEERG 214
account of the terms and conditions upon which the awarded NG -

shares were granted.

The following table lists the inputs to the model used: TRINEMARENX 28 AR :
2014
—E—MF
Dividend yield (%) AR B 5 (%) 0.41
Historical volatility (%) [ S0 R 18 (%) 39.24-42.29
Risk-free interest rate (%) 42 [ B T 2R (%) 0.748
Contractual life (year) AHFE(F) 1-2
Closing price of a share on the date of grant BHrEE Bz WmE
(HK$ per share) (&) 19.28
The expected volatility is determined based on the historical FEHORE D ERARNRAGIREB 2 FE L R IEE
volatility of the share price of the Company. The expected F oo TEH IR R M (B TR R BN IE X
volatility reflects the assumption that the historical volatility is KRR EBE  BIRRMEETERIE AR o

indicative of future trends, which may also not necessarily be
the actual outcome.



39.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to the eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the operations
of the Group. Eligible participants of the share option scheme
include any employee, executive or officer of the Group
(including executive, non-executive and independent non-
executive directors of the Company) and any supplier,
consultant, agent, adviser, shareholder, customer, partner or
business associate who, in the opinion of the board of
directors of the Company (the “Board”), have contributed to
the Group. The Company’s current Share Option Scheme
became effective on 8 June 2011 and, unless otherwise
cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10 years from
that date.

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the Share Option Scheme is such
number of shares, when aggregated with shares subject to
any other share option scheme(s) of the Company, must not
exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the Company as
at the date of adoption of the Share Option Scheme. The
maximum number of shares issuable upon exercise of the
options granted under the Share Option Scheme and any
other share option scheme(s) of the Company (including
exercised, cancelled and outstanding options) to each
eligible participant in any 12-month period is limited to 1% of
the shares of the Company in issue as at the date of grant.
Any further grant of share options in excess of this 1% limit
shall be subject to the issue of a circular by the Company
(and if required, the holding company) and the shareholders’

approval of the Company (and if required, the approval of the

shareholders of the holding company) in a general meeting.
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39.

B FE IR AR Y AE ()
—mE+=RA=+—H

BB RERTE

ARRRA—IRELAER S HENRAE
KR AERBEE/AREER 2 KINE
HER - BREABIZAER2EEREAN
SEZEMREE  TRABRKEEAR(E
BARB 2T FEMITRBIUIFATE
F) UERARAEFR(ESFS)ARB
RERBBHAEEHMARZ T HER -
B RER EAABR - BPBH
REBMEA - ARE 2R AREBRET SR

—E——FXANHBER - Mk BT
SASETIN - B HRZ B RFT10FAER -

RIBBEE S A e L 2 BT M2
heviE2q= JJIU:$’\*7EHE+@E%H§%§+§‘J%
BRZBENEE e EBBRERET
gRmEAR $’&ETE§§?HHx$ 10% ° IEfA]
TZEARER - FiREERET S AR
AT E M B R ET 8IR H 2 AR (B4
EATE - FEH R RTT 2 BE R ) AT (%
MAARZAER2EERTZHRSRMOE
B UEHEAARREHITHRMI%A/R -
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39.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Share options granted to a director, chief executive officer or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of their
respective associates, are subject to the approval in advance
by the independent non-executive directors of the Company
(and if required, the independent non-executive directors of
the holding company), excluding the independent non-
executive director(s) of the Company and the holding
company who is/are the grantee(s) of the options. In addition,
any share option granted to a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive director of the Company, or to
any of their respective associates, in excess of 0.1% of the
shares of the Company in issue as at the date of grant or with
an aggregate value (based on the closing price of the shares
of the Company as at the date of grant) in excess of
RMB5,000,000, within any 12-month period, is subject to the
issue of a circular by the Company (and if required, the
holding company) and the shareholders’ approval of the
Company (and if required, the approval of the shareholders
of the holding company) in advance in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within
28 days from the date of the offer, upon payment of a nominal
consideration of RMB1 or HK$1 in total by the grantee. The
exercise period of the share options granted is determinable
by the board of directors, and commences on a specified
date and ends on a date which is not later than 10 years from
the date of grant of the share options or the expiry date of the
Share Option Scheme, whichever is earlier.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the
board of directors, but may not be less than the highest of (i)
the closing price of the shares of the Company as stated in the
daily quotation sheet of the Stock Exchange on the date of
grant, which must be a trading day; (ii) the average to the
closing prices of the shares of the Company as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five trading
days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the
nominal value of the shares of the Company.

39.

B8 (E)

AARBZESR  (THREHRTERRKRK
FEAZEMBEARLBRE  FELA
ESARRZEI N TEFT(R(WERE)
BERARZBIIFATER) HAE(FRBK
BARANZARR RIER ARE L IFNITE
ZRRHN) © BN - IARMER + =18 A B[R
ARAZ EBEBRRIBIIFATES RS
FEEEABRARD ZBRERY &2 K
o BBERHEAARFZETRNO01%
S E(REBERBERARFRD 2 WTHE
FTH)HiBARES5,000,0007T - AIRAE (K
(MBERE)EBRAR)ATIRBEEELR
BRRAGHELARRBER (R (MAEFE) &
B Az BR) HEfE ©

BB 2R N EE B 28R
NEARAINRBARESRARE 1T
HUBTRERN - ERBBREZITE®
EEXgET BETZEHNFABERIBR
B RSN B +F 2 BB R 81

mH (AR ERE) BRI -
BREZTEEREFTSET  BMFER

TN=Fz&e%E  ()ARFABRMARRHLE
B (WARRSB)HEMRZ SR RERMAI
ZWTHHE (i) AARB MR BEERELE B A
hAR 5 A EBRMERRERMIIZFH
Wi : K (iil) A ARG 2 E1E -
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39. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 39. ERETE(E)
Share options do not confer rights on the holders to FE AR N AR A T B AU AR B sk AR R K
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings. g LIREER -
The following share options were outstanding under the AT BF AR EITE T M AR T < BB
Share Option Scheme during the year: 1
2014 2013
—E2-NF —E-=%F
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise price Number exercise price Number
per share of options per share of options
R it B
TEESR BREHE TRESR BEEHE
HK$ HK$
BT BT
At 1 January n—A—H 5.07 21,323,000 3.87 74,479,800
Granted during the year FANFRH 19.37 25,350,000 12.16 950,000
Cancelled/lapsed during the year FERECY R0 7.38 (28,500) 5.66 (3,651,600)
Exercised during the year FRITE 4.73  (20,344,500) 3.39  (50,455,200)
At 31 December R+-—A=+—H 19.11 26,300,000 5.07 21,323,000
The weighted average share price at the dates of exercise RNERNTTE 2 BRERNITE S B 2 EFS
for share options exercised during the year was HK$21.84 BEAER2184FBT(ZE—=F 1502
per share (2013: HK$15.02). BT °
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39. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share

39. fERMESEI(E)
RERR - WARTTEBRAE ZTERERT

options outstanding as at the end of the reporting period are FHAOT -
as follows:
2014 2013
“E-mE —E-=fF
Number Exercise Number Exercise
of options price* Exercise period of options price” Exercise period
BREHE TRE" T B A rd TR
HKS$ per share HKS$ per share
BRET BRAT
- 1.70 18/09/2010-17/09/2014 7,919,000 1.70 18/09/2010-17/09/2014
—2-BFAATNAE —Z-FENATNRE
“E2-MEAATER “E-MEAATEH
- 4.82 18/05/2011-17/05/2014 4,258,000 4.82 18/05/2011-17/05/2014
—EZ——-f¥H5B+N\HE “E——FRATN\HE
“Z-WERATLA —Z-MmERATER
- 7.58 16/12/2012-15/12/2014 7,836,000 7.58 16/12/2012-15/12/2014
ZE-ZEtZAtRHEE “Z-Z#+tZATREZE
“E-mFE+=A+AH —E-MF+-A+hH
- 8.67 16/06/2012-15/12/2014 360,000 8.67 16/06/2012-15/12/2014
ZE-ZEXNATABZE —E-—F At/ HE
“2-mFE+=A+EH “E-ME+=A+HA
950,000 12.16 26/06/2014-25/06/2017 950,000 12.16 26/06/2014-25/06/2017
“E-MEXAZTAEE ZE-MEAAZ+AAE
“E—tFEXAZTEA “E—+FRAZTHHA
25,350,000 19.37 15/04/2015-14/04/2017 -
“Z-EEMATEAE
“Z-tFMA+TMA
26,300,000 21,323,000

*

adjustment in the case of rights or bonus issues, or other

The exercise price of the share options is subject to

similar changes in the Company’s share capital.

*

B RAB 2 77 (B T D B 3R 3 B AT IR
575 23 FIRA B A AR B S -



39.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The fair value of the share options granted during the year
was approximately RMB110,198,000 (RMB4.35 each), of
which the Group recognised a share option expense of
RMB47,724,000 during the year ended 31 December 2014.

During the year, the Group also recognised a share option
expense of RMB1,532,000 (2013: RMB1,076,000) in respect
of share options granted during the year ended 31 December
2013.

The fair value of equity-settled share options granted during
the year was estimated as at the date of grant, taking into
account the terms and conditions upon which the options

were granted.

The following table lists the inputs to the model used:
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39.

B FE IR AR Y AE ()
—mE+=RA=+—H

B8 (&)
FR FIREHBEREZATFENRARE
110,198,000 (B EEAARYE4.357T)
HPAEENEBE-_T—NF+-A=1+—
HEFEBRZEEREAIARK
47,724,000 7T °

FRN AEERBEE_ZT—=F1+=A
=T —BUEFERBEZERERRERER
X ARMA1532000 (ZE—=5F: AR
1,076,000 T) °

FARL AR EE 7 BRE A FERE D
BEAfART - 0B IR KRR 2 IR B 16 f

TRILAAEA 2@ AE

2014 2013
—2-F ==

Dividend yield (%) &% BE (%) 0.41 0.67

Historical volatility (%) WEE;‘)HE(%) 45.51 54.61

Risk-free interest rate (%) BN K (%) 0.748 0.979

Contractual life of options (year) Eﬁﬂxﬁé SHFH(F) 3 4
Closing price of a share on O RRE B Z R E

the date of grant (HK$ per share) (FBETT) 19.28 11.88

The expected volatility is determined based on the historical
volatility of the share price of the Company. The expected
volatility reflects the assumption that the historical volatility is
indicative of future trends, which may also not necessarily be

the actual outcome.

SEE YA EDEE-9i VNN S il s =
JE o TEHR IR R R (4 B T REB R IR R
BRORKBE - BIRARLERERIBRAERN
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The 20,344,500 share options exercised during the year
resulted in the issue of 20,344,500 ordinary shares of the
Company and new share capital of HK$2,034,000 (equivalent
to RMB1,610,000) and share premium of HK$94,259,000
(equivalent to RMB74,588,000), as further detailed in note 37
to the financial statements.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had
26,300,000 share options outstanding under the Share
Option Scheme. The exercise in full of the outstanding share
options would, under the present capital structure of the
Company, result in the issue of 26,300,000 additional
ordinary shares of the Company and additional share capital
of HK$2,630,000 (equivalent to RMB2,106,000) and share
premium of HK$499,952,000 (equivalent to RMB400,249,000)

(before issue expenses).

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a total of
6,610,700 shares were issued to non-controlling shareholders
of certain subsidiaries which achieved the prescribed
financial and operational performance targets.

At the date of approval of these financial statements, the
Company had 26,300,000 share options outstanding under
the Share Option Scheme, which represented approximately
0.98% of the Company’s shares in issue as at that date.

31 December 2014 ZE—F+=A=+—H

39. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 39. ERAEE (&)
No other feature of the options granted was incorporated into I E A D B AR 2 MR AR TEE 2 A
the measurement of fair value. =

RERTT 2 20,344,500 {7 B8 A 8 B35 1T
7N X A)20,344,500 0% & B B & O AR A
2,034,000 % 7T (FHE X AR 1,160,000 7T)
K B8 17 34 8 94,259,000 78 7T (FEE N AR
74,588,0007T) © FFIEE N MBS FKMITIT o

RBEEHR "ARABERESTET
26,300,000 17 i# AR A TE B AR AE  ARIEA QA
MBRRAZERE - BEITE M ARITHE 2 AR
15 3B B EE SN EE 1T 26,300,000 AR A 7 E A%
Ko 18N A AN 2,630,000 T (IHER AR
2,106,000 7T ) & % 15 i & 499,952,000 7% T
(FHER AR 400,249,000 7T) (FIkR 3T E
FARI) °

RS EIR % - & 3£6,610,700 R I 15 317
TETHERRMIFERIIR - WEETE
TEWHREERRBR -

Rt FMBHRERAE B R - AR R BRE
#t#17T 26,300,000 17 i AT EFEAE - HHE
RARBIRZHAE BTN Z40.98% °



40. RESERVES

(a)

Group

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the
movements therein for the current and prior years are
presented in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity on pages 127 to 128 of the annual report.

The Group’s capital reduction reserve arose from the
reduction in the nominal value of each of the issued
shares of the Company from HK$0.10 to HK$0.01 by
the cancellation of paid-up capital of HK$0.09 on each
of the issued shares of the Company effective from 8
March 2007.

The Group’s capital reserve originally represented the
difference between the credit arising from the capital
reduction of HK$1,657,866,000 (equivalent to
RMB1,758,526,000) and the amount transferred to
eliminate the accumulated losses of the Group of
HK$1,196,370,000 (equivalent to RMB1,186,521,000).

The capital redemption reserve arose from the share

repurchases in the previous year.

The share-based payment reserve arose from the
Group’s management services agreements with certain
Haier franchise store owners, as further detailed in note
19 to the financial statements.

The share option reserve comprise the fair value of
share options granted which are yet to be exercised, as
further explained in the accounting policy for share-
based payments in note 2.4 to the financial statements.
The amount will either be transferred to the share
premium account when the related options are
exercised, or transferred to retained profits should the

related options expire or be forfeited.

Annual Report 2014 &£ 3§

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
B RS R MR ()
31 December 2014 —ZE—MNF+_-A=+—H

40. f##E

(a) ZA&£E

AERFBEFREASEZ HEHE
REZEFE  HRFRFEI27TER
128 A 2 iR S K -

REEZBRAERFEEEEAR=Z
T+tF-ANBRBEBFIHEANTE
AR B BT 2 B #UR AR A0.09% T
AR B EIRE B1TAR(D < E{EH0.10
ETTHIRZE0.01 87T o

REBEBZBERNEHRBERBBRAEE
2 # 8R 1,657,866,000/% 7T (#H & 7 A
R #51,758,526,000 7T ) £ 8% £ A ¥ 4
REBER5TETE1,196,370,00078 7T (48
BN AR1,186,521,00070) 2 =54 °

BABERFHEHNANFEROED
B

AN TS MR M FT 198 — HFFil - LA
BREIXNZHEHEEEEASEESET
BERINERIE A AR E IR RS W

N
2y
AR °

BRERBRRBRCROERTEZE
Ptz NE - FRMBERERME2.4
BRAAR D RERE 2 N2 5K
EHEEBEETE xS
ERMEER  HERBRERmNL
BORUL - RIBSBHE R GR A o
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40. RESERVES (continued)

(a)

Group (continued)

The awarded shares reserve comprise the fair value of
the shares granted under the Restricted Share Award
Scheme, which are yet to be exercised as further
explained in the accounting policy for employee
benefits — Shares held for Restricted Share Award
Scheme in note 2.4 to the financial statements.

The put option reserve arose from the Company’s
incentive agreements with non-controlling shareholders
of certain subsidiaries, as further detailed in note 31 to

the financial statements.

The warrant reserve related to the convertible bonds
issued in 2011, as further detailed in note 33 to the

financial statements.

Other reserves mainly represented reserves arising
from acquisitions under common control and disposals

of subsidiaries without loss of control.

Pursuant to the relevant PRC laws and regulations,
certain of the Group’s subsidiaries registered in the
PRC are required to transfer a portion of their profits to
reserve funds. These funds are non-distributable in the
form of cash dividends. When determining the
appropriations to these funds, the net profits of these
subsidiaries are determined in accordance with the
applicable financial rules and regulations of the PRC.

40. fEE(E)

(a)

REE(E)

B R B AR AR IR IR Bl 1 A {n 22
BY AT B B W RTTE R IR B A F
B E—TFHBERUBHRERME24R
ZEERAN — BRI BT 85
B 2 @ BERT M -

AN TSR ML 31 — Rt - R
HHIEREREL B AR R LB AR
ZAE TR ARET S 2 SR sk

RREERERER T ——FT2
AMREAEER  E—FH BN
IR MIFESS -

HpEEI2EAREH T ZRES
T8 N B A ) (M AR R ARSI )
FRESEZ @

RIFEEHBDEGI OER - AREE
TRABEEMzHERRABEE D
BMHEBRERERES ZFEESTA
RBEEWRB 2R DK « & E [[%
FEGZHOER  ERBERZTE
MBRANIFERBEZSTHBRAZ
AEF -
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40. RESERVES (continued) 40. fEB(E)
(b) Company (b) AT
Share-
Share Capital based Share  Awarded Exchange
premium  Contributed redemption  payment option shares Accumulated fluctuation ~ Warrant Total
account  surplus  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve losses  reserve  reserve  reserve
BREE  MRERA ZARH AERD  RRER

RitaEE  HARHK B 2BE BREGR i BHER e e )
Noles  RMBOOO ~ RMBOOO  RMBOOD  RMBOOO  RMBOOD  RWBOOO  RMBOOD  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOD
M ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARMTR ARETRL ARETR ARETR ARETR

At 1January 2013 R=%-Z%-5-8 1,973,786 489516 184 3893 81,357 (150,933)  (393,966) 59,700 2063537
Total comprehensive loss for the year  £R2EEELE - - - - - - (8773 (71456) - (159193
Issue of shares BB 7 25073 - Soemo) (@02 - - . -
Management senvices Arangements  ERREZH - - - 348717 - - - - - 34877
Equity-settled share option IRALE 7 BRER S

arrangements 39 - - - - 12,955 - - - - 12,955
Transfer of share option reserve upon  REBRER RS Eist4

forfeiture or expiry of share options £ R EREEE - - - - (4,008) - 4,008 - - -
Under-provision of final 2012 dividend  —E——ERERSBETR - (3.281) - - - - - - - (3.281)
Proposed final 2013 dividend BE-E-ZFRERE 12 - (00824) - - - - - - - (200824)
At31 December 2013 and RZE-ZF+ZA=1-H

1 January 2014 R=F-mE-F-A 2204521 285,411 184 20,000 30,097 - (234662) (465422 59,700 1919829
Total comprehensive loss for the year  FRZEKEIEE - - - - - - (161,3%) 57,550 - (103845)
Issue of shares EARH 7 137 B S8 (704) - . S0 120208
Management senvices arrangements ~ EBREZH - - - 8228 - - - - - 8228
Equity-setlled share option WRAEE  BIRER

arrangements 39 - - - - 49,256 - - - - 49,256
Graning restricted shares under ~ BERBIER 2832l

Restricted Share Award Scheme REBHLRS 3 - - - - - 15,304 - - - 15,304
Share premium transfer to i sEERzH) 25

contributed surplus (2204521) 2,224,521 - - - - - - - -
Under-provision of final 2013 dividend  ~E—=XEREBEETR - (12472) - - - - - - - (12472)
Proposed final 2014 dividend HE-3-RAERS 12 - (87191) - - - - - - - (287191)
At 31 December 2014 RZE-BET=A=1-A 1317021 2,260,269 184 - 52312 15304 (396,057)  (407.872) - 2841161
The Company’s contributed surplus represents the RATE 2 EANEER BTS2 A
excess of the fair value of the shares of the subsidiaries & A FEBE AR R ABREYET
acquired, over the nominal value of the Company’s BEEITRNMEABCEZR BREBRE
shares issued in exchange therefor. Under the —NN—FREVEEIEERT)  BAR
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the HRATETERE - NN—FRFE
contributed surplus is distributable to shareholders (8&8E]) R ARG 2 A RIARIKIER
subject to the Companies Act 1981 of .Bermuda (as TR TR °

amended) and Bye-Laws of the Company.
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41.

BUSINESS COMBINATION

On 24 January 2014, the Group, through the then wholly-
owned subsidiary, Qingdao Logistics, acquired 60% equity
interest in Shanghai Boyol New Brothers Supply Chain
Management Company Limited (“Shanghai Beiye Supply
Chain”) and through its wholly-owned subsidiary, Impressive
Holding Limited, acquired 100% equity interest in Boyol
Logistics Offshore Limited (“BVI Boyol”). Shanghai Beiye
Supply Chain is engaged in the provision of logistics services
and BVI Boyol is a dormant company with the only asset
being the “Boyol” trademark. The acquisition was made as
part of the Group'’s strategy to expand its logistics service

business.

The consideration for the acquisition comprised (i) a cash
consideration of RMB45,000,000 for the trademark paid
during the year; (ii) a cash consideration of RMB41,400,000
for the acquisition of Shanghai Beiye Supply Chain paid in
2013; and (iii) a contingent consideration payable in 2015
and 2016 which is computed with reference to the amount of
the consolidated net profit and the earnings before interest,
tax, depreciation and amortisation (the “EBITDA”) of
Shanghai Beiye Supply Chain during the 24-month period

subsequent to the completion of the acquisition.

The Group has elected to measure the non-controlling
interest in Shanghai Beiye Supply Chain at the non-
controlling interest’s proportionate share of Shanghai Beiye
Supply Chain’s identifiable net assets.

41.

3SR

RZZE—NF—A=+WA  AEBFERE
Ke2BAWBARESYRIE D8 B %5
NEBHEEEEBER AT LFE EHEE
HWl) ce0%Em RERATEWERF
Impressive Holding Limited 4 B Boyol Logistics
Offshore Limited ([BVI Boyol]) 2 100% & 25 °
FERERHEENEREYRRE RBVI
Boyol — I TERAR EM—EFER
[Boyol| B1% - R RWERAEERREY
MR R BERI R 2 — o

ERREZRERE()FRENERZES
KB AR 45000,0007C : (iIVRZF—=
FRUE DBREHERE N CREREA
R 41,400,0007¢ : R(ilVARZE—AF R
ZE-REAINHIARE  ZRETIE
2% g A EHERENRETKRE = THE
AEEMANGEFFHERRER  TERE
BT A A ([EBITDAl) v & 585t E -

AEE DR EBRIFER R DA LR EMR
fEgE 2 MR EEFEZ LY ER LBR
K REGE IR RS
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41. BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued) 4. EBEH(E)
The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of both RUEE B H - E)F B 4t EdE & BVI Boyol
Shanghai Beiye Supply Chain and BVI Boyol as at the ZABREERAB L ATENT :

acquisition date were as follows:

Fair value
recognised
on acquisition
A LT B B B 2R
ZAFHE
RMB’000
ARBTF T
Property, plant and equipment Yz - B A 36,360
Prepaid land lease payments EN T ER 9,200
Intangible assets — trademark EREE — iz 45,000
Intangible assets — customer relationships EBEREE — BP@E% 12,800
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables — TEfTAIE - 1% 4 F o 4th fE W BR ¢ 16,772
Cash and bank balances e RRTTHEH 33,136
Trade payables FERTBR SR (7,060)
Tax payable FERTHHIE (2,659)
Other payables and accruals Hi AR ET A& (4,101)
Interest-bearing borrowings FTEEE (20,000)
Deferred tax liabilities EERRIBEE (7,793)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value AR FEEN AL 111,655
Non-controlling interests FEIE AR M (26,662)
84,993
Goodwill on acquisition W BE 2 68,407
153,400

Satisfied by: AT TE B 1(E
Cash RE 86,400
Contingent considerations-current FARE — BIHEA 36,000
Contingent considerations-non-current S ARAE — FERNES 31,000
153,400




Haier Electronics Group Co., Ltd.

SHEEBEMERA A

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
B RS R MR ()
31 December 2014 —ZE—MNF&+_-A=+—H

41.

BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued)

The fair values and gross contractual amounts of other
receivables as at the date of acquisition amounted to
RMB4,392,000, which are expected to be collectible.

The Group incurred transaction costs of RMB1,550,000 for
this acquisition. These transaction costs have been expensed
and are included in administrative expenses in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

The contingent consideration recognised was
RMB67,000,000, which was determined using the Monte
Carlo Simulation model and is under Level 3 fair value
measurement. The consideration is due for final
measurement and payment to the former owners in years
2015 and 2016. At the date of approval of these financial
statements, no further significant change to the consideration

amount is expected.

Significant unobservable valuation inputs for the fair value
measurement of contingent consideration are as follows:

Projected consolidated net profit of
Shanghai Beiye Supply Chain

41.

EBEH(E)

H U ERNKWE RS2 A FEREHE
A AR 4,392,0007T - TEARAT 4 (B Lt

AREEARMNREBEMEENT ZRABAR
#1,5650,0007C ° ZERX HKAE LWL R
RABERNTAITTHER °

BEERIANRE R AR 67,000,0007T * I
DERASH REEREAETEREAE=
BATETE - BEREES N _Z—1
FRIZ—ANFETREFERIN TRIR
B NZETHRFRENEER - BRARE
CHEBHE TSR AT ME—SEAEH -

ERSAREZ A HEFEZERELER
EERARENT

RMB16,150,000 to RMB20,006,000

B EHEERE L BRGREFFE AR ¥ 16,150,000 702 A R ¥ 20,006,000 7T

Median volatility of comparable companies 38.84%
AL AT 2 PR E = 38.84%
Risk-free rate 3%
B R 3%

278
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41. BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued) M., EXREO(E)

A significant increase (decrease) in the consolidated net BB EHpESE 2 RAFFE IR KRS
profit of Shanghai Beiye Supply Chain would result in a OB D) BEBARE 2 AT EBRAEE
significant increase (decrease) in the fair value of the MORA) o AT AR 2 FHEB R HIR R
contingent consideration. A significant increase (decrease) TRIE I ORl ) BB A RE 2 A FERE
in the median volatility of comparable companies would AIBIEANCRA) o MEEBS R IR A M85 A0 Ok
result in a significant increase (decrease) in the fair value of D) B HARE 2 A FE IR AR
the contingent consideration. A significant increase (3gm) -

(decrease) in the risk-free rate would result in a significant
decrease (increase) in the fair value of the contingent
consideration.

An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the acquisition of HWEEBEEZESRESWOT ¢
the business is as follows:

RMB’000
ARBTF T
Cash consideration paid during the year FREMBEENRE (45,000)
Cash and bank balances acquired BUHEIR ¢ RIRITA RS 33,136
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents FIARBE RS ZREREZRAER
included in cash flows from investing activities ReEFEBEH FRL (11,864)
Transaction costs of the acquisition included FIAREESZ2REREZWEZ XA
in cash flows from operating activities (1,550)
(13,414)
Since the acquisition, Shanghai Beiye Supply Chain BUREELATR - )8 B X MHEENAHRE AR
contributed RMB529,787,000 to the Group’s turnover and EEERAREES29,787,000 T2 EEEE R
RMB 16,167,000 to the consolidated profit for the period. AR# 16,167,000 T 2 47 & m Kl ©
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280

42. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES AND A BRANCH 42, HEKBARAR—ZXZ2AT
2014 2013
—F-mFE T =F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BTR AREEF T
Net assets disposed of: BHEEEFE
Cash and bank balances Re MIRITHE 7,329 -

Prepayments, deposits and other

BNFA - 7E A RUERR

receivables 6,367 -
Trade and bills receivables JEW R R R 8,716 -
Inventories 7E 6,441 _
Property, plant and equipment M - WEREE 1,018 -
Trade payables FEITBRIR (2,434) -
Tax payable JERTRIE (218) -
Other payables and accruals EmEERERRERAE (2,504) -
Non-controlling interests VAR i (6,853) -
17,862 -
Gains on disposal of subsidiaries and HEMBEARR—KDRRIMEHKE
a branch 4,506 -
22,368 -
Satisfied by: AT5IEB)EE :
Cash RE 8,775
Other receivables E YRR 13,593
22,368
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42. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES AND A BRANCH 42, HEHBATAR—RASLTE(E)
(continued)
An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in HHEMBARR—RARAIBBAIEER
respect of the disposal of subsidiaries and a branch is as REFBEBEERAFELSTOT
follows:
RMB’000
AREEFT
Cash consideration received BEYCRERE 8,775
Cash and bank balances disposed of EHERS RIRITHEHS (7,329)
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect HPENBAA R —RORBBEBZ
of the disposal of subsidiaries and a branch ReERFSEEEERAFHE 1,446
43. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 43. HAREE
At the end of the reporting period, neither the Group nor the RIEER - AEBI AR GEIBEFAMEKR
Company had any significant contingent liabilities. SABE -
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44. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

(a)

As lessor

The Group leases its investment properties (note 16 to
the financial statements) to Haier Affiliates under
operating lease arrangements, with leases negotiated
for terms ranging from one to five years.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had total
future minimum lease receivables under non-
cancellable operating leases with its tenants falling due

44, REROZH
(a) EAEHBEA
AEBRBEEHNLTHBEKREY
¥ (B mEMT16) B T /8RB
DAl BEZHBANT —F=2RF -

R|BEBR > AEERER T HE
A2 TREBUR Z R EMMBETHP
BAREERZEESERENT

as follows:
Group
AEE
2014 2013
—ZT-{mF —F—=
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREETIT
Within one year —FR 1,008 2,016
In the second to fifth years, inclusive FE_EZRF(BREEEMSF) - 1,008
1,008 3,024
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44. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS (continued) 44, REMHPRY(E)

(b) As lessee (b) 1EHBAEBEA

The Group leases certain properties under operating AEBERBGEENLZHERETY
lease arrangements. Leases for the properties are ¥ -MHAMECHBREEANT —F
negotiated for terms ranging from one to ten years. EtF e
At the end of the reporting period, the Group and the RMEHAR  XREEEARRRER
Company had total future minimum lease payments THEAR B B 2 T Re EUS 2 48 & 1 4
under non-cancellable operating leases falling due as BERRENHEESEENOT :
follows:

Group Company

rEE b N

2014 2013 2014 2013

—E-ME -—T-=-F CZB-NE "—ZT—=fF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARETRT AREBETT ARETR ARETT

Within one year —ER 156,447 151,128 1,545 1,882

In the second to fifth years, F_ZREFE
inclusive (BEEEMF) 209,067 103,196 2,960 -
After five years HFE 20,790 36,619 - -
386,304 290,943 4,505 1,882
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45. COMMITMENTS 45, EIE
In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed in B b SO 5 44(b) BT & il A4S & R 49 &SI -
note 44(b) above, the Group had the following commitments IR E RS BIR A AT AME -
at the end of the reporting period:
Group
2014 2013
—F-nmE T =F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AREFT
Authorised, but not contracted for: BB RETL
Land and buildings T RIEF 486,906 20,766
Contracted, but not provided for: DETHMB R B
Property, plant and equipment L E S 340,935 258,342
Available-for-sale investment AHEERE 1,218,000 -
1,558,935 258,342
2,045,841 279,108

At the end of the reporting period, the Company did not have

any significant commitments.

AN B A A ] A

o
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46. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 46. SRWIASE

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial

instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as

RBERR  SEeRTAZREENT

follows:
Group RE
Financial assets BB EE

31 December 2014

—F-mFE+=A=t—-H

Available-

for-sale

Loans and financial
receivables assets Total

BERR A E
FEWBR K MBEE B
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T ARETR AR¥F T
Available-for-sale investments A ERE - 2,925 2,925
Trade and bills receivables FEUEE R R R’ 6,848,385 - 6,848,385
Other receivables (note 24) HoAth U BR TR (15t 24) 525,619 - 525,619
Pledged deposits EERER 105,096 - 105,096
Deposits for bank financial products #8718 B & A TE X 242,400 - 242,400
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBREEMEER 10,929,888 - 10,929,888
18,651,388 2,925 18,654,313
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46. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 46. ERMITEDE(E)
(continued)
Group (continued) rE®(E
Financial assets (continued) BBEE (&)
31 December 2013 —E—=F+=ZHA=+—H
Available-
for-sale
Loans and financial
receivables assets Total
Bk AEHE
JE W BR K IS EE B
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTF T ARBF T ARBFT
Available-for-sale investments AHEERE - 2,925 2,925
Trade and bills receivables FEW AR R =R 7,558,920 - 7,558,920
Other receivables (note 24) H bR (M7 24) 440,450 - 440,450
Pledged deposits EERER 220,350 - 220,350
Cash and cash equivalents B4 MHEEEEHER 6,824,322 - 6,824,322
15,044,042 2,925 15,046,967
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46. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 46. SWMIEBEDE(E)
(continued)
Group (continued) REE(E
Financial liabilities BBaE
2014 2013
—E-NF —F—=
Financial Financial
liabilities at liabilities at
amortised amortised
cost cost
big: 5 bieg: i ¥is

BR A5 B BENTES
ZHMBRE ZHMBARE
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TRT ARBTIT

Trade and bills payables EREFREEE 3,109,438 3,202,301
Other payables (note 28) E b S BRFR (M2t 28) 6,882,004 6,147,009
Interest-bearing borrowings FFEEE - 159,633
Due to a fellow subsidiary A —XRARMBARIE - 15,000
Due to a non-controlling shareholder FERT —RIEFEARAR R K1 24,916 24,301
Convertible bonds Al ES 776,319 716,835
CEB AT HARR Ko AT E A 5 25 1,024,382 -
Other non-current liabilities Hi3EmBaE 31,000 -

11,848,059 10,265,079

The Group’s put option liabilities are carried at fair value and NEF ZAHEEBENIEATEYEE - m
the changes in fair value are recognised through the put NEEEHAFE B L EEER - A%
option reserve. The Group’s share-based payment liabilities B AR AER T NEaBERRELN
are determined with reference to the fair value and the TEMET - EARES RARIESE D

corresponding costs are recognised in the statement of profit

or loss.
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46. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 46. ERMIADE(E)
(continued)
Company N
Financial assets BIEEE

Loans and receivables

B R W R

2014 2013
—E-NE —F—=
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥TRT ARKTE

Due from subsidiaries (note 20) PRI B~ R FRIB (A aE 20) 510,009 430,076
Other receivables (note 24) E b e BR R (M7 24) 46,122 23,424
Cash and cash equivalents RENIREEEIER 1,766,102 939,028

2,322,233 1,392,528
Financial liabilities B%EE

Financial liabilities
at amortised cost

R AT RR 2 S B
2014 2013
—F-mFE T =F
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTRT AREBTET

Other payables (note 28) E At e BR IR (AL 28) 148,865 131,825
Due to subsidiaries (note 20) FETIY B A B RRIE (AfaF 20) 61,664 68,456
Convertible bonds AR E S 776,319 716,835
CEB AIHANR N ARG 5 1,024,382 -

2,011,230 917,116
The Company’s derivative financial instrument is carried at RARMMTESRTEZAFENE  mA
fair value and the change in fair value is recognised in the FEEBEFANIEFERET o

statement of profit or loss.
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47. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 47. SRTEAZAFERAFESER
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s and the AEBRARFze@M T AZ EEEBELRATF
Company’s financial instruments, other than those with BEHEAEEQAFEAREERINDT

carrying amounts that reasonably approximate to fair values,

are as follows:

Group TEH
Carrying amounts Fair values
fREE NVE
2014 2013 2014 2013

—E-mE —T-=F ZE-NFE —T—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT ARETT ARETR ARETR

Financial liabilities BEaE
Convertible bonds (note 33) ARk ES (Ha233) 776,319 716,835 780,601 715,302
CEB (note 34) AR & P8R E S
(Ktat34) 1,024,382 - 1,026,030 -

Put option liabilities (note 31) RoLHEAE (HF31) 247,230 328,000 247,230 328,000
Share-based payment liabilities — MAR ) AER 2 NHEE

(note 32) (Hz£32) 41,143 14,429 41,143 14,429
Other non-current liabilities Ht3EmeaE 31,000 - 29,851 -

2,120,074 1,059,264 2,124,855 1,057,731
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47. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 47. EMIAZAVPERDIFESEHRGE)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Company b NN
Carrying amounts Fair values
fREE AVE
2014 2013 2014 2013

—g-mE  —T-=f =%-mE  —F=F
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARETR ARETR ARETR

Financial assets BKEE
Due from subsidiaries (note 20) RSt /& 2* B 5/ (Hat 20) 510,009 430,076 482,605 406,967
Financial liabilities g 3=RE
Due to subsidiaries (note 20) FE 1< Bt B8 A B0 IR (A7 20) 61,664 68,456 58,351 64,778
Convertible bonds (note 33) AR B 25 (H1at 33) 776,319 716,835 780,601 715,302
CEB (note 34) AR K ] 82 E 5
(ff7t34) 1,024,382 - 1,026,030 -
Derivative financial instrument PTHESRTA(iE34)
(note 34) 24,246 - 24,246 -
1,886,611 785,291 1,889,228 780,080
Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and BEECENG  ReEkBSFEIER - R17
cash equivalents, deposits for bank financial products, TRITEZFR  BEHRER - BURERFR KL
pledged deposits, trade and bills receivables, other 8B EMERER  BNERIEEBRRH
receivables, trade and bills payables and other payables HEMNERZ A FEEZSE LA ZREEE
approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to the a FEREA/ZETIANEEHANIIE -

short term maturities of these instruments.
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47.

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The Group’s management is responsible for determining the
policies and procedures for the fair value measurement of
financial instruments. At each reporting date, the
management analyses the movements in the values of
financial instruments and determines the major inputs applied
in the valuation. The valuation process and results are
discussed with the audit committee twice a year for interim
and annual financial reporting.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are
included at the amount at which the instrument could be
exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties,
other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The following
methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair
values:

The fair values of other non-current liabilities and the amounts
due from and to subsidiaries have been calculated by
discounting the expected future cash flows using rates
currently available for instruments on similar terms, credit risk
and remaining maturities.

The fair values of the liability portions of the convertible
bonds and CEB are estimated by discounting the expected
future cash flows using an equivalent market interest rate for
a similar bond without conversion options and exchange
right.

The fair values of the Group’s put option liabilities and share-
based payment liabilities and the fair value of the Company’s
derivative financial instrument are measured based on
valuation techniques for which any inputs which have a
significant effect on the recorded fair value are not based on
observable market data.

The Group’s put option liabilities and share-based payment
liabilities and the Company’s derivative financial instrument
are measured at fair value and are categorised in Level 3 of

the fair value measurements.
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47.

EMIACAFERAFESR(E)

AEEEEEAARBEEERTARTENE
MBREREF - REREEH - BEREDN
TRTANEEEHUETHETERNE
228 - HELEMERGEEXZESE
FHREITMR T - AVEH P H R R
¥ -

MBEEMNBBEZAFENDEABIAER
e EBRMFERBELERIBENER
TETRSMBFNERAR - TIITER
BB AR AR R FE

HiFERBBE - BRI BB A RRIA
ZAHED B BBIRAERR - FERR K
RIREI B HARR LAZR A] b T BER L 2 S IR K47
REHERRERENE -

AR AR B K AT AR e AT R E S BE AR D
ZAFETIANT B R R 2 2 BLUES
KRR 2 HE ™ 5N R AR BHIR R

EREME -

AREBREREAE - ARND RERZ K
BERARFITESBMT AZ AVERGEE
BRI (HHDRHEAFEREARE 2 &M
WARBEHY FRABREMSREE L) &

=
B -°

AREBZ BAMEEE R ARD REREZ
REBERARBATESRTATIZAFET
B WHBARE=RAFETE -
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47. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 47. EMIAZAVPERDIFESEHRGE)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value hierarchy ATEER
The Group and the Company did not have any financial REERARRAR_ZE—NEFR-T—=%F
assets measured at fair value as at 31 December 2014 and T A=+ —HEBEMIRAFEFENT
2013. BEE -
Below is a summary of significant unobservable inputs to the TRAR_Z—NFR_T—=+2H
valuation of financial instruments together with a quantitative —t—HemITAMEZEATHERGA
sensitivity analysis as at 31 December 2014 and 2013: HEMERTEEHRE ST :
Valuation Significant
techniques unobservable inputs  Range Sensitivity of fair value to the input
R EXTURZBAHE #£B BABBHATENGRE
Put option liabilities ~ Monte Carlo Median volatility of 2014:32.8% to 10% increase (decrease) in the median volatility of
Simulation comparable 52.8% comparable companies would result in no material change in
companies (2013: 11.41% to fair value (2013: (RMB1,000,000) RMB2,000,000).
31.41%)
AhEAR FHRERERS  AHRATN “EmE: AR RNRET A EEM (D) 10% KA EEBATE
RIBHRAIE 328%%£528% HREARE(ZT-=F : (AR¥1,000,0007)
(Z2-=%: AR2,0000007T) ©
1.41% £ 31.41%)
Risk-free rate 2014:2.38% to 1% increase (decrease) in the risk-free rate would result in
4.38% no material change in fair value (2013: (RMB4,000,000)
(2013:3.14% to RMB4,000,000).
5.14%)
ERBHE “E-mE: ERERNEEMOAD) 1% BT eEHATEERERE
2.38%£4.38% (ZF—=F : (AR%4,000,0007C) AR 4,000,0007) ©
(ZE-—=F:
3.14%%5.14%)

292




Annual Report 2014 &£ 3§

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
B RS R MR ()

31 December 2014 —ZE—MNF+_-A=+—H

47. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 47. EMIAZAVPERDIFESEHRGE)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued) AFEER(E)
Valuation Significant
techniques unobservable inputs  Range Sensitivity of fair value to the input
fhiEHH EXTUERBARE €B BARBHATENGBE
Share-based Monte Carlo Median volatility 2014: 46.5% to 10% increase (decrease) in the median volatility of comparable
payment liabilitles ~ Simulation of comparable 066.5% companies would result in (decrease) increase in fair value by
companies (2013:32.8% to (RMB4,000,000) RMB4,000,000 (2013: (RMB4,000,000)
52.8%) RMB2,000,000).
DR AERZ SUFBERES  ARBATN T-IF: ALBAAMREREEN(FD)10% FEHATE
NEEL RiER 16, 5%i665% (ﬁ/)imﬂuuﬁmoooooommmooo 0007
(Z%-= (ZZF-=%: (AR%4,000,00070) AR 2,0000007T) ©
REHER8%)
Risk-free rate 2014:2.38% to 1% increase (decrease) in the risk-free rate would result in
4.38% (decrease) increase in fair value by
(2013:3.14% to (RMB2,000,000) RMB2,000,000
5.14%) (2013: (RMB3,000,000) RMB3,000,000).
ER R —E-IE: BERFIZEN(AD) 1% BEHATE (D) Em
2.38%E4.38% (AEH2,000,0007) AR 2,000,007
(Z%2-= (2% (AR%3000,00070) AE%3,0000007T) ©
314%5.14%)
Derivative financial Binomial Option Volatility of 1169.HK 2014:30.4% to 10% increase (decrease) in the volatility of 1169.HK would result
instrument Pricing Model and 50.4% in (decrease) increase in fair value by (RMB300,000)
Monte Carlo (2013: Nil) RMB300,000 (2013: Nil).
Simulation
fTEERIA ZES\ M 1169.HK 475 18 S-IF: 1169 HK ROl 10% MBI A TE (R D)4
TREAR 304%1904% (AR 3000007T) ARE 300000 (ZF—=5 : &)
SHFEREREDS “E-ZF:E)
Discount rate 2014: 241% 1o 1% increase (decrease) in the discount rate would result in
441% increase (decrease) in fair value by RMB4,400,000
(2013: Ni) (RMB5,500,000) (2013: Nil).
FRE ZB-QE: EREEM A ) 1% BB A TEEM (FD)
5'41%@?%@ ARE 44000007 (ARE55000007)(—B-= : ) ¢

Median volatility of

2014: 40.3% t0 60.3%

10% increase (decrease) in the median volatility of comparable

comparable (2013: Nil) companies would result in increase (decrease) in fair value by
companies RMB1,900,000 (RMB2,700,000) (2013: Nil).
AHBLAZKE ZE-ME403% ﬂttﬁ/ DAl KB EEM RS )10%
e £60.3% BERATEEM(AD) AR 1,900,007 (AR 2,7000007T)
(Z2-Z% &) (ZE-ZF:8):
Risk-free Rate 2014:0.49% to 0.5% increase (decrease) in the risk-free rate would result in
1.49% (decrease) increase in fair value by (RMB100,000) RMB200,000
(2013: Nil) (2013 Nil).
AR TME:049%E  EEBRMZEMOHL)05%  HEHAT

49%( T-=F:E)

TECED)Em
(ARE10000070) AR 2000007 (ZE—=5: &) -
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47. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 47. ERMIAZAFERDAFESHR(E)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Liabilities measured at fair value: RAFEFENERE:
Group rEH
As at 31 December 2014 R-EB-DOFE+Z-A=1+—H

Fair value measurement using
AF{EHEER
Quoted
prices  Significant  Significant
in active  observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
EER  EATERE EATUEE
mEHRE BARE BARE
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(B—%) (B=&) (B=&) st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARWTR AR®BTRT AR%TR

Put option liabilities (note 31) RSB (WE31) - - 247,230 247,230
Share-based payment liabilities Rt BERZNRAE

(note 32) (Hz#32) - - 41,143 41,143

- - 288,373 288,373
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47. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 47. ERMIAZAFERDAFESHR(E)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Liabilities measured at fair value: (continued) BRAFEFENERE: (&
Group (continued) KEH ()
As at 31 December 2013 R-ZE—=F+="RA=+—H

Fair value measurement using
ATE B
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
BB BAAEE EATAEHER
M5 HRE BABE N6
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(F—&) (BE=H) (B=%) s
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARETT ARBTT ARETR ARBTT

Put option liabilities (note 31) RLEREAE(ME31) - - 328,000 328,000
Share-based payment liabilities R AERZNREE

(note 32) (Ktat32) - - 14,429 14,429

- - 342,429 342,429
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47. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 47. ERMIAZAFERDAFESHR(E)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Liabilities measured at fair value: (continued) BRAFEFENERE: (&
Company AT
As at 31 December 2014 R-B-DOFE+-A=1+—H

Fair value measurement using
AF{EHEER

Quoted prices  Significant  Significant

in active  observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs

BER  EAUEE EAFUEER

miEHE BARE WARE
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(B—-R) (B=R) (B=#) et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT AR®BTR AR¥ETRT AR%TrR

Derivative financial instrument TEerIE (MiE34)

(note 34) - - 24,246 24,246
During the year, there were no transfers of fair value FR AV EFESENE—REE-_H
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers MR TEEARERE =N (ZF—=
into or out of Level 3 (2013: Nil). F:m) o
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47. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 47. EMIAZAVPERDIFESEHRGE)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Assets for which fair values are disclosed: EHEEQAFENEE !
Company P N/AY =T |
As at 31 December 2014 R-ZE-WNE+=-HA=+—H

Fair value measurement using
AFEHERER
Quoted

prices  Significant  Significant

in active  observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs

ER EATBE BEAFTEE

TEEE BARE WAYE
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(B—8) (B=&) (B=&) met
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBETRT AR®BTR ARWTRT AR®TR

Due from subsidiaries FEUH B A B8 - - 482,605 482,605

As at 31 December 2013 RZE—=F+=-_A=+—H

Fair value measurement using
ATE B

Quoted

prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs

BE BERTER BATITEE
T5RE AR BABIE
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(B—#) (B=/) (B=4) st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’'000

ARETT ARBTT ARETR ARBTT

18 - - 406,967 406,967

s

Due from subsidiaries D =NGIE

o
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47. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 47. ERMIAZAFERDAFESHR(E)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Liabilities for which fair values are disclosed: EREAAFENERE
Group rEH
As at 31 December 2014 R-B-DOFE+-A=1+—H

Fair value measurement using
AF{EHEER
Quoted
prices  Significant  Significant
in active  observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
ER  EATERE EXATUEE
TEHRE BARE BARE
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(B—%) (B=8) (B=&) st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARWTR AR®BTRT AR%TR

Convertible bonds (note 33) AR ES (H7233) - - 780,601 780,601
CEB (note 34) AR R IR ES
(Mt 34) - - 1,026,030 1,026,030
Other non-current liabilities HidEmeaE
(note 41) (HfiF41) - - 29,851 29,851

1,836,482 1,836,482
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47. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 47. ERMIAZAFERDAFESHR(E)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Liabilities for which fair values are disclosed: (continued) EHEEAFENERSE (&)
Group (continued) KEHE ()
As at 31 December 2013 R-ZE—=F+="RA=+—H

Fair value measurement using
ATE B

Quoted

prices Significant Significant
inactive  observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs

AR BAUERE EATAEER
TI5RE BARIE BAHE
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(B—#) (B=#) (B=H) et
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000

ARETT ARETT AR®TRT ARETR

Convertible bonds (note 33) AR ES (H7233) -

715,302 715,302

- - 715,302 715,302




Haier Electronics Group Co., L

td.
BEHEREEERQA
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47. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 47. ERMIAZAFERDAFESHR(E)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Liabilities for which fair values are disclosed: (continued) EHEEAFENERSE (&)
Company AT
As at 31 December 2014 R=F-HFt=A=t—H

Fair value measurement using
AF{EHEER

Quoted prices  Significant  Significant

in active  observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs

BER  EAUEE EAFUEER

TEHE BARE WARE
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(B—-&) (B=R) (B=#) met
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT ARMTR AR®BTRT AR%TR

Due to subsidiaries (note 20) FERTF B A ] (ffat 20) - - 58,351 58,351
Convertible bonds (note 33) AR ES (M7233) - - 780,601 780,601
CEB (note 34) AR R AR E S

(Mt 34) - - 1,026,030 1,026,030

1,864,982 1,864,982
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47. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 47. ERMIAZAFERDAFESHR(E)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Liabilities for which fair values are disclosed: (continued) EHEEAFENERSE (&)
Company (continued) KRE] (&)
As at 31 December 2013 R-ZE—=F+="RA=+—H

Fair value measurement using
ATE B
Quoted
prices Significant Significant
inactive  observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
AR BAUERE EATAEER
TI5RE BARIE BAHE

(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(%) (B=@) (E=#) mEt

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT  AREBTT  ARBTT  ARBTRL

Due to subsidiaries (note 20) FEASFT B2 B (aE20) - - 64,778 64,778
Convertible bonds (note 33) Bk ES (H733) - - 715,302 715,302

- - 780,080 780,080
During the year, there were no transfers of fair value FA - AFEFEMERE—REE-_H2
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers e TEEANENE="R(ZFT—=
into or out of Level 3 (2013: Nil). FfE) e
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48. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 48. Bi#EBEEBERBE

302

POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise
convertible bonds, CEB and cash and short term deposits.
The main purpose of these financial instruments is to raise
finance for the Group’s operations. The Group has various
other financial assets and liabilities such as trade and bills
receivables and trade and bills payables, which arise directly

from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
are foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The
board of directors reviews and agrees policies for managing
each of these risks and they are summarised below.

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. These
exposures mainly arise from sales or purchases by the
Group’s operating units in Mainland China and in Hong Kong
in currencies other than the units’ functional currencies (i.e.,
RMB or HK dollars). The Group does not enter into any
hedging transactions in an effort to reduce the Group’s

exposure to foreign currency risk.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of
the reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the
United States Dollar exchange rates with all other variables
held constant, of the Group’s profit before tax (due to
changes in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities).
There is no significant impact on other components of the
Group’s equity.

AEBzTESRTABEABREES 7
BRI EBRES LR BEHRER - %F
TRTAZEFZENRAAREZERSE -
AEEEZRAMMBEERAE  MER
KB 552 FEWUR TR S AR DA B A Rk

ET

XEASESRTAZETZRARSINER
2 EERREABECAR EFTEMRF
KipE s ERR 2 ERBERERIT -

S LB

AEBFRZHEERR - ZERBRETER
BASEETEAMNEBZ EEEMAE
fIThee B (AVARBZBTT) MINEH#TT
HEXBE - AEBY BT LEMEPRZH
PARR 7R 5 B T e 2 51 B L

TRITRBERR - EABEEBEHIE
ZERT - HAREERT ARG M 2 T E R
ZAREBEFMREH  HRE(HNEBEER
BEZAFENRE) EXEHHAEEE
RO W EEATLE -
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48. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 48. E¥EKREEBEEZRBEEK (&)
POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currency risk (continued) INERBER (F)
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease)
in exchange in profit
rates before tax
ERLtH RRBE AR A
(T) &, CE2)
% RMB’000
AREFT
31 December 2014 —E—NFE+ZA=+—H
If RMB strengthens against United States Dollar fi§ A R ¥ X ETHE 5 (39,406)
If RMB weakens against United States Dollar MAREY ZETTIE (5) 39,406
31 December 2013 —E-=F+-A=+—H
If RMB strengthens against United States Dollar i A R H T FHE 5 (12,985)
If RMB weakens against United States Dollar MWMAREYZETTIE (5) 12,985
Credit risk FERE
The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third REEERSCRUREERT 2E=HETT
parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers who wish to R REBEAEBZHE  FIAEBEMNRER
trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification FRETRH2EFPHELBEEZER
procedures. In addition, receivable balances are monitored FF o Bhoh - N5 B IR 4B B R B W BR K4S
on an ongoing basis and the Group’s exposure to bad debts g MASEEEER ERRRITERX o
is not significant.
The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which AEREMPABFEE (R %iﬁi&fﬁ B
comprise cash and cash equivalents and other receivables, HAHREMEBRER) 2EERRITEARS
arises from default of the counterparty, with a maximum HFEBOMES  ARRBES] :EZ%’FIE

exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these instruments. Z BREE o
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48.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk (continued)

Since the Group trades only with recognised and
creditworthy third parties, there is no requirement for
collateral. Concentrations of credit risk are managed by
customer/counterparty and by geographical region. There
are no significant concentrations of credit risk within the
Group as the customer bases of the Group’s trade

receivables are widely dispersed in different sectors.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure
to credit risk arising from trade receivables are disclosed in
note 23 to the financial statements.

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using a
recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the
maturity of both its financial instruments and financial assets
(e.g., trade receivables) and projected cash flows from

operations.

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of bank
loans, other borrowings, convertible bonds and CEB. It is the
Group’s policy to renew its loan agreements with Haier
Finance or major local banks in Mainland China upon the
maturity of the Group’s short term bank loans and other
borrowings when funding is needed.

48.

MBEBREEEBRREE(E)

FERE(E)
HAAEEERERAIMEERINE=T
#EITRS > ALY EESRHEERR - 58
RiRERRERER /XHHF RIZHEE
TEE - AR AEE BRI BEKED AR
TRATEZEPHER  ARERNABENE
hZiEERR -

ERAKEXAREER . EERRE—Z
B8R NP BERAME23KE

RBESRER

AEESZRBERADESHE TAELZES
ERERE FATAZEHERT ARG
BE (P EUERTR) 2 BIER B DA R A8 & 575
ZTERIRERE

AEBZ BRAEBERRITER - i
& - AIRRRE 5 K AR AR N AT B R A S AR
BB EREEE M FE - AEBZ
BERR/EARBZEHRTESRNEMER
HnmEE2ESKR A 2EMMExhE
NI E B30T IRTTRI L2 B8 o
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48. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 48. E¥EKREEBEZRBEK (&)
POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued) REBESRER(E)
The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at the RRERR - BREFTOBETNNREGTE -
end of the reporting period, based on the contractual AEETBAaE RHABRINT

undiscounted payments, is as follows:

31 December 2014 —E-MNFE+=A=+—H
On demand
or no fixed
terms of Within Beyond

repayment one year one year Total
RERR
EEE

BRI —FR —F#% Aast

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000  RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTRE AR®BTR AR%®TR

Trade and bills payables R EE - 3,109,438 - 3,109,438
Other payables (note 28) HA R (F7E28) 6,882,004 - - 6,882,004
Due to a non-controlling FEA—RIEFE A PR
shareholder RIB 25,855 - - 25,855
Put option liabilities RonHEaE - 218,230 29,000 247,230
Share-based payment liabilities LA {n A& 2
RaE - - 41,143 41,143
Convertible bonds Al E S - 25,626 870,801 896,427
CEB AIHARR I AT B AR 55 - - 1,100,999 1,100,999
Other non-current liabilities Hib3EmBa s - - 31,000 31,000

6,907,859 3,353,294 2,072,943 12,334,096
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48. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 48.
POLICIES (continued)

MBEBREEEBRREE(E)

Liquidity risk (continued) REBESRER(E)

31 December 2013

—E-=#+-A=+-A

On demand
or no fixed
terms of Within Beyond
repayment one year one year Total
BRERK
EEF
& KA —FR —Fi& HEt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETRT ARBTT ARETT
Trade and bills payables FERBER R R & - 3,202,301 - 3,202,301
Other payables (note 28) HA R (F7E28) 6,147,009 - - 6,147,009
Interest-bearing borrowings FTEEE - 160,605 - 160,605
Due to a fellow subsidiary EN—FRREZMREB AT
HIA - 15,450 - 15,450
Due to a non-controlling FER —RIEFEARAR R
shareholder 8 25,217 - - 25,217
Put option liabilities EevpiL: S=N 22,400 305,600 328,000
Share-based payment liabilities ~ LARR 5 A ERE >
TREE - - 14,429 14,429
Convertible bonds A AR AR 25 - 24,994 874,309 899,303
6,172,226 3,425,750 1,194,338 10,792,314
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48. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 48. E¥EKREEBEZRBEK (&)
POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued) REBESRER(E)
The maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities as at REE R - IHRBEFTAOBRTNREE -
the end of the reporting period, based on the contractual AAHBaE s HABRNT

undiscounted payments, is as follows:

2014 —E-0OF

On demand
or no fixed
terms of Within Beyond
repayment one year one year Total
RERR
BEE
BRI —FR —F#% Aast
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AR®TRT AR®BTRT AR%¥TR

Other payables (note 28) HAb e BR IR (AT 28) 148,865 - - 148,865
Due to subsidiaries (note 20) R NGIE @

(K1:E20) - - 61,644 61,644

Convertible bonds AR ES - 25,626 870,801 896,427

CEB AR R AR E A - - 1,100,999 1,100,999

148,865 25,626 2,033,444 2,207,935
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48. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 48. Hi#EMEEBERBEEK(E)

POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued) REBESRER(E)
2013 —T=F
On demand
or no fixed
terms of Within Beyond
repayment one year one year Total
BRERK
EEF
B —&R —Fi& HEt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETRT ARBTT ARETT
Other payables (note 28) E A FE ST BRFR (T3 28) 131,825 - - 131,825
Due to subsidiaries (note 20) AR ENGIE €
(Btax20) - - 68,456 68,456
Convertible bonds AR E S - 24,994 874,309 899,303
131,825 24,994 942,765 1,099,584
Capital management EREHE

308

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to

support its business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions.
To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders or issue new shares. The Group is not
subject to any externally imposed capital requirements. No
changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes

for managing capital during the years ended 31 December
2014 and 31 December 2013.

AEEERNER 7 T EARENREAREE
FBREZRNRBRFRBREARLE - UX
FEEXBRABRRERKE=ER -

AEBERBEEEANSEHERERHABREEN
RiE - REFHRHBEARRE  ~AKEMRE
AEARRIRMN 2 RS - MEREREERNL
BT - AEETNZEMIMEFRINE AR
KRR - HE_T—F+-_A=1T—H
RZZ—=F+ZA=+—HILFE A#
BEAREEBR BORAEFLELE -
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48. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 48. E¥EKREEBEZRBEK (&)
POLICIES (continued)

Capital management (continued) BERER (&)
The Group monitors working capital using a gearing ratio, AEERAERGGELE X (AIMEHEERIA
which is total debt divided by total equity. The Group’s policy BmRE)EEEEER - AEEZHK A
is to maintain the gearing ratio not exceeding 50%. Total HRERBELENBEBLS0% - EFBER
debt includes interest-bearing borrowings, amounts due to a BRTEEE BN —XERMBARRIEA -
fellow subsidiary and a non-controlling shareholder, JEN —RIFERR AR R FRIE -« AR E S KR AT
convertible bonds and CEB. The gearing ratios as at the end MR R AT EIRES c RIREHR - E4AEE
of the reporting periods were as follows: L& -
Group AEH
2014 2013
—E-mE —T-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT ARETT
Interest-bearing borrowings HEEE - 159,633
Due to a non-controlling shareholder FEA — K IEHEAR AR R AR IR 24,916 24,301
Convertible bonds AR E S 776,319 716,835
CEB AT HARR K AT $ A 5 25 1,024,382 -
Due to a fellow subsidiary FER —RFA R B A FI5RIE - 15,000
Total debt B 4aE 1,825,617 915,769
Total equity e E(E 12,102,040 8,057,664
Gearing ratio BEARBEL R 15.09% 11.37%
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49. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

(a)

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a total of
6,610,700 shares were issued to the non-controlling
shareholders of certain subsidiaries which achieved the
prescribed financial and operational performance

targets.

In January 2015, a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Group, Qingdao Logistics, entered into an acquisition
agreement (the “Acquisition Agreement”) with Fujian
Shengfeng Logistics Group Company Limited
(“Shengfeng Logistics”) and its shareholders, pursuant
to which Qingdao Logistics agreed to acquire 47.6%
equity interest in Shengfeng Logistics at a cash
consideration of RMB355,000,000 plus a contingent
consideration payable ranging from RMB87,000,000 to
RMB131,000,000 which is computed with reference to
the revenue and net profit of Shengfeng Logistics
during the 24-month period subsequent to the
completion of the acquisition transaction. In addition,
according to the Acquisition Agreement, Qingdao
Logistics agreed to inject additional capital of
RMB250,000,000 to Shengfeng Logistics, representing
25% of the entire share capital of Shengfeng Logistics
before the capital contribution. The acquisition
transaction was completed on 27 January 2015 and
Qingdao Logistics held 58.08% equity interest in
Shengfeng Logistics in total.

49.

BREMRER

(a)

RIMEFKRE  BRERGPHBE R
KEBRIBEZZHERRETIEER
% B 34174 3£ 6,610,700 AXAR 17 ©

RZZE—RF—R AEEZFEE
WEARSEEBRIEMRERRAR(E
SRl BEEREYRERBRA
AI(MREYR]) RERE R
H(WERZED B SS5WRA
BENERLYRAT6% 2T Be
KRB A AR 355,000,000 ° B0/
T A B #87,000,0007T & A R
131,000,000 7T 2 SR FETARAE - A TS
2EREYRRTHRKRERZ®
Zt+mEA Mz R E R E -
AN - REBEWERZE  SEWRRE
mMBEYYRBINETEARE
250,000,0007T * HHE R BEE Wit A&
EERRERAZ25% c WERXHE
R-E—RHF—A-++tB=K M
SEMRE R EREYN58.08% 2
[t o



50. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for

issue by the board of directors on 26 March 2015.
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50. RAEIMRZALE

BBMREN —_TE-—AF=R -+ ELKE
EEHERIRETIE -
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Five Year Financial Summary

AFMBRE

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non- A F&EIAEE 2 BETETHRFEELS  E&E -
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years is B {& N IFFERES BT E -
set out below.
Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=t-HLEE
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
—B-mFE _—E-=Ff _—ET-_F _"E——4% C"T-FF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT ARBTrT AR¥BTT AR%TT ARETT
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(E51) (&51) (=51)
RESULTS E
REVENUE WA 67,133,962 62,263,162 55,615,047 50,089,857 36,948,537
Cost of sales SHERAR (57,292,029) (53,125,613) (46,673,866) (42,582,594) (32,103,100)
Gross profit EF 9,841,933 9,137,549 8,941,181 7,507,263 4,845,437
Other income and gains HAg A Rz 390,762 203,942 106,250 99,423 74744
Selling and distribution costs HENDEER (4,704,728)  (4,403,956)  (4,569,519)  (4,157,305)  (2,546,846)
Administrative expenses THER (2,245,444)  (2,221437)  (2,152,495)  (1572964)  (923,109)
Other expenses and losses HtBANMEE (20,647) (9,924) (16,651) (60) (1,082)
Finance costs BERAE (95,961) (68,334) (64,504) (22,492) (6,277)
Share of profits and losses of FEfh RS E 28
joint ventures Bi - - - - 5318
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BRBL AT A 3165915 2,637,840 20244262 1853865 1,448,185
Income tax expense FemmX (650,813)  (547,527)  (537,285)  (386,942)  (430,096)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FERER 2,515,102 2,090,313 1,706,977 1,466,923 1,018,089
Attributable to: AT &AM
Owners of the Company ZAN/NGT ) E 2,446,605 2,036,882 1,695,122 1,407,458 975,048
Non-controlling interests IR 68,497 53,431 11,855 59,465 43,041
2,515,102 2,090,313 1,706,977 1,466,923 1,018,089
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND EE 8EK
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS FERER
TOTAL ASSETS EEHE 27,515,274 21,881,163 18,213,266 14,355,605 9,971,089
TOTAL LIABILITIES BEHEE (15,413,234) (13,823,499) (12,373,038) (10,049,804)  (7,136,781)
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS FERER (611,610) (336,636) (300,502) (280,416) (228,459)
11,490,430 7,721,028 5,539,726 4,025,385 2,605,849
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